
NOTICE OF MEETING AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN AGENDA  
  
  

  
 

 CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN MEETING 

1000 City Parkway 
Osage Beach, MO 65065 

573/302-2000 FAX 573/302-2039 
 www.osagebeach.org 

 Tentative Agenda 
REGULAR MEETING  

JUNE 20, 2019 – 6:00 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

       
***** Note:  Make sure your cell phone is turned off or on a silent tone only.  Please sign the attendance sheet located at 
the podium if you desire to address the Board.    Agendas and packets are available on the back table and on the City’s 
website at www.osagebeach.org.   
  
CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS 

CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATIONS 
 This is a time set aside on the agenda for citizens and visitors to address the Mayor and Board on any topic 

that is not a public hearing.  The Board will not take action on any item not listed on the agenda, but the 
Mayor and Board welcome and value input and feedback from the public.  Speakers will be restricted to three 
minutes unless otherwise permitted.  Minutes may not be donated or transferred from one speaker to another.  

 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA     

If the Board desires, the consent agenda may be approved by a single motion.   
     

 Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of June 6, 2019      Page 1 
 Bills List            Page 5 
 Liquor License Renewal Approval        

Bella Donna Salon, LLC 
Eagle Lanes, LLC 

 Iguana Watersports, Inc. 
Luxury Nails & Spa 

Mama Cita’s 
Moorings Gas & Yacht Supply 
Pappo’s Pizzeria & Pub 
Sergio’s Taqueria 

Smokers Outlet #24 
The Solomon Group, LLC 
Wacky Knacky Diner, LLC 

 
OLD BUSINESS             

A. BILL NO. 19-37           Page 18 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Amending Section 405.020,  
405.130, 405.210, 405.240 And 405.640 Of The Osage Beach Codes Of Ordinances Relating To The 
Amendments And Changes To The Zoning Ordinance Regarding Medical Marijuana 
Second Reading 
 

B.  BILL NO. 19-38           Page 29
 An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Mayor To Execute  
A Contract With Reinhold Electric, Inc. For The Traffic Signal, Street Lighting And Ball  

http://www.osagebeach.org/
http://www.osagebeach.org/
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Field Lighting Maintenance And Repair Services Project  
Second Reading 
 

C. BILL NO. 19-39           Page 34         
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Sale Of Property  
To Schell And Schell And Authorizing The Mayor Of The City Of Osage Beach To Sign  
And Execute A Quitclaim Deed As Described In Section 2. 
Second Reading 
 

D. BILL NO. 19-40          Page 46                                  
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Vacating A Portion Of The Right  
Of Way Of Valley View Drive. 
Second Reading 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Presentation of the City's 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)  Page 53 

 
B. BILL NO 19-41 

An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Sale Of Property   Page 152 
To Lazy L. Properties And Authorizing The Mayor Of The City Of Osage Beach To Sign  
And Execute A Quitclaim Deed As Described in Section 2. 
First Reading 
 

C. BILL NO 19-42          Page 162 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Amending Ordinance No. 18.59  
Adopting The 2019 Annual Budget, Transfer Of Funds For Necessary Expenses. 
First Reading 
 

D. BILL NO 19-43          Page 166 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Mayor To  
Sign A For A Fireworks Show To Be Held At The National Night Out Event At The  
City Park On Tuesday August 6, 2019 With Brilliant Skies Fireworks. 
First Reading 
 

E. BILL NO 19-44          Page 173 
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Mayor To  
Execute Construction Contract Ob18-016 With Stockman Construction For The Dude  
Ranch Road Sidewalk Improvements, Phase 4.  
First Reading 
 

MOTION             Page 179    
A. Motion to authorize the City Administrator to execute the "Request for Approval of  

Agreement to Transfer Funds" to effectuate a transfer of non-primary entitlement funds 
allotted to the City in 2016. 
 

B. Motion to approve the purchase of parts and equipment for lift station improvements from  Page 183 
Municipal Equipment in the amount not to exceed $169,551.14. 
 

DISCUSSION 
A. Sidewalk Master Plan          Page 191 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
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ADJOURN 
Representatives of the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the following: 
 
Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
1000 City Parkway 
Osage Beach, MO 65065 
573-302-2000 ex 1020 
 
If any member of the public requires a specific accommodation as addressed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office forty-eight hours in advance of the meeting at the above telephone number.   

 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

 
June 6, 2019 

 
The Board of Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, met to conduct a Regular Meeting on Thursday, June 
6, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall.  The following were present confirmed by roll call: Mayor John Olivarri, Alderman 
Tom Walker, Alderman Richard Ross, Alderman Tyler Becker, Alderman Kevin Rucker, and Alderman Phyllis 
Marose. Absent Alderman Greg Massey Tara Berreth, City Clerk, was present and performed the duties of that office.   
 

MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS 

Thank you to all that participated and attended the 60th Anniversary. 

CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATIONS 
Steve Rasmussen – Presented copies of emails from the City of Osage Beach and Mr. Rasmussen regarding the 
lighting at Dog Days.  Mr. Rasmussen claims that the lighting at Dog Days does not meet code.  Mayor Olivarri, City 
Administrator Woods and the Building Officials will meet to discuss Mr. Rasmussen’s complaint. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA     
Alderman Rucker made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda (Minutes-May 16, 2019, Bills List and New Liquor 
License-Iguana Watersports).  This motion was seconded by Alderman Marose. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS          
BILL NO. 19-23           
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Opting In The State Imposed Back To School Sales Tax 
Holiday, Rescinding The City’s Previous Opt Out Of Said Holiday, And Exempting Retail Sales Of Certain Clothing, 
Personal Computers, Certain Computer Software, And School Supplies During Said Holiday  Second Reading 
 
Alderman Marose made a motion to approve the second reading of Bill 19-23 as presented.  This motion was 
seconded by Alderman Ross.  The following roll call vote was taken to approve the second and final reading of Bill 
19-23 and to pass same into ordinance: “Ayes” Alderman Becker, Alderman Rucker, Alderman Marose, Alderman 
Walker and Alderman Ross and Alderman Massey Absent “Nays” – 0.  Bill 19-23 was passed and approved as 
Ordinance 19.23. 
 
BILL NO. 19-35           
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Mayor To Execute A Contract With 
Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC To Provide Odor Control Chemicals. Second Reading 
 
Alderman Becker made a motion to approve the second reading of Bill 19-35 as presented.  This motion was 
seconded by Alderman Walker.  The following roll call vote was taken to approve the second and final reading of 
Bill 19-35 and to pass same into ordinance: “Ayes” Alderman Rucker, Alderman Marose, Alderman Walker and 
Alderman Ross and Alderman Becker and Alderman Massey Absent “Nays” – 0.  Bill 19-35 was passed and 
approved as Ordinance 19.35. 
 
BILL NO. 19-36           
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Sale Of Property  To Alan And Lori Piedt 
And Authorizing The Mayor To Sign And Execute A Quitclaim Deed. Second Reading 
 
Alderman Marose made a motion to approve the second reading of Bill 19-36 as presented.  This motion was 
seconded by Alderman Rucker.  The following roll call vote was taken to approve the second and final reading of 
Bill 19-36 and to pass same into ordinance: “Ayes” Alderman Marose, Alderman Walker and Alderman Ross, 
Alderman Becker and Alderman Rucker and Alderman Massey Absent “Nays” – 0.  Bill 19-36 was passed and 
approved as Ordinance 19.36. 
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NEW BUSINESS            
PUBLIC HEARING 
Addition Of 405.585 “Medical Marijuana Facilities To Chapter 405 “Zoning Regulations” 
 
Planner Patterson explained that this public hearing relates to and is required for Bill 19-37 - An ordinance of the City 
of Osage Beach, Missouri, amending sections 405.020, 405.130, 405.210, 405.240, and 405.640, of the Osage Beach 
Codes of Ordinances relating to the amendments and changes to the zoning ordinance regarding Medical Marijuana. 
 
Dan Calvino – Expressed disappointment in how the Board of Aldermen have handled the Medical Marijuana issue.  
The Mayor and Board Members explained the process.        
     
BILL NO. 19-37            
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Amending Section 405.020, 405.130, 405.210, 405.240 And 
405.640 Of The Osage Beach Codes Of Ordinances Relating To The Amendments And Changes To The Zoning 
Ordinance Regarding Medical Marijuana   First Reading 
 
Planner Patterson explained that this is the initial draft document addressing the regulation of Medical Marijuana 
Facilities within the Cooperate City Limits of Osage Beach. The regulations were written in answer to the discussion 
that took place at the Planning Commission and Board of Aldermen combined meeting on April 16, 2019. Planning 
Commission recommended approval of this amendment as enclosed by unanimous vote at their meeting on May 14, 
2019. 
 
Alderman Ross made a motion to approve the first reading of Bill NO 19-37.  This motion was seconded by Alderman 
Marose. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
BILL NO. 19-38           
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Mayor To Execute A Contract With 
Reinhold Electric, Inc. For The Traffic Signal, Street Lighting And Ball Field Lighting Maintenance And Repair 
Services Project   First Reading 
 
Public Works Director Edelman explained that this contract is for maintenance services on Traffic Signals, Street 
Lights, and Ball Field Lights. At the June 7,2018 Board of Aldermen Meeting, an agreement was approved, expiring 
in 2019, and outlined an option for annual contract renewals up to 5 years. Asking to renew this agreement per 
contract details. The agreement outlines costs of $2,500 for the annual maintenance and a not to exceed amount of 
$30,000 for hourly work and request approval for FY2019. 
 
Alderman Ross made a motion to approve the first reading of Bill NO 19-38.  This motion was seconded by Alderman 
Marose. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
BILL NO. 19-39                     
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Authorizing The Sale Of Property To Schell And Schell And 
Authorizing The Mayor Of The City Of Osage Beach To Sign And Execute A Quitclaim Deed As Described In 
Section 2.   First Reading 
 
Assistant City Administrator Welty presented a request for the sale of Cove Road Property and 1/5 interest in Gerkin 
Lane Property.  Three bids were received and opened on May 31, 2019. The winning bid of $12,001 by Schell & 
Schell.  The monies received from the sale of this property will by deposited in Sale of Used Equipment. 
 
Alderman Rucker made a motion to approve the first reading of Bill NO 19-39.  This motion was seconded by Alderman 
Marose.  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
BILL NO. 19-40                                             
An Ordinance Of The City Of Osage Beach, Missouri, Vacating A Portion Of The Right Of Way Of Valley View 
Drive.  First Reading 
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Public Works Director Edelman presented an application for a Right of Way Vacation for a portion of Valley View Drive, 
submitted by Ted Ave.  The current use for this is excess right of way.  The size of the right of way is .07 acres.   The 
applicant owns the land adjacent to the requested vacation property. The City of Osage Beach has no infrastructure 
currently in the ROW and no apparent issue with the approval.  This request was presented to the Planning Commission 
on May 14, 2019 and recommended to the Board of Aldermen for approval. 

Alderman Becker made a motion to approve the first reading of Bill NO 19-40.  This motion was seconded by Alderman 
Marose. Motion passes unanimously. 

MOTION  
Swiss Village Well Water Line Parts 

Public Works Director Edelman explained that this is for the purchase of pipe, fittings and appurtenances to construct 
the fill line for the new Swiss Village Well. The apparent low bidder is Core and Main in the amount of $16,896.96. 
This was bid with 2 different components, one being everything that would initially be ordered and the second with 
items that would be ordered on an as needed basis. Public Works would like the authorization to purchase up to 
$16,896.96 worth pipe, fittings and appurtenances from Core And Main.

Alderman Rucker made a motion to approve the purchase parts for the Swiss Well Water Line purchase up to 
$16,896.96.  This motion was seconded by Alderman Marose.  Motion passes unanimously. 

Ratify Mission Statement by the Mayor and Board of Alderman 

City Administrator Woods explained that annually the Board of Aldermen is asked to re-adopt or ratify the City's 
mission statement which is not only placed in the annual budget document but distributed internally and to the public. 
In addition, any new aldermen signatures are added to the statement. 

Alderman Ross made a motion to Ratify the Mission Statement for the City of Osage Beach.  This motion was 
seconded by Alderman Rucker.  Motion passes unanimously. 

Motion to Approve Appointments to Planning Commission and Board of Appeals 

Mayor Olivarri recommended appointments of the following Planning Commission - Kelli Schuman to a four-year 
term replacing Roger Rand and Board of Appeals reappointment of Dave Krehbiel to a five-year term. 

Alderman Ross made a motion to approve the appointment to Planning Commission and Board of Appeals as 
presented.  This motion was seconded by Alderman Rucker.  Motion passes unanimously. 

Motion to apply for grant funding at Lee C. Fine Airport for Apron Reconstruction 

Public Works and Airport Departments would like to pursue a grant for approximately Four (4) million dollars for 
reconstruction of the apron at Lee C. Fine. This project was mentioned back on September 20, 2018 Board of 
Aldermen Meeting. The previous grant request was a 100% match.  Unfortunately, the City did not receive funding 
from that request. Congress has passed their appropriation bill for federal fiscal year 2019; they included an additional 
$500 million in Airport Program Funds. This funding will be provided as discretionary grants and that the federal 
share of any project will be at 90%. The taxiway that is currently under construction was awarded discretionary 
grants. Having talked with MoDOT about being able to come up with the 10% ($400,000). MoDOT is trying to help 
match 5% of the project with state funds if the city can come up with 5% ($200,000).  MoDOT has given the City to 
end of the week to notify them if we would like to apply for this money. If this project is awarded, designs for this 
project would have to be completed in 2020. With bids and construction to begin in 2021.Our consultant CMT has 
been in conversations with the FAA about apron projects. It is their belief that the FAA will not be funding apron 
projects for a few years after this round with the magnitude of runway projects that were requested for the $1billion 
100 % grant money last year. This pavement is the last of the original pavement from the late 60's that hasn't been 
reconstructed or overlain. The LCF Apron Reconstruction projects is on the list of priority projects for Airport Capital 
Improvement Plan. 
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Alderman Rucker made a motion to approve/deny the request for applying for grand funding for Lee C. Fine Airport 
Apron Reconstruction.  This motion has been seconded by Alderman Marose.  Motion passes unanimously. 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

Alderman Rucker 
Tony Hatfield/School of the Osage called to Thank the City for the work done on Mace Road.  The children are no 
longer having to walk to the roundabout or to the Parkway.  The buses are now able to drive down Mace Road. 

Alderman Ross 
Wanted to thank Cindy Leigh for her exceptional customer service. 
Status of Mace Road and the Contractor regarding liquidated damages.  City Administrator Woods explained that 
a letter has been sent to the Contractor.  Just waiting for their response. 

Alderman Becker 
60th Anniversary was a great event.  Well done to the staff. 

Alderman Walker 
NO 

Alderman Marose 
Attended the Newly Elected Officials Conference. 
So happy that the potholes by the Post Office have been filled. 

STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
City Administrator Woods – Will be sending out a tentative 2020 Budget Planning Schedule.  Expect an email from 
City Clerk Berreth regarding NIMS (National Incident Management System) training.  All Board members are 
required to complete IS-100 and IS-700. 

Staff in attendance: Cary Patterson, Kerri Bell, Mike Welty, Nick Edelman, Ron White, Matt Vandevoort and Ty 
Dinsdale. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.  

I, Tara Berreth, City Clerk of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, do hereby certify that the above foregoing is a 
true and complete journal of proceedings of the regular meeting of the Board of Aldermen of the City of Osage 
Beach, Missouri, held on June 6, 2019 and approved on June 20, 2019 . 

Tara Berreth, City Clerk John Olivarri, Mayor 

4



Bills Paid Prior to Board Meeting 267,098.94

Payroll Paid Prior to Board Meeting 127,829.90

SRF Transfer Prior to Board Meeting

TIF Transfer Dierbergs

TIF Transfer Prewitt's Pt

Bills Pending Board Approval 256,638.68

Total Expenses 651,567.52

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH
BILLS LIST
June 20, 2019
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06-12-2019 04:09 PM                                     PRIOR TO REPORT                                         PAGE:     1

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       General Fund       FAMILY SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER                   Case #31550944                     138.46

                                                                                          Cse #16CMDR00112                   173.08

                                                                                          Case ID41477632                    207.69

                                          MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              BOOKS, MISC SALES TAX                6.13

                                                                                          State Withholding                3,342.00

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                          10,060.89

                                                                                          FICA                             6,726.07

                                                                                          Medicare                         1,573.03

                                          ICMA                                            Loan Repayment                     315.59

                                                                                          Loan Repayment                     245.55

                                                                                          Loan Repayment                     182.93

                                                                                          Loan Repayment                     233.04

                                                                                          Loan Repayment                      63.78

                                                                                          Loan Repayment                     213.53

                                                                                          Retirment 457 &                    357.32

                                                                                          Retirement 457                   1,130.00

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    157.89

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    586.25

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    577.14

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    110.95

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    330.32

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    100.00

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    108.24

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     74.15

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    213.18

                                                                                          Retirment Roth IRA %               164.31

                                                                                          Retirement Roth IRA                325.00

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                   135.00

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi       1,882.66

                                          MO ST TREAS CLINT ZWEIFEL                       UNCLAIMED PROPERTY                 965.17_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          30,699.35

 

Mayor & Board          General Fund       VISELLI, NANCY                                  PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00

                                          HY-VEE FOOD & DRUG STORES INC                   FLOWERS- TIMOTHY HADEN              73.50

                                                                                          FLOWERS- JULIE FRYER                35.00

                                                                                          FLOWERS- HELTON (K.INGHAM)          75.00

                                                                                          FLOWERS- M.BEAN GRANDMOTHE          69.97

                                          MYLER, MICHELLE                                 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00

                                          CHISHOLM, DON                                   PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00

                                          RAND, ROGER                                     PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00

                                          KIRN, TONY                                      PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00

                                          BLAIR, ALAN                                     PLANNING COMMISSION MEETIN          25.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             403.47

 

City Administrator     General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               544.78

                                                                                          Medicare                           127.41

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     544.16

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         225.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,441.35

 

City Clerk             General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               250.17

                                                                                          Medicare                            58.51

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     216.31

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi          75.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             637.49
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DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

City Treasurer         General Fund       MAPERS                                          MAPERS CONF - K.BELL & A.W         150.00

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               550.71

                                                                                          Medicare                           128.81

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     481.79

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         150.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,498.81

 

Municipal Court        General Fund       WASHBURN, WILLIAM F                             MAY MUNICIPAL JUDGE              1,763.16

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                                81.92

                                                                                          Medicare                            19.16

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                      82.75

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi          51.78_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,998.77

 

City Attorney          General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               331.14

                                                                                          Medicare                            77.44

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     323.99

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi          75.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             807.57

 

Building Inspection    General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               421.00

                                                                                          Medicare                            98.46

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     416.59

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             BLDG DEPT CELL PHONE                91.87

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         187.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,252.92

 

Building Maintenance   General Fund       ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             CITY HALL TRASH SERVICE            146.09

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                                54.17

                                                                                          Medicare                            12.67

                                          LOWE'S                                          GREEN STEEL EDGING                  18.92

                                                                                          KILZ PRIMER, HOSE & NOZZLE          36.43

                                          TRACEY OLIVER DBA KEEPING CONDOS CLEAN          CITY HALL JANITORIAL SERV        1,380.75_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,649.03

 

Parks                  General Fund       OZARKS COCA-COLA/DR PEPPER BOTTLING CO          CONCESSION BEVERAGES               431.44

                                          ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             PARK TRASH SERVICE                 377.21

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               453.85

                                                                                          Medicare                           106.15

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     290.10

                                          LOWE'S                                          PIPE FOR FIELD MAINTENANCE           4.74

                                                                                          SUPPLIES FOR GATE REPAIR             1.68

                                                                                          BATTERIES                           49.34

                                                                                          ELECT OUTLET AND WALL PLAT          13.84

                                                                                          OUTLET RELOCATE IN CONCESS          54.28

                                                                                          DRILL BIT FOR HAMMER DRILL           4.07

                                                                                          SAW BLADE                           13.29

                                                                                          LANDSCAPE EDGING                    48.42

                                                                                          FLOWERS                             11.36

                                                                                          GARDENING TOOLS                     11.34

                                                                                          LANDSCAPING FLOWERS                270.22

                                                                                          PROPANE TANK EXCHANGE               35.94

                                                                                          HORNET KILLER                        1.89

                                                                                          HINGE FOR SHOP DOOR                  4.93
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DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                                                                          PVC FOR SINK REPAIR                  1.18

                                                                                          PLIERS SET                          23.74

                                                                                          HEX BOLTS                            0.86

                                                                                          ADHESIVE                             4.74

                                                                                          STRAINER FOR SINK REPAIR             3.12

                                                                                          STRAINER WASHERS                     1.90

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             PARK CELL PHONE                     91.82

                                          MISSOURI EAGLE LLC                              BEER FOR CONCESSIONS               110.50

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 PARK #2 IRRIG PUMP 4/14-5/          11.31

                                          WEST, GREG                                      UMPIRE 4 GAMES 5/20, 5/22          105.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 7 GAMES 5/29, 5/30,         195.00

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         153.21

                                          DULLE, PATRICK VINCENT                          UMPIRE 3 GAMES 5/20, 5/24          105.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 4 GAMES 5/2, 5/30,5         140.00

                                          BOYER, MARVIN                                   UMPIRE 2 GAMES 5/20, 5/24           70.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 6 GAMES 5/28,5/29,          210.00

                                          UNDERWOOD, MATTHEW W SR                         UMPIRE 3 GAMES 5/20, 5/22          105.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 8 GAMES 5/28- 5/31          280.00

                                          MCGUIRE, MICHAEL EDWARD                         UMPIRE 4 GAMES 5/20, 5/22          105.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 7 GAMES 5/29, 5/30,         165.00

                                          SCHUMACHER, STEVEN R.                           UMPIRE 4 GAMES 5/22, 5/24          140.00

                                          CRAIG, JON                                      UMPIRE 2 GAMES 5/28                 60.00

                                          FRIEDMAN, MICHAEL                               UMPIRE 2 GAMES 5/24                 70.00

                                                                                          UMPIRE 3 GAMES 5/28, 5/30          105.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           4,478.97

 

Human Resources        General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               139.68

                                                                                          Medicare                            32.67

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     141.19

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi          75.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             388.54

 

Police                 General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                             2,819.02

                                                                                          Medicare                           659.27

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                   2,806.05

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                   150.00

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi       1,121.79

                                          CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY MANAGEMENT LL          PD STUDY - FINAL REPORT          8,730.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          16,286.13

 

911 Center             General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               606.63

                                                                                          Medicare                           141.87

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     536.04

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         173.22_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,495.26

 

Planning               General Fund       INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               196.90

                                                                                          Medicare                            46.04

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     194.62

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         112.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             550.06

 

Information Technology General Fund       TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC                          REPAY CM 025-254028                137.50

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               276.10
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DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                                                                          Medicare                            64.57

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     272.82

                                          AT&T INTERNET/IP SERVICES                       PD FIRSTNET LAPTOPS 4/13-5       1,022.07

                                                                                          POLICE FN LAPTOPS                  635.20

                                                                                          LCF INTERNET 5/19-6/18           1,242.01

                                                                                          PARKS INTERNET 5/19-6/18           882.26

                                                                                          CH & GG INTERNET 5/19-6/18       2,414.49

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             IT DEPT CELL PHONES                 53.54

                                                                                          INTERNET CONNECTION                  3.45

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         150.00

                                          BEAN, MIKEAL S                                  MILEAGE REIMB-MO DIGITAL G          56.26_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           7,210.27

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Transportation     MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              State Withholding                  262.16

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                             926.40

                                                                                          FICA                               949.03

                                                                                          Medicare                           221.94

                                          ICMA                                            Retirment 457 &                    343.07

                                                                                          Retirement 457                      88.46

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     44.36

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     33.64

                                                                                          Retirement Roth IRA                 49.30

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    33.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         316.15_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,268.01

 

Transportation         Transportation     ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             TRANS TRASH SERVICE                 39.47

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               949.00

                                                                                          Medicare                           221.96

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     832.09

                                          LOWE'S                                          TORCH TANK EXCHNG-OZRK MEA          18.98

                                                                                          SEED AND LANDSCAPE STAKES          282.90

                                                                                          TREE FOR NICHOLS RD                111.60

                                          CARD SERVICES 0248                              WORK BOOTS - J.JOHNS               159.99

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             TRANS DEPT CELL PHONES              87.09

                                          DONALD MAGGI, INC                               MACE RD IMPROVEMENTS            57,162.24

                                          TRACEY OLIVER DBA KEEPING CONDOS CLEAN          TRANS JANITORIAL SERV              270.30

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 PW CT MTR 4/15-5/15/19             203.27

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 792 PASSOVER RD LTS 4/14-5          63.76

                                                                                          1075 NICHOLS ST LTS 4/15-5         155.06

                                                                                          872 PASSOVER RD LTS 4/14-5          69.73

                                                                                          MACE RD RNDABT LTS 4/14-5/          40.11

                                                                                          680 PASSOVER RD LTS 4/14-5          48.64

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    87.76

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         399.75_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          61,203.70

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Water Fund         MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              WATER SALES TAX                  3,217.76

                                                                                          State Withholding                  324.08

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                             856.75

                                                                                          FICA                               718.90

                                                                                          Medicare                           168.13

                                          ICMA                                            Retirment 457 &                     77.86

                                                                                          Retirement 457                      52.21

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     44.36

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                      8.07
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                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     12.05

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     43.24

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                      4.96

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     18.14

                                                                                          Retirement Roth IRA                 47.85

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                     8.25

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi          69.96_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,672.57

 

Water                  Water Fund         ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             WATER TRASH SERVICE                 39.47

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               718.93

                                                                                          Medicare                           168.15

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     678.89

                                          BRENNTAG MID SOUTH INC                          CHLORINE & FLOURIDE              1,430.00

                                          LOWE'S                                          LOCK FOR BLUFF                      30.87

                                                                                          RETURN LOCK FOR BLUFF               30.87-

                                                                                          RETURN TRANSFER PUMP               128.44-

                                                                                          DOOR KNOB - BLUFF TOWER             35.13

                                                                                          CLAMP & TUBING                      16.86

                                                                                          WATER COOLER                        23.77

                                          CARD SERVICES 0248                              FERTILIZER, GRASS SEED, ST         263.99

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             WATER DEPT CELL PHONES             186.02

                                          TRACEY OLIVER DBA KEEPING CONDOS CLEAN          WATER JANITORIAL SERV              270.31

                                          MAGUIRE IRON INC                                BLUFF TOWER REPAINT             85,642.50

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 PW CT MTR 4/15-5/15/19             203.26

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 PARKVIEW WELL 4/14-5/14            333.48

                                                                                          LK RD 54-59 WELL 4/29-5/29       2,199.37

                                                                                          SWISS VILLAGE WELL 4/29-5/         687.75

                                                                                          COLUMBIA COLL WELL 4/14-5/         503.33

                                                                                          COLUMBIA TWR POLE 11 4/14-          11.48

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    49.88

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         286.63

                                          CARLSON, CHAD                                   MILEAGE REIMB 5/22-5/29/19         156.60

                                          STOUFER, TOMMIE L                               MILEAGE REIMB 5/29-6/5/19           59.85_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          93,837.21

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Sewer Fund         FAMILY SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER                   Case ID 41434906                   136.15

                                                                                          Case #11345331                     399.46

                                          MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              State Withholding                  588.76

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                           1,703.89

                                                                                          FICA                             1,158.71

                                                                                          Medicare                           270.99

                                          ICMA                                            Retirment 457 &                     78.36

                                                                                          Retirement 457                     177.52

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     45.71

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                      8.01

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     33.21

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    113.82

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                      4.92

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     18.01

                                                                                          Retirement Roth IRA                 67.85

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                     8.25

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         206.48_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,020.10

 

Sewer                  Sewer Fund         ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             SEWER TRASH SERVICE                 39.47
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                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                             1,158.71

                                                                                          Medicare                           270.95

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                   1,147.94

                                          LOWE'S                                          CAP SOCKET                           1.98

                                                                                          RETURN OF SCREWDRIVERS              17.06-

                                                                                          SCREWDRIVERS, PLIERS                49.88

                                          AT&T MOBILITY-CELLS                             SEWER DEPT CELL PHONES             239.57

                                          TRACEY OLIVER DBA KEEPING CONDOS CLEAN          SEWER JANITORIAL SERV              270.31

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 GRINDER PUMPS & LIFT STATI       2,443.13

                                                                                          4631 WINDSOR DR 4/14-5/14/          12.61

                                                                                          CHAPEL DR LFT ST 4/15-5/15          13.34

                                                                                          PW CT MTR 4/15-5/15/19             203.26

                                                                                          PONDEROSA 54-29 4/14-5/14/          11.24

                                                                                          1089 OB RD LFT ST 4/14-5/1          11.41

                                                                                          GRINDER PUMPS & LIFT STATI       5,264.54

                                                                                          GRINDER PUMPS & LIFT STATI       4,427.82-

                                                                                          5874 HWY 54 4/29-5/29/19             0.43

                                                                                          1075 RUNABOUT RD 4/28-5/28           7.38

                                                                                          5707 OB PKWY 4/14-5/14/19           12.54

                                                                                          GRINDER PUMPS & LIFT STATI       2,869.40

                                                                                          GRINDER PUMPS & LIFT STATI       5,575.45

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    87.36

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         738.62

                                                                                          Medical Reimbursement               41.67

                                          WALKER, DUSTIN                                  MILEAGE REIMB 5/22-5/29/19          34.80

                                          HANKS, CODY                                     MILEAGE REIMB 5/22-5/29/19          13.92_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          16,075.03

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Ambulance Fund     MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              State Withholding                  358.00

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                             945.87

                                                                                          FICA                               748.72

                                                                                          Medicare                           175.11

                                          ICMA                                            Loan Repayment                      70.64

                                                                                          Retirment 457 &                     68.32

                                                                                          Retirement 457                      15.00

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                    122.24

                                          BRIAN SCHIERDING                                12LA-AC00352, 19-GARN-465          177.31_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,681.21

 

Ambulance              Ambulance Fund     INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               748.72

                                                                                          Medicare                           175.11

                                          LAKE REGIONAL HEALTH SYSTEM                     AHA HEALTH CARE PROVIDER C         160.00

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     564.34

                                          AT&T INTERNET/IP SERVICES                       AMB FIRSTNET LAPTOPS 4/13-          86.46

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         150.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,922.13

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Lee C. Fine Airpor MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              LCF SALES TAX                    3,016.17

                                                                                          State Withholding                   77.80

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                             254.18

                                                                                          FICA                               334.16

                                                                                          Medicare                            78.15

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 457                      89.00

                                                                                          Loan Repayments                     64.83_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,914.29
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Lee C. Fine  Airport   Lee C. Fine Airpor ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             LCF TRASH SERVICE                   36.22

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 LCF RUNWAY LTS 4/30-5/30/1          43.02

                                                                                          LCF AP FIREHOUSE 4/30-5/30          30.15

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               334.16

                                                                                          Medicare                            78.15

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     284.19

                                          LOWE'S                                          WEED SPRAY,PAINT,CONCRETE          156.87

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Contribution                    37.50

                                                                                          HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         120.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,120.26

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       Grand Glaize Airpo MO DEPT OF REVENUE                              GG SALES TAX                        54.18

                                                                                          State Withholding                   57.20

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        Fed WH                             155.10

                                                                                          FICA                               208.66

                                                                                          Medicare                            48.80

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 457                      30.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             553.94

 

Grand Glaize Airport   Grand Glaize Airpo CITY OF OSAGE BEACH                             SERV 4/24-5/22/19                   59.46

                                          ALLIED SERVICES LLC                             GG TRASH SERVICE                    36.22

                                          AMEREN MISSOURI                                 GG AP HANGAR 4/29-5/29/19           43.79

                                                                                          AP RD TBLC EXT D 4/29-5/29         163.97

                                                                                          GG AIRPORT SHOP 4/29-5/29/          24.09

                                                                                          957 AIRPORT RD 4/29-5/29/1          11.68

                                                                                          GG AP TBLC EXT D 4/29-5/29          27.07

                                                                                          GG AP TBLC EXT D 4/29-5/29          22.23

                                                                                          GG AP SLEEPY 4/29-5/29/19           19.15

                                          INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                        FICA                               208.66

                                                                                          Medicare                            48.80

                                          ICMA                                            Retirement 401                     187.38

                                          HSA BANK                                        HSA Family/Dep. Contributi         180.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,032.50

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   10   General Fund                  70,797.99

                                   20   Transportation                64,471.71

                                   30   Water Fund                    99,509.78

                                   35   Sewer Fund                    21,095.13

                                   40   Ambulance Fund                 4,603.34

                                   45   Lee C. Fine Airport Fund       5,034.55

                                   47   Grand Glaize Airport Fund      1,586.44

                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:         267,098.94

                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    7
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City Clerk             General Fund       R&D COMPUTER SYSTEMS LLC                        LASERFICHE MAINT 8/2019-8/         540.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             540.00

 

City Treasurer         General Fund       STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE                      CALCULATOR, DIVIDERS                42.08

                                                                                          WIRELESS MOUSE                      36.33_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              78.41

 

City Attorney          General Fund       THOMSON REUTERS - WEST                          WEST INFO CHARGES                  336.60_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             336.60

 

Building Inspection    General Fund       INTL CODE COUNCIL                               GOVT MEMBER DUES - R.WHITE         135.00

                                          PRECISION AUTO & TIRE SERVICE LLC               OIL CHANGE - LIC# BD2               37.95

                                          STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE                      PAPER                                6.19

                                          AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC                     LEATHERMAN MULTI TOOL               45.50

                                                                                          IPHONE CASE & SCREEN PROTE          39.96_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             264.60

 

Building Maintenance   General Fund       EZARDS                                          CONCRETE PATCH                       8.99

                                                                                          CONCRETE PATCH                      17.98

                                                                                          ROUND UP                            12.99

                                          PRAIRIEFIRE COFFEE & ROASTERS                   WATER COOLER RENTAL                 38.51

                                          BUTLER SUPPLY CO                                LED LIGHTS                          24.22

                                          AB PEST CONTROL INC                             CH PEST CONTROL                    125.00

                                          BEISHIR LOCK & SECURITY                         DOOR LOCK REPAIR                   892.78

                                          STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE                      PLATES, CUPS, KNIVES                85.54

                                          CROWN LINEN SERVICE INC                         CH FLOOR MATS                       34.88_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,240.89

 

Parks                  General Fund       EZARDS                                          CHAINSAW FILE & GUIDE               11.99

                                          FASTENAL CO                                     HEX CAP SCREWS                       5.33

                                          ALPHA CUSTOM APPAREL LLC                        LEAGUE HATS                        592.20

                                                                                          LEAGUE T SHIRTS                    112.24

                                          MOTOR HUT INC                                   AIR CLEANER FILTER                  43.22

                                          FORESTRY SUPPLIERS INC                          POISON OAK/IVY CLEANSER             43.71

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  UNIVERSAL SOCKET                    11.99

                                                                                          MOTOR OIL                           39.99

                                                                                          AIR FILTER                          21.74

                                                                                          RATCHET                             21.99

                                                                                          MIRROR HEAD                          9.99

                                                                                          FOAM CLEANER                        14.97

                                          LAKE SUN LEADER 81525 & 1586450                 BID-PEANICK PARK PAVILION          180.00

                                                                                          BID-PEANICK PARK DUGOUT RE         175.50

                                          AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC                     CLOCK                               19.48

                                                                                          TV WALL MOUNT                       24.48

                                          SPRINGFIELD GROCER COMPANY dba SGC FOO          CONCESSION SUPPLIES                400.10

                                                                                          BATH TISSUE                        106.41

                                                                                          CONCESSION SUPPLIES              1,729.53_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,564.86

 

Overhead               General Fund       ELECTRONICS UNLIMITED                           TROUBLESHOOT PHONES                150.00

                                          PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL                             LEASE PAYMENT 3/30-6/29/19         403.62_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             553.62

 

Police                 General Fund       HI-TECH AUTO BODY INC                           DECAL REMOVAL - PD20               220.00

                                          LEON UNIFORM CO INC                             UNIFORM SHIRT - J.JACKSON          152.97

                                                                                          CUFF CASES                          50.00
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                                                                                          CUFF CASES                          41.00

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  MIRROR ADHESIVE                      9.99

                                                                                          WIPER BLADE - CAR 27                20.18

                                          DALE A DISTLER DBA                              EQUIP REMOVAL-FORD TAURUS          100.00

                                          FILE OF LIFE FOUNDATION INC                     911 PROMO MAGNET 500 CT            415.38

                                          BIG O TIRES AND SERVICE CENTERS                 TIRES - PD 19                      700.36

                                          HEDRICK MOTIV WERKS LLC                         OIL CHNG, TIRE ROTATE - PD          65.00

                                                                                          OIL CHANGE - PD 33                  65.00

                                                                                          OIL CHNG, TIRE ROTATE - PD         204.99

                                          STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE                      BATTERIES                          223.25

                                                                                          PAPER                                5.00

                                                                                          COPY PAPER, NOTEPADS                78.62

                                          AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC                     CRAYONS                             29.98

                                          THE ARTCRAFT GROUP, INC dba FOREMOST P          911 PROMOTIONAL RULERS 500         115.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,496.72

 

911 Center             General Fund       WEST SAFETY SOLUTIONS CORP                      V-VAAS MONTHLY FEE 6/3-7/2       3,525.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,525.00

 

Information Technology General Fund       TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC                          EXECUTIME/T&A TRAINING             312.50

                                                                                          EXECUTIME/ADVANCED SCHED T         343.75

                                                                                          EXECUTIME/T&A TRAINING             125.00

                                                                                          EXECUTIME,ADV SCHED,T&A TR         843.75

                                          DLT SOLUTIONS LLC                               AUTO DESK SUPPORT                3,322.20

                                          AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC                     WHITEBOARD CLEANING WIPES           63.89_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,011.09

 

Economic Development   General Fund       LAKE SUN LEADER 645                             GRADUATION ADS                     250.00

                                          VACATION NEWS                                   MAY CALENDAR BILLING               160.00

                                          BROADCAST MUSIC INC                             MUSIC LICENSE 6/2019-5/202         358.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             768.00

 

Transportation         Transportation     ENNIS PAINT INC                                 STRIPING PAINT                   9,217.60

                                          CAPITAL MATERIALS LLC                           BP1/BP2 RAP/SHINGLES - HAW         327.80

                                                                                          2" CLEAN FILL - HAWTHORNE          290.14

                                                                                          2" BASE - NICHOLS                  112.98

                                          RP LUMBER INC                                   PREMIX CONCRETE - HAWTHORN          43.90

                                          FASTENAL CO                                     CHUCK KEY                            5.26

                                                                                          STEEL TAP BOLTS                     11.50

                                                                                          RETURN CHUCK KEY                     5.26-

                                                                                          SAFETY GLASSES                       4.60

                                                                                          STEEL TAP BOLT                      11.50

                                                                                          SAFETY GLASSES                       2.52

                                                                                          GLOVES, STEEL GRAB HOOK             32.15

                                          ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREER APPAREL GROUP          TRANS DEPT UNIFORMS                 55.84

                                                                                          TRANS DEPT FLOOR MATS                4.97

                                          GB MAINTENANCE SUPPLY                           TRASH LINERS, PLATES                21.26

                                                                                          FACIAL TISSUE                       28.59

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID - BAC          27.98

                                                                                          MOTOR OIL - FOR ZERO TURN            3.79

                                                                                          SHOP TOWELS                         17.98

                                                                                          DIESEL FUEL/TANK CLEANER            29.98

                                          CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT                         KEYS FOR KUBOTA EQUIPMENT           22.39

                                          DAM STEEL SUPPLY                                15" CULVERT BAND                    50.00

                                                                                          12" CULVERT BAND                    44.00

                                                                                          12" CULVER - NICHOLS RD            105.00
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                                          AB PEST CONTROL INC                             PW PEST CONTROL                     20.00

                                          MAGRUDER LIMESTONE CO INC                       1" GRAVEL-SHORT ST RD REPA          50.77

                                          BARTLETT & WEST INC                             MACE RD PHASE 2 4/27-5/24/      12,780.00

                                          CORRECTIVE ASPHALT MATERIALS LLC                2019 RECLAMITE & CRF SEALC     107,190.94

                                          MCS RENTALS                                     CONCRTE SAW GAS, DIAMND BL          82.50

                                          TRACKER SOFTWARE CORPORATION dba PUBWO          GIS MGMT SOFTWARE - 1ST PY       4,025.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         134,615.68

 

Water                  Water Fund         REP COM INTERNATIONAL LLC                       LOCATOR & CABLE LEADS              267.62

                                          EZARDS                                          1"x30" RULE TAPE                    17.99

                                          ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREER APPAREL GROUP          WATER DEPT UNIFORMS                 34.90

                                                                                          WATER DEPT FLOOR MATS                4.97

                                          GB MAINTENANCE SUPPLY                           TRASH LINERS, PLATES                21.25

                                                                                          FACIAL TISSUE                       28.59

                                          HDR INC                                         2018 SWISS VLG WELL 3/31-4       3,434.60

                                          OZARK READY MIX CO INC                          CONCRETE BLOCKS                     20.00

                                          POSTMASTER                                      JUNE 2019 UTILITY BILL POS         425.00

                                          CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT                         KEYS FOR KUBOTA EQUIPMENT           22.38

                                          PRECISION AUTO & TIRE SERVICE LLC               OIL CHNG/AIR FILTER - LIC#          60.94

                                          AB PEST CONTROL INC                             PW PEST CONTROL                     20.00

                                          LO ENVIRONMENTAL LLC                            WATER TESTING - E COLI              25.00

                                          TRACKER SOFTWARE CORPORATION dba PUBWO          GIS MGMT SOFTWARE - 1ST PY       4,025.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           8,408.24

 

Sewer                  Sewer Fund         REP COM INTERNATIONAL LLC                       LOCATOR & CABLE LEADS              267.61

                                          CAPITAL MATERIALS LLC                           1" CLEAN FILL - GUENTHER            77.94

                                          EZARDS                                          UNIVERSAL TITANIUM SLVR             17.98

                                                                                          16" HANDLE HAMMER                    9.99

                                          FASTENAL CO                                     STOCK CABLE TIES                    23.99

                                                                                          NUTS, ANCHORS, SCREWS              974.85

                                                                                          BOLTS                                7.56

                                                                                          WEDGE ANCHOR                        95.85

                                                                                          LAZER RECIP SAW BLADES              40.00

                                                                                          STEEL OVERSIZED KEYSTOCK             2.75

                                                                                          DR BIT, HND WIPES, ADHESIV         186.82

                                                                                          DRILL BIT, CUTTING LUBRICA          42.00

                                          ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREER APPAREL GROUP          SEWER DEPT UNIFORMS                 48.86

                                                                                          SEWER DEPT FLOOR MATS                4.96

                                          GB MAINTENANCE SUPPLY                           TRASH LINERS, PLATES                21.25

                                                                                          FACIAL TISSUE                       28.58

                                          TALLMAN COMPANY                                 HUB BUSHINGS                        13.97

                                          MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT CO                          PUMP IMPELLER                    4,258.86

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  WIRE CRIMPERS                       14.02

                                          CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTR, INC              TRANSFORMER CONTROL                450.28

                                                                                          PARTS FOR GUENTHER REPAIR          787.36

                                                                                          500FT MEASURE TAPE                  95.55

                                                                                          MILBANK FOR METER/DISCONNE         315.00

                                                                                          PARTS FOR GUENTHER REPAIR          149.70

                                                                                          HUB/BUSHING TIMBERLINE ST           20.49

                                                                                          DISCONNECT -STEWART DR STA         180.00

                                                                                          MILBANK- MTR SOCKET/DISCON         356.92

                                          POSTMASTER                                      JUNE 2019 UTILITY BILL POS         425.00

                                          LAKE RECHARGE & FIRE EQUIPMENT LLC              BACKFLOW INSPECTION                 55.00

                                          BUTLER SUPPLY CO                                3" CONDUIT                         284.15

                                                                                          CONDUIT, PVC - GUENTHER LN         170.90

                                          CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT                         KEYS FOR KUBOTA EQUIPMENT           22.38
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                                          CORE & MAIN LP                                  3 & 6 VALVE BOX RISER               50.48

                                                                                          BELL RESTRAINER                    422.00

                                                                                          COUPLING, SS INSERT, BRASS         243.77

                                                                                          PVC CAPS - GUENTHER                  7.68

                                          PRECISION AUTO & TIRE SERVICE LLC               OIL CHANGE - LIC# 50                43.95

                                                                                          OIL CHANGE - LIC# 71                43.95

                                                                                          OIL CHANGE - LIC# 75                43.95

                                          AB PEST CONTROL INC                             PW PEST CONTROL                     20.00

                                          LO ENVIRONMENTAL LLC                            WATER TESTING - E COLI             100.00

                                          UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC                       LATE PAYMENT FEE FOR SHIP            5.63

                                          TRACKER SOFTWARE CORPORATION dba PUBWO          GIS MGMT SOFTWARE - 1ST PY       4,025.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          14,456.98

 

Ambulance              Ambulance Fund     AIRGAS INC                                      OXYGEN                             203.83

                                          BIG O TIRES AND SERVICE CENTERS                 TIRES - MEDIC 8                    267.06

                                          BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC                          MEDICAL SUPPLIES                    30.58

                                                                                          MEDICAL SUPPLIES                   406.33

                                                                                          MEDICAL SUPPLIES                    78.85

                                          HEDRICK MOTIV WERKS LLC                         OIL CHNG, REPL BRAKES - ME         194.64

                                          STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE                      ALPHA INDEX                          5.20

                                          DOUGLAS G WILSON DO PC                          JUNE MEDICAL DIRECT SERVIC       1,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,186.49

 

Lee C. Fine  Airport   Lee C. Fine Airpor ALPHA CUSTOM APPAREL LLC                        SCREEN PRINT T SHIRTS              108.92

                                          NAEGLER OIL CO                                  LCF JET FUEL                    19,277.52

                                                                                          LCF JET FUEL                    19,444.31

                                                                                          LCF JET FUEL                    10,050.58

                                                                                          HEARTLAND/SATELLITE EQUIP           46.00

                                                                                          LCF AV GAS                      14,558.36

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  HYD HOSE, GREASE, TRACTOR           72.83

                                          CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY INC                    LCF TAXIWAY RECON 3/30-4/2       1,511.00

                                          NEUMAYER EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC                  CHECK VALVE REPLACEMENT            388.27_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          65,457.79

 

Grand Glaize Airport   Grand Glaize Airpo EZARDS                                          CLAMP &HEATER HOSE,PLUMB S          13.35

                                          ALPHA CUSTOM APPAREL LLC                        SCREEN PRINT T SHIRTS              108.93

                                          NAEGLER OIL CO                                  HEARTLAND/SATELLITE EQUIP           46.00

                                                                                          GG AV GAS                       12,953.45

                                          O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC                  GREASE                              11.98_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          13,133.71
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06-12-2019 04:07 PM                                     COUNCIL REPORT                                          PAGE:     5

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   10   General Fund                  18,379.79

                                   20   Transportation               134,615.68

                                   30   Water Fund                     8,408.24

                                   35   Sewer Fund                    14,456.98

                                   40   Ambulance Fund                 2,186.49

                                   45   Lee C. Fine Airport Fund      65,457.79

                                   47   Grand Glaize Airport Fund     13,133.71

                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:         256,638.68

                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    5
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Cary Patterson/City Planner   
Date Submitted: 06/07/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-37 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, amending sections 405.020, 405.130, 405.210, 
405.240, and 405.640, of the Osage Beach Codes of Ordinances relating to the amendments and changes to the 
zoning ordinance regarding Medical Marijuana. 

 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Cary Patterson/City Planner   
 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #    

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill # 19-37 Other (Describe) 

Resolution #    
 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for an amendment to the Zoning Map per Municipal Code Chapter 405 
Zoning Regulations. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

The Board of Aldermen has made it known that they want this regulation approved into code by a 
minimum of July 1, 2019. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-37, Draft code changes 

✔ 

✔ 

18



Department Comments and Recommendation: 

This is the initial draft document addressing the regulation of Medical Marijuana Facilities within the Cooperate 
City Limits of Osage Beach. The regulations were written in answer to the discussion that took place at the 
Planning Commission and Board of Aldermen combined meeting on April 16, 2019. 

 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this amendment as enclosed by unanimous vote at their 
meeting on May 14, 2019. 

 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

The first reading was read and passed by the Board of Aldermen on June 6, 2019. 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-37 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

I concur with the stated recommended City Code changes as it reflects the outcome and discussions that took 
place during the recent meetings with the commission and the Board of Aldermen. 
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BILL NO.  19-37           ORDINANCE NO. 19.37 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AMENDING SECTION 
405.020, 405.130, 405.210, 405.240 AND 405.640 OF THE OSAGE BEACH CODES OF 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES TO THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE REGARDING MEDICAL MARIJUANA. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, 
AS FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 
 

Section 1.  That Section 405.020 of the Osage Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to add new definitions to read as follows: 

 
"Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility" a facility licensed by the State of Missouri to 

acquire, cultivate, process, store, transport and sell marijuana to a Medical Marijuana 
Dispensary Facility, Medical Marijuana Testing Facility or to a Medical Marijuana-Infused 
Products Manufacturing Facility. 

 
"Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility" a facility licensed by the State of Missouri to 

acquire, store, sell, transport and deliver marijuana marijuana-infused products and drug 
paraphernalia used to administer marijuana as provided for in this section to a Qualifying 
Patient, a Primary caregiver, another Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility- a Medical 
Marijuana Testing Facility or a Medical Marijuana-Infused Products Manufacturing Facility. 

 
"Medical Marijuana-Infused Products Manufacturing Facility" a facility licensed by the 

State of Missouri to acquire, store, manufacture, transport and sell marijuana-infused products 
to a Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility, a Medical Marijuana Testing Facility, or to 
another Medical Marijuana-Infused Products Manufacturing Facility. 

 
"Medical Marijuana Testing Facility" a facility certified by the State of Missouri to 

acquire, test, certify and transport marijuana. 
 
“Religious Institution” a building used for religious activities, particularly for religious 

worship services. 
 
“Elementary School” a school for the first four to six grades and includes kindergarten. 
 
“Secondary School” a school that is intermediate in level between elementary school and 

college and that usually offers general, technical, vocational, or college-preparatory curricula. 
   

Section 2.  That Section 405.130 A. “A-1 General Agricultural District” of the Osage 
Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add a new item to read as follows:   
  

14. Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 
405.585 
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Bill No. 19-37  Ordinance No. 19.37 
Page 2 

Section 3.  That Section 405.210 A. “C-1 General Commercial District” of the Osage 
Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add a new item to read as follows: 

 
22. Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in 

Section 405.585 
 

Section 4.  That Section 405.240 A. “I-2 Heavy Industrial District” of the Osage Beach 
Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add a new item to read as follows: 

 
 12. Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in 
Section 405.585 
 

13. Medical Marijuana Infused Products Manufacturing Facilities subject to the use 
provisions outlined in Section 405.585 

 
14. Medical Marijuana Testing Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 

405.585 
 
  Section 5.  That Section 405.640 A # 2 “Off Street Parking Criteria” of the Osage 
Beach Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add a new item to read as follows: 
 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility - One (1) space for each three hundred fifty (350) 
square feet of total building floor area, plus one (1) space for each employee on maximum 
shift. 
 
  Section 6. That Section 405.585 Medial Marijuana Facilities of the Osage Beach Code 
of Ordinances is hereby adopted as a new section to read as follows: 
 
Medical Marijuana Facilities 

 “Purpose”. The Medical Marijuana Facilities regulations are established to promote the 
health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens, visitors, and businesses of the 
City. This Section is intended to govern and provide locations within the City of Osage 
Beach where Medical Marijuana Facilities can successfully provide their intended 
services to the citizens and visitors of Osage Beach while maintaining the standard of life 
to which they have become accustomed. 

A. "Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "C-1", 
"I-1" and "I-2" zoning districts after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility shall be permitted within two hundred (200) 
feet, measured from property line to property line, of any religious institution, elementary 
or secondary school, or child daycare facility. 

2. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility must be located 
in one of the previously established zones and also meet one of the following: 
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Bill No. 19-37  Ordinance No. 19.37 
Page 3 

A. Be located within two thousand (2,000) feet of the Osage Beach Parkway 
Public Right of Way or the Interchange Right of Way for the Highway 54 
Expressway or; 

B. Be located within one thousand (1,000) feet from the State Highway 42 or 
State Highway KK Public Right of Way. 

3. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

B.  "Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "A-1" 
and "I-2" zoning districts after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility must be located 
in one of the previously established zones and also meet the following: 

A. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, 
elementary or secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will 
also include properties zoned “A-1” that contains a previously established 
residential use and properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a 
Special Use Permit for a residential use in a commercial zone 

2. No Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

  C. "Medical Marijuana Infused Products Manufacturing Facility". This use will only be 
permitted in the "I-2" zoning district after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Infused Products Facility must be 
located in the previously established zone and also meet the following: 

A. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, 
elementary or secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will 
also include properties zoned “A-1” that contain a previously established 
residential use and properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a 
Special Use Permit for a residential use in a commercial zone. 

 2. No Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 
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Bill No. 19-37  Ordinance No. 19.37 
Page 4 

  D. "Medical Marijuana Testing Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "I-2" zoning 
district after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Testing Facility must be located in 
the previously established zone and also meet the following: 

A. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, 
elementary or secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one 
thousand (1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will 
also include properties zoned “A-1” that contain a previously established 
residential use and properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a 
Special Use Permit for a residential use in a commercial zone. 

2. No Medical Marijuana Testing Facility shall be permitted on a property that contiguous 
with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

E. Parking For Medical Marijuana Facilities. Parking for Medical Marijuana Facilities will 
be governed by the provisions of Chapter 405 Article IX “Off Street Parking and Loading 
Requirements” 

 
F. Signage For Medical Marijuana Facilities. Signage for Medical Marijuana Facilities will 

be governed by the provisions of Chapter 405 Article V “Signs” 
 
G. Medical Marijuana Facilities shall not negatively affect adjacent and surrounding 

properties by means of being noxious or offensive by reason of vibration, noise, odor, 
dust, smoke, gas, light, or glare. 

 
H. Medical Marijuana Facilities that propose having more than one type of facility on the 

same property or within the same building, will be required to follow the regulations for 
the more restricted facility. (For example; as adopted in 2019, a facility containing both a 
dispensary and cultivation, would be required to locate in the “I-2” zone with the distance 
requirements for a cultivation facility.) 

 
I.   All other applicable regulations not specifically addressed in this section will be governed 

by the provisions of the zoning district in which the facility is proposed to be located. 
 
 
  Section 7.  Severability.  The provisions of every Chapter, Section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause and phrase are severable.  If any provision of a Chapter, Section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause and/or phrase is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, the 
remaining provisions of the Chapter, Section, paragraph, sentence, clause and/or phrase are valid 
unless the court finds the valid provisions of the Chapter, Section, paragraph, sentence, clause 
and/or phrase are so essentially and inseparably connected with, and so dependent upon, the void 
provision that it cannot be presumed the legislature would have enacted the valid provisions 
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without the void one; or unless the court finds that the valid provisions, standing alone, are 
incomplete and are incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent.    
 

Section 8.  Repeal of ordinances not to affect liabilities, etc. 
 
 Whenever any part of this ordinance shall be repealed or modified, either expressly or by 
implication, by a subsequent ordinance, that part of the ordinance thus repealed or modified shall 
continue in force until the subsequent ordinance repealing or modifying the ordinance shall go 
into effect unless therein otherwise expressly provided; but no suit, prosecution, proceeding, 
right, fine or penalty instituted, created, given, secured or accrued under this ordinance previous 
to its repeal shall not be affected, released or discharged but may be prosecuted, enjoined and 
recovered as fully as if this ordinance or provisions had continued in force, unless it shall be 
therein otherwise expressly provided. 

 
Section 9.  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon date of passage. 

 
  READ FIRST TIME:  June 6, 2019  READ SECOND TIME: 
 
I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.37 was duly passed on  , by the Board 
of Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 
Ayes:   Nays:    Abstentions:   Absent:    
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  
  
       ___________________________________  
Date         Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.37. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
__________________    John Olivarri, Mayor 
Date 
 
ATTEST:            

____________________________________ 
      Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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Additions to Sections of Chapter 405. Zoning Regulations 
 
Section 405.020 Definitions. 
 

A.  For the purposes of this Chapter words used in the present tense shall include the future tenses; words in the 
singular number include the plural and words in the plural number include the singular, except where the 
natural construction of the writing indicates otherwise. The word "shall" is mandatory and not directory. 

B. For the purpose of this Chapter, certain terms and words are to be used and interpreted as defined below: 

Additions to Section 405.020 “Definitions” 

"Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility" a facility licensed by the State of Missouri to acquire, 
cultivate, process, store, transport and sell marijuana to a Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility, 
Medical Marijuana Testing Facility or to a Medical Marijuana-Infused Products Manufacturing Facility. 

"Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility" a facility licensed by the State of Missouri to acquire, store, 
sell, transport and deliver marijuana marijuana-infused products and drug paraphernalia used to 
administer marijuana as provided for in this section to a Qualifying Patient, a Primary caregiver, another 
Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility- a Medical Marijuana Testing Facility or a Medical Marijuana-
Infused Products Manufacturing Facility. 

 "Medical Marijuana-Infused Products Manufacturing Facility" a facility licensed by the State of 
Missouri to acquire, store, manufacture, transport and sell marijuana-infused products to a Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary Facility, a Medical Marijuana Testing Facility, or to another Medical Marijuana-
Infused Products Manufacturing Facility. 

"Medical Marijuana Testing Facility" a facility certified by the State of Missouri to acquire, test, 
certify and transport marijuana. 

“Religious Institution” a building used for religious activities, particularly for religious worship 
services. 

“Elementary School” a school for the first four to six grades and includes kindergarten. 

“Secondary School” a school that is intermediate in level between elementary school and college and 
that usually offers general, technical, vocational, or college-preparatory curricula. 

 

Additions to Section 405.130 “A-1 General Agricultural District” 

14. Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 
405.585 

 

Additions to Section 405.210 “C-1 General Commercial District” 

22. Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 
405.585 
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Additions to Section 405.240 “I-2 Heavy Industrial District” 

12. Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 
405.585 

13. Medical Marijuana Infused Products Manufacturing Facilities subject to the use provisions 
outlined in Section 405.585 

14. Medical Marijuana Testing Facilities subject to the use provisions outlined in Section 405.585 

 

Additions to Section 405.640 “Off-Street Parking Criteria” 

“Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility” One (1) space for each three hundred fifty (350) square 
feet of total building floor area, plus one (1) space for each employee on maximum shift. 

 

ADDING A NEW SECTION TO CHAPTER 405 ZONING REGULATIONS 

SECTION 405.585:     Medical Marijuana Facilities 

1 “Purpose”. The Medical Marijuana Facilities regulations are established to promote the 
health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens, visitors, and businesses of the 
City. This Section is intended to govern and provide locations within the City of Osage 
Beach where Medical Marijuana Facilities can successfully provide their intended services 
to the citizens and visitors of Osage Beach while maintaining the standard of life to which 
they have become accustomed. 

A. "Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "C-1", "I-
1" and "I-2" zoning districts after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility shall be permitted within two hundred (200) 
feet, measured from property line to property line, of any religious institution, 
elementary or secondary school, or child daycare facility. 

2. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility must be 
located in one of the previously established zones and also meet one of the following: 

A. Be located within two thousand (2,000) feet of the Osage Beach Parkway Public 
Right of Way or the Interchange Right of Way for the Highway 54 Expressway 
or; 

B. Be located within one thousand (1,000) feet from the State Highway 42 or 
State Highway KK Public Right of Way. 

3. No Medical Marijuana Dispensary Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 
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B.  "Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "A-1" and 
"I-2" zoning districts after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility must be 
located in one of the previously established zones and also meet the following: 

A. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, elementary or 
secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will also include 
properties zoned “A-1” that contains a previously established residential use and 
properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a Special Use Permit for a 
residential use in a commercial zone 

2. No Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

  C. "Medical Marijuana Infused Products Manufacturing Facility". This use will only be 
permitted in the "I-2" zoning district after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Infused Products Facility must be 
located in the previously established zone and also meet the following: 

A. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, elementary or 
secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will also include 
properties zoned “A-1” that contain a previously established residential use and 
properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a Special Use Permit for a 
residential use in a commercial zone. 

 2. No Medical Marijuana Cultivation Facility shall be permitted on a property that is 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

  D. "Medical Marijuana Testing Facility". This use will only be permitted in the "I-2" zoning 
district after meeting the following minimum requirements: 

1. Properties proposed to contain a Medical Marijuana Testing Facility must be located 
in the previously established zone and also meet the following: 

A.  The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property containing a religious institution, elementary or 
secondary school, or child daycare facility.   

B. The facility, measured from its outer walls, must be a minimum of one thousand 
(1,000) feet from any property that is zoned residential. This will also include 
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properties zoned “A-1” that contain a previously established residential use and 
properties zoned “C-1” that have been approved for a Special Use Permit for a 
residential use in a commercial zone. 

2. No Medical Marijuana Testing Facility shall be permitted on a property that 
contiguous with the Lake of the Ozarks. 

E. Parking For Medical Marijuana Facilities. Parking for Medical Marijuana Facilities will be 
governed by the provisions of Chapter 405 Article IX “Off Street Parking and Loading 
Requirements” 

F. Signage For Medical Marijuana Facilities. Signage for Medical Marijuana Facilities will be 
governed by the provisions of Chapter 405 Article V “Signs” 

G. Medical Marijuana Facilities shall not negatively affect adjacent and surrounding properties 
by means of being noxious or offensive by reason of vibration, noise, odor, dust, smoke, gas, 
light, or glare. 

H. Medical Marijuana Facilities that propose having more than one type of facility on the same 
property or within the same building, will be required to follow the regulations for the more 
restricted facility. (For example; as adopted in 2019, a facility containing both a dispensary and 
cultivation, would be required to locate in the “I-2” zone with the distance requirements for a 
cultivation facility.) 

I.   All other applicable regulations not specifically addressed in this section will be governed by 
the provisions of the zoning district in which the facility is proposed to be located. 
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   
Date Submitted: 06/07/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-38 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to execute a renewal of 
contract OB18-013 with Reinhold Electric, Inc. for traffic signal, street lighting, and ball field lighting 
maintenance and repair services. 

 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   
 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #    

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill # 19-38 Other (Describe) 

Resolution #    
 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for purchases over $15,000 per Municipal Code Chapter 135; Article II: 
Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

The current contract expires July 9, 2019 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title: 20-00-743107    
FY  19   Budgeted Amount: $ 10,120.00 

 

Expenditures to Date 05/01/19 : ($ 2,662.00 ) 
Available:   $ 7,458.00 

Requested Amount: 
  $ 2,500.00 

 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-38, July 9, 2018 executed agreement 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

This contract is for maintenance services on Traffic Signals, Street Lights, and Ball Field Lights. At the June 7, 
2018 Board of Aldermen Meeting, an agreement was approved, expiring in 2019, and outlined an option for 
annual contract renewals up to 5 years. We would like to renew this agreement per contract details. 

 
The agreement outlines costs of $2,500 for the annual maintenance and a not to exceed amount of $30,000 for 
hourly work and we request approval for FY2019. 

 
The Public Works Department recommends approval of this bill. 

 
 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

The first reading was read and passed by the Board of Aldermen on June 6, 2019. 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-38 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

This is the first request for renewal of five available per agreement signed July 9, 2018. I concur with the 
Public Director's recommendation. 
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BILL NO. 19-38                            ORDINANCE NO. 19.38 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
TO EXECUTE A RENEWAL CONTRACT OB 18-013 WITH REINHOLD ELECTRIC, INC. FOR 
THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL, STREET LIGHTING AND BALL FIELD LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 
AND REPAIR SERVICES PROJECT  
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS, WIT: 
 

Section 1. The Board of Aldermen hereby authorizes the City Administrator to execute a 
renewal of contract OB 18-013, with Reinhold Electric for Traffic Signal, Street Lighting & Ball Field 
Lighting Maintenance & Repair Services, executed on July 9, 2018 pursuant to Ordinance 18-32 for 
total expenditures or liability authorized under this contract includes Two Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars ($2,500.00) for maintenance and not to exceed an amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars 
($30,000.00) for hourly work per year for all work covered by and included in the contract. 
 

Section 2. In any year in which the budget contains sufficient appropriated funds for the costs 
to be incurred, the Board of Aldermen hereby authorizes the City Administrator to execute subsequent 
yearly renewals of contract OB 18-013, with Reinhold Electric for Traffic Signal, Street Lighting & 
Ball Field Lighting Maintenance & Repair Services, executed on July 9, 2108 pursuant to Ordinance 
18-32 for total expenditures or liability authorized under this contract includes Two Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) for maintenance and not to exceed an amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars 
($30,000.00) for hourly work per year for all work covered by and included in the contract. 
 
 Section 3.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to take such further actions as are 
necessary to carry out the intent of this Ordinance and Contract.     
 
 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from date of passage and approval by 
the Mayor. 
 

READ FIRST TIME: June 6, 2019  READ SECOND TIME:      
 
I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.38 was duly passed on     . 
 
 Ayes: Nays:   Abstentions:  Absent:   
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for her signature.  
  
      ___________________________________  
Date          Tara Berreth City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.38. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
              John Olivarri, Mayor 
Date 
ATTEST:     ____________________________________ 
      Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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TRAFFIC SIG AL, STREET LIGHTING & BALL FIELD LIGHTP.>IG. 
MArNTE ANCE & REPAIR SERVICES 

AGREWNT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and eote<ed into thi' q day of ~ ~ , 2018, by and 
between the City of Osage Beach, Party of the First Part and hereinafter called wner, and Reinhold Electric, Inc. 
a Corporation of St. Louis, Missouri Party of the Second Part and hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT WHEREAS, the City of Osage Beach has caused to be prepared, in accordance with law, specifications, plans, 
and other contract documents for the work herein described and has approved and adopted said documents, and has 
caused to be published, in the manner and for the time required by law, an advertisement for and in connection with the 
construction of the improvements, complete, in accordance with the contract documents and the said plans and 
specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor, in response to such advertisement, has submitted to the Owner, in the manner and at the time 
specified, a sealed bid in accordance with the terms of said advertisement; 

WHEREAS, the Owner, in the manner prescribed by law, has publicly opened, examined and canvassed the bids 
submitted in response to the published advertisement therefor, and as a result of such canvass has determined and 
declared the aforesaid Contractor to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder for the said work and has du ly 
awarded to the said Contractor a contract therefor, for the sum or sums named in the Contractor's bid, a copy thereof 
being attached to and made a part of this contract. 

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the compensation to be paid to the Contractor and of the mutual agreements 
herein contained, the Parties to these presents have agreed and hereby agree, the Owner for itself and its successors. and 
the Contractor for its, his , or their executors and administrators, as follows: 

ARTICLE I. That the Contractor shall (a) furnish all tools, equipment, supplies, superintendence, transponation, and 
other construction accessories, services and facilities; (b) furnish all materials, supplies and equipment specified and 
required to be incorporated in and form a permanent part of the completed work except the items specified to be 
furni shed by the Owner; (c) provide and perform all necessary labor; and (d) in a good, substantial, and worlonanlike 
manner and in accordance with the provisions of the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions of th is contract 
which are attached hereto and make a part hereof, and in conformance with the contract plans and specifications 
designated and identified therein, execute, construct, and complete all work included in and covered by the Owner's 
official award of this contract to the said Contractor, such award being based on the acceptance by the Owner of the 
Contractor's bid for the construction of the improvements. 

It is further stipulated that not less than the prevailing rate of wages as found by the Department of Labor and Industrial 
Relations of the State of Missouri or determined by the courts of appeal shall be paid to all worlonen performing work 
under this Contract. 

ARTI CLE II. That the Contractor shall construct, complete as designated and described in the foregoing Bid Form and 
anached specifications and in accordance with the Advertisement for Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form, Bonds, 
General Conditions, Supplementary Condit ions, detailed specifications, plans, addenda, and other component pans of the 
contract documents hereto attached, all of which documents form the contract and are fully a part hereto as if repeated 
verbatim here. 

ARTICLE lll. That the Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of the work described as follows: 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL, STREET LIGHTING & BALL FIELD LIGHTING, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SERVICES 

and the Contractor will accept as full compensation thereof, the sum (subject to adjustment as provided by the contract) 
of Two thousand five hundred dollars and zero cents ($2,500.00) for maintenance and not to exceed Thirty thousand 
(S30,000.00) for hourly work per year for all work covered by and included in the contract award and designated in the 
foregoing Article I. Payment therefor shall be made in the manner provided in the General Conditions and 
Supplementary Conditions attached hereto. 

6/8/2018 Agreement A-I 
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TRAFFIC SIGNAL, STREET LIGHTING & BALL FIELD LIGHTTNG, 
MAINTfa A CE & REPAIR SERVICES 

ARTICLE IV. The term of this contract shall be for one year with the option for annual renewal thereafter to a maximum 
of 5 renewals. 

ARTICLE V. This Agreement will not be binding and effective until signed by the Owner. 

fN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this contract as of the day and year first above wrinen. 

ATTEST: 

By CfC,hn (!> f 1\1a.cri · m~ 012 
ame and Title 1 ' (SEAL) 

* * * * • • • • • • * • • • • • • * * * * * * * • • • * • • * • • • • • * * * * * • * * • * • • • • • * * • * • • * * * • • • * * • 
LICE SE or CERTIFICATE UMBER, if appl icable-- --- --- - --- --------

SIG ATURE OF CO TRACTOR: 

IF A fNDIVIDUAL OR PARTNERSHIP 

Contractor, Party of the Second Part 

(CORPORA TE SEAL) 

ST A TE OF 'µ.~~ 
___..:~==:......:.--..,..---------

COUNTY OF ~ ..\= \,r...:._, 

On This 2'1- day of \11t={ , 20J.2L, before me appear~d --'--""'"'C..,O..::~.._._.....,....~-'-~----
to me personally kn<?wn who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the _ V:!<...l.>=""'--¥J.:....:..!(......_...._._ ______ of 
Hd=-.)\0, ~\rcb \l\l, and that the seal 

corporate seal of said corporation by authority of its board of di rectors, and said ____J~~~:u.t=:u,.c:.}.----­
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation. 

(SEAL) 

My commission Expires: I 0 - 7 - / t3 

6/8/20 18 Agreement A-2 

33



 

 
 

City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   
Date Submitted: 06/07/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-39 - An Ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the sale of property to Schell & 
Schell and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute two Quitclaim Deeds. 

 
 
Presented by: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   

 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #    

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill # 19-39 Other (Describe) 

Resolution #    
 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for disposal of assets per Municipal Code Chapter 135; Article II: 
Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

We would like to get the Quitclaim Deeds signed as soon as possible so that the buyers can record 
these deeds with the County and take possession of the property they purchased. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-39; 2 Quitclaim Deeds; Bid Opening; 2 Site Maps 

✔ 

✔ 

34



Department Comments and Recommendation: 

The bid opening for this piece of property was on 05/13/2019. Three bids were received. 

Cove Road Property and 1/5 interest in Gerkin Lane Property: 

Winning bidder = Schell & Schell 
 

Bid amount = $12,001.00 To be deposited in Sale of Used Equipment (10-00-600000) 

Assistant City Administrator Recommends Approval 

 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

The first reading was read and passed by the Board of Aldermen on June 6, 2019. 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-39 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

I concur with the Assistant City Administrator's recommendation. 
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BILL NO. 19-39                                      ORDINANCE NO. 19.39
                 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 
PROPERTY TO SCHELL AND SCHELL AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
OSAGE BEACH TO SIGN AND EXECUTE TWO (2) QUITCLAIM DEEDS AS DESCRIBED IN 
SECTION 2. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, AS 
FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 
 

Section 1. That the sale of property located on Cove Road to Schell and Schell for twelve thousand 
one dollar ($12,001) described in Section 2 is hereby authorized. 

 
Section 2.  The Mayor of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, is hereby authorized and directed to sign 

two (2) Quitclaim Deeds for the sale of property located on Cove Road to Schell and Schell for twelve 
thousand one dollar ($12,001) described as follows: 

 
 A tract of land lying in the West half of Lot Six (6) of the Northeast quarter of Section One (1), 
Township Thirty-nine (39) North, Range Sixteen (16) West, Camden County, Missouri, described as 
follows: From an angle Iron which marks the Southeast corner of the West half of Lot Six (6) of 
Section On (1), Township Thirty-nine (39) North, Range Sixteen (16) West, run North along the East 
line of the West half of Lot Six (6) of the Northeast quarter of said Section One (1), 53.01 feet to an 
iron pin for the point of beginning; thence continue North along said East line 67.00 feet to an iron 
pin; thence leaving said East line South 81 degrees 15 minutes West 98.89 feet to the centerline of a 
30 foot road; thence following said centerline South 01 degrees 53 minutes West 61.05 feet; thence 
leaving said centerline North 84 degrees 48 minutes East 100.50 feet to the point of beginning. SAVE 
AND EXCEPT all that portion of the above described tract of land which lies within the right-of-way 
of said 30-foot road.  
 
SAVE AND EXCEPT:  
 
A 5.0 foot wide strip of land, said strip being a part of a tract of land as described in Book 214, at 
Page 496, Camden County records, Camden County, Missouri, said tract being a part of Section One 
(1), Township Thirty-nine (39) North, Range Sixteen (16) West, Camden County, Missouri, said strip 
being to the right of and parallel and adjacent to the following described line:  
Beginning at the Southwest corner of said tract as described in Book 214, Page 496, said corner being 
the corner common to the south line of said tract and the easterly line of a 30  
foot road as shown on the plat of “BUENA VISTA HEIGHTS”, a subdivision of record in Camden 
County, Missouri; thence North 02 degrees 56 minutes 27 seconds East along the easterly right of way 
line of said road 61.99 feet, to the northly line of said tract, and the end of said strip.  
Bearings relative to Missouri State Plans Coord. System, Central Zone.   

 
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are, in so much as 
they conflict with this ordinance, hereby repealed. 

 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage by the 

Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor. 
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Bill No. 19-39                               Ordinance No. 19.39 
Page 2                     
 

READ FIRST TIME:  June 6, 2019  READ SECOND TIME:   
 
I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.39 was duly passed on             by the Board of Aldermen of 
the City of Osage Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 
 Ayes:   Nays:  Abstentions:   Absent:    
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  
  
 
                                    _____________________________  
Date           Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
                                  
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.39. 
 
        ___________________________________ 
_____________              John Olivarri, Mayor 
Date 
 

ATTEST: 
        __________________________________ 
        Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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Bill No. 19-39                               Ordinance No. 19.39 
Page 3                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI     ) 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN  ) 
 
 
 
On this   day of    , 2019, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 

appeared    John Olivarri/Mayor , to me know to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument, as Mayor of the City of Osage Beach, and that seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal 

of the City of Osage Beach and this instrument was signed and the seal affixed by the authority of its Board of 

Aldermen, and said  John Olvarri   acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of 

the city of Osage Beach.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand an affixed my official seal in the county and Ste 

aforesaid, the day and year last written above. 

 

My term of office as Notary Public will expire      . 

 

 

 

            

       Notary Public 
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Quitclaim Deed 
 

 This indenture, made on the ______day of     , 2019, by and 
between City of Osage Beach, of the County of Camden, State of Missouri, parties of the 
first part, and _____________, of the State of ______________, party of the second part. 
(Mailing address of said party of the first part is: (1000 City Parkway, Osage Beach, 
MO, 65065) 
 
Witnesseth, that the said party of the first part, in the consideration of the sum of ten and 
no/100 dollars, and other valuable considerations, to them paid by the said party of the 
second part, and the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these presents, 
REMISE, RELEASE and FOREVER QUIT CLAIM, unto the said party of the second 
part, its successors, heirs and assigns, the following described real estate, lying, being and 
situated in the county of Camden and State of Missouri, to-wit:  
   
       A tract of land lying in the West half of Lot Six (6) of the Northeast quarter of 
Section One (1), Township Thirty-nine (39) North, Range Sixteen (16) West, Camden 
County, Missouri, described as follows:  From an angle Iron which marks the Southeast 
corner of the West half of Lot Six (6) of Section On (1), Township Thirty-nine (39) North, 
Range Sixteen (16) West, run North along the East line of the West half of Lot Six (6) of the 
Northeast quarter of said Section One (1), 53.01 feet to an iron pin for the point of 
beginning; thence continue North along said East line 67.00 feet to an iron pin; thence 
leaving said East line South 81 degrees 15 minutes West 98.89 feet to the centerline of a 30 
foot road; thence following said centerline South 01 degrees 53 minutes West 61.05 feet; 
thence leaving said centerline North 84 degrees 48 minutes East 100.50 feet to the point of 
beginning.  SAVE AND EXCEPT all that portion of the above described tract of land which 
lies within the right-of-way of said 30 foot road. 
 
SAVE AND EXCEPT: 

A 5.0 foot wide strip of land, said strip being a part of a tract of land as described in Book 
214, at Page 496, Camden County records, Camden County, Missouri, said tract being a 
part of Section One (1), Township Thirty-nine (39) North, Range Sixteen (16) West, 
Camden County, Missouri, said strip being to the right of and parallel and adjacent to the 
following described line: 

Beginning at the Southwest corner of said tract as described in Book 214, Page 496, said 
corner being the corner common to the south line of said tract and the easterly line of a 30 
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foot road as shown on the plat of “BUENA VISTA HEIGHTS”, a subdivision of record in 
Camden County, Missouri; thence North 02 degrees 56 minutes 27 seconds East along the 
easterly right of way line of said road 61.99 feet, to the northly line of said tract, and the end 
of said strip. 

Bearings relative to Missouri State Plans Coord. System, Central Zone. 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME, with all the rights, immunities, privileges 
and appurtenances thereto belonging, unto the said party of the second part and unto its 
heirs and assigns forever; so that neither the said party of the first part nor its heirs or 
assigns, nor any other person or persons, for whom or in whose name or behalf, shall or 
will hereinafter claim or demand any right or title to the aforesaid premises or any part 
thereof, but they and each of them shall, by these presents, be excluded and forever 
barred.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said party of the first part has caused these presents to 
be signed as of the day and year first above written.   

 
Signed and executed this _______ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
X       ATTEST: 
 

John Olivarri, Mayor 
            

       City Clerk 
       (SEAL) 
STATE OF     

COUNTY OF     

 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared John Olivarri, 
personally known to me to be the Mayor of Osage Beach whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he is the Mayor of Osage Beach and 
acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.  
 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the ________day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ My Commission Expires:  

Notary Public 
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Quitclaim Deed 
 

 This indenture, made on the ______day of     , 2019, by and 
between City of Osage Beach, of the County of Camden, State of Missouri, parties of the 
first part, and _____________   , of the State of ______________, 
party of the second part. (Mailing address of said party of the first part is: (1000 City 
Parkway, Osage Beach, MO, 65065) 
 
Witnesseth, that the said party of the first part, in the consideration of the sum of ten and 
no/100 dollars, and other valuable considerations, to them paid by the said party of the 
second part, and the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these presents, 
REMISE, RELEASE and FOREVER QUIT CLAIM, unto the said party of the second 
part, its successors, heirs and assigns, the following described real estate, lying, being and 
situated in the county of Camden and State of Missouri, to-wit:  
   
       An undivided 1/5 Interest in all that part of the West half of Lot 6 of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section 1, Township 39 North, Range 16 West, Camden 
County, Missouri, described as follows:  From an angle iron which marks the 
Southeast corner of the West Half of Lot 6 of Section 1, Township 39 North, Range 
16 West, run North along the East line of the West Half of Lot 6 of said Section 1, 
681.01 feet to an iron pin; thence leaving said East line South 59 degrees 07 minutes 
West 46.43 feet to an iron pin; thence North 18 degrees 39 minutes West 204.10 feet 
to an iron pin; thence North 54 degrees 28 minutes East 15.67 feet to a spike in the 
centerline of a 20 foot road for the point of beginning:  thence North 54 degrees 28 
minutes East 13.00 feet to an iron pin; thence South 63 degrees 46 minutes East 
40.00 feet to an iron pin; thence North 39 degrees 38 minutes East 22.13 feet to an 
iron pin at the shoreline of the Lake of the Ozarks; thence following said shoreline 
in a Northwesterly direction 60.00 feet, more or less to an iron pin which bears 
North 70 degrees 13 minutes East 47.83 feet and  North 33 degrees 50 minutes West 
40.00 from the point of beginning; thence leaving said shoreline, run South 70 
degrees 13 minutes West 47.83 feet to the centerline of said 20 foot road; thence 
following said centerline South 33 degrees 50 minutes East 40.00 feet to the point of 
beginning.  SAVE AND EXCEPT all that portion of the above described tract of 
land which lies within the right of way of said 20 foot road.   
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ALSO, conveying the right of ingress and egress over the existing roadway running 
to the above described land.   
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME, with all the rights, immunities, privileges 
and appurtenances thereto belonging, unto the said party of the second part and unto its 
heirs and assigns forever; so that neither the said party of the first part nor its heirs or 
assigns, nor any other person or persons, for whom or in whose name or behalf, shall or 
will hereinafter claim or demand any right or title to the aforesaid premises or any part 
thereof, but they and each of them shall, by these presents, be excluded and forever 
barred.   
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said party of the first part has caused these presents to 
be signed as of the day and year first above written.   

 
Signed and executed this _______ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
X       ATTEST: 
 

John Olivarri, Mayor 
            

       City Clerk 
       (SEAL) 
 
STATE OF     

COUNTY OF     

 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared John Olivarri, 
personally known to me to be the Mayor of Osage Beach whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he is the Mayor of Osage Beach and 
acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.  
 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the ________day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
__________________________________________________ My Commission Expires:  

Notary Public 
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   
Date Submitted: 06/07/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-40 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, vacating a portion of the Right of Way of 
Valley View Drive. 

 
Presented by: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   

 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #    

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill # 19-40 Other (Describe) 

Resolution #    
 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

State Statute 88.673 requires Board of Aldermen approval on the Vacation of Public Right of Way. 
 
 

Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-40, Location Map, Petition for Vacation 

✔ 

✔ 

46



Department Comments and Recommendation: 

Applicant: Ted Ave 
 

Location: Osage Beach Parkway South to Valley View Drive 

Petition: Right of Way vacation for portion of Valley View Drive 

Existing Uses: Excess Right of Way 

Tract Size: .07 Acres 

Analysis: 

1) The applicants own the land adjacent to the requested vacation property. 
 

2) The applicants are asking that the City of Osage Beach vacate a portion of the existing right of way that is 
Valley View Drive. 

 
3) The City of Osage Beach has no infrastructure currently in the ROW. 

 
4) The Public Works Department has no apparent issues with the approval of this vacation. 

 
This item was presented to the Planning Commission on May 14, 2019, and recommendation to the Board of 
Aldermen for approval of the request to vacate was made. 

 
The Public Works Department recommends approval 

 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

The first reading was read and passed by the Board of Aldermen on June 6, 2019. 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-40 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

I concur with the Public Works Director's recommendation. 
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BILL NO. 19-40                                           ORDINANCE NO. 19.40 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, VACATING A PORTION OF THE RIGHT 
OF WAY OF VALLEY VIEW DRIVE. 
     
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. That the Board of Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach, do hereby find and declare that a petition 
was filed with the City Planner of the City of Osage Beach from Ted Ave requesting that the portion of the road 
described as follows be vacated: 
 

Part of a platted roadway as shown on the plat of Valley View Estates, a subdivision as recorded in Plat 
Book 82 at Page 3, Camden County, Missouri, described as follows: 
Commencing at a ½ inch rebar which marks the Southeast corner of Lot 1 of said Valley View Estates at 
the westerly right-of-way of Osage Beach Parkway South, thence North 31°10'24” East along said right-
of-way, a distance of 7.59 feet; thence on a curve to the right, said curve having a radius of 1003.90 feet, 
a chord bearing North 32°21'14” East for 37.13 feet, an arc length of 37.13 feet to the centerline of said 
platted roadway and the Point of Beginning of the vacation herein described; thence leaving said right-of-
way and following said centerline, North 59°56'00” West, a distance of 18.65 feet; thence on a curve to 
the right, said curve having a radius of 108.94 feet, a chord bearing North 31°39'26” West for 103.21 feet, 
an arc length of 107.53 feet to the present easterly right-of-way of Valley Drive; thence leaving said 
centerline 
and following said right-of-way, North 31°54'02” East, a distance of 64.03 to the intersection of the 
northerly right-of-way of said platted roadway; thence leaving said easterly right-of-way of present 
Valley Drive and following said platted northerly right-of-way on a curve to the left, said curve having a 
radius of 88.94 feet, a chord bearing South 13°39'04” East for 128.56 feet, an arc length of 143.69 feet; 
thence North 33°09'41”East, a distance of 10.01 feet; thence South 59°57'10” East, a distance of 20.32 
feet, returning to the westerly right-of-way of said Osage Beach Parkway South; thence leaving said 
northerly right-of-way and following said westerly right-of-way on a curve to the left, said curve having a 
radius of 1003.9 feet, a chord bearing South 34°16'45” West for 30.08 feet, an arc length of 30.08 feet to 
the Point of Beginning. Containing 2906.73 Square Feet or 0.07 Acres.  
 

 Section 2.  That the Board of Aldermen finds that the City of Osage Beach Planning Commission has fully 
approved adoption of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 3.  That the vacation of the road will not adversely affect adjacent properties or property owners in the 
immediate vicinity and is of no further use to the City. 

 
Section 4.  That the right-of-way described in Section 1 be and the same is hereby vacated. 
 
Section 5.  That the City Clerk of Osage Beach, Missouri, be and is hereby authorized and directed to 

acknowledge this ordinance as deeds are acknowledged, and to cause this ordinance to be filed for record in the 
Recorder’s Office in Camden County, Missouri. 

 
Section 6.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are, in so much as they 

conflict with this ordinance, hereby repealed. 
 
Section 7.  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of passage.   

 
READ FIRST TIME:  June 6, 2019     READ SECOND TIME:   
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Bill No. 19-40                                        Ordinance No. 19.40 
Page 2    

 
 

I hereby certify that Ordinance No. 19.40 was duly passed on   , by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Osage 
Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  

 
Ayes:  Nays:   Abstentions:   Absent:   

 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  
 
 
________________    ___________________________________  
Date         Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
I hereby APPROVE Ordinance No. 19.40.  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      John Olivarri, Mayor 
____________________________ 
Date 
 
ATTEST: 
      ___________________________________ 
      Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
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Bill No. 19-40                                        Ordinance No. 19.40 
Page 3    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN ) 
 
On this        day of         , 2019, before, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared, Tara Berreth, to 

me known, who being duly sworn, did say that she is the City Clerk of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, a municipal 

corporation, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing Ordinance is the municipal seal of the City of Osage Beach,, and 

that said Ordinance was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Aldermen, and 

said Tara Berreth acknowledge said Ordinance to be the free act and deed of said municipality. 

 

IN WITHNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in Osage Beach, 

Missouri, the day and year last written above. 

 
       Notary Public 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Dorothy Urlicks 
 
 
 
Seal: 
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The Professional Surveyor's seal affixed to this sheet applies

only to material and items as shown on this sheet.  All drawings,

instruments, or other documents not exhibiting this seal shall

not be considered prepared by this Surveyor, and this Surveyor

expressly disclaims any and all responsibility for such plans,

drawings or documents not exhibiting this seal.

R-W Vaca-B

Section Line

AJK RFA

N/A

Part of a platted roadway as shown on the plat of Valley View Estates, a subdivision as

recorded in Plat Book 82 at Page 3, Camden County, Missouri, described as follows:

Commencing at a ½ inch rebar which marks the Southeast corner of Lot 1 of said Valley View

Estates at the westerly right-of-way of Osage Beach Parkway South, thence North 31°10'24”

East along said right-of-way, a distance of 7.59 feet; thence on a curve to the right, said curve

having a radius of 1003.90 feet, a chord bearing North 32°21'14” East for 37.13 feet, an arc

length of 37.13 feet to the centerline of said platted roadway and the Point of Beginning of the

vacation herein described; thence leaving said right-of-way and following said centerline, North

59°56'00” West, a distance of 18.65 feet; thence on a curve to the right, said curve having a

radius of 108.94 feet, a chord bearing North 31°39'26” West for 103.21 feet, an arc length of

107.53 feet to the present easterly right-of-way of Valley Drive; thence leaving said centerline

and following said right-of-way, North 31°54'02” East, a distance of 64.03 to the intersection of

the northerly right-of-way of said platted roadway; thence leaving said easterly right-of-way of

present Valley Drive and following said platted northerly right-of-way on a curve to the left, said

curve having a radius of 88.94 feet, a chord bearing South 13°39'04” East for 128.56 feet, an

arc length of 143.69 feet; thence North 33°09'41”East, a distance of 10.01 feet; thence South

59°57'10” East, a distance of 20.32 feet, returning to the westerly right-of-way of said Osage

Beach Parkway South; thence leaving said northerly right-of-way and following said westerly

right-of-way on a curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 1003.9 feet, a chord bearing

South 34°16'45” West for 30.08 feet, an arc length of 30.08 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 2906.73 Square Feet or 0.07 Acres.
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1. The Professional Land Surveyor has made no
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or any other facts that an accurate and

current title search may disclose. There may

exist other documents of record or not of

record that may affect this surveyed parcel.
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deed information were obtained from the

County Recorder and/or County Assessor

Office and are considered to be current. The
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Karri Bell, City Treasurer   
Date Submitted: 06/11/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Presentation of the City's 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Williams Keepers, CPA's   
 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #     

Second Reading of Bill #      

Resolution #    

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Other (Describe) 

 Presentation   

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

N/A 
 

Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

N/A 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Auditors Communication Letter 
 

Department Comments and Recommendation: 

N/A 

 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

N/A 

✔ 

✔ 
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City of Osage Beach 
1000 City Parkway • Osage Beach, MO 65065 

Phone [573] 302-2000 • Fax [573] 302-0528 • www.OsageBeach.org 

June 10, 2019 

To the Honorable Mayor, Board of Aldermen and the Citizens of the City of Osage Beach: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri (the City), for the 
fiscal year ended December 3 1, 20 18, is herewith submitted. The informat ion presented in the CAFR is the 
responsibility of the City ' s management. The City Treasurer's Depa11ment prepared this report, responsibility 
for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all 
di sc losures rests with the City. The CAFR conforms to the standards of financial repo11ing as set faith by the 
Governmenta l Accounti ng Standards Board (GASS) and the guidel ines as recommended by the Government 
Finance Officers Association (GFOA). The City Treasurer's Depa1tment believes that the financial 
statements, supp011ing schedules, and statistical information fairly represent the financial condition of the 
City. We fu1ther believe that all presented data is accurate in all aspects and that all necessary disclosures 
have been included to enable the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the City's fin ancial affai rs. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrat ive, overv iew, and ana lys is 
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discuss ion and Analys is (MD&A) . 
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read with it. The City of Osage 
Beach 's MD&A can be found immediately foll owing the repo1t of the independent auditors . 

The Reporting Entity and Its Services 

The City of Osage Beach, organized in 1959, is a fourth-c lass city and political subdivision created and 
existing under the laws of the State of Missouri . The City is approximately I 0 square miles in area and is in 
Camden and Miller Counties, Missouri . The City lies along the shores of the Lake of the Ozarks, one of the 
largest man-made lakes in the world . The City has an estimated permanent population of 4,857; however, it 
is estimated that there are more than I 00,000 people during the peak seasonal periods. The governing body 
consi sts of an elected six-member Board of Aldermen and a Mayor who in turn appoints a City Administrator, 
City Clerk, Police Chief, Building Official, City Treasurer, City Planner, Public Works Director and City 
Attorney. Aldermen serve two-year terms, with three members elected every year. The Mayor is elected fo r 
a two-year term . 

The City provides a fu ll range of municipal serv ices including streets, water, sewer, airpo11s, engineering, 
public safety, ambulance services, and genera l administration. 

The City offers its res idents and visitors two City parks. Peanick Park is a 13-acre park with two ball fields , 
pavi li ons, basketball cou11s, a wa lking trail and playground facilities. It is located on the no11heast side of 
town on Highway 42. The Osage Beach City Park is a 92-ac re park surro unded by the Lake of the Ozarks 
and the Lake of the Ozarks State Park; it is located off Hatchery Road adjacent to the outlet mall. The park 
has lake access, a stocked fishing pond (avai lable summer 2019), three soccer fields, sand vo lleyball cou11s, 
th ree pavilions, a playground and a Spo11s Comp lex complete with three 300' baseball/softbal l fields and 
concess ion fac ilities. 
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Utility service in the City is mixed between public and private companies. Water and sanitary sewerage 
utilities are operated by the City of Osage Beach. Water and sewerage rates are established to meet the 
total revenue requirements of the utilities. Natural gas is supplied by Summit Natural Gas of Missouri, 
electricity by Ameren Missouri. Both traditional and cellular phone service is provided by numerous 
companies. 

Although legally separate from the City, the financial statements include its component units. The 
component unit is the Tax Increment Financing Districts responsible for encouraging development of 
commercial enterprises in the District. The Districts are fiscally dependent upon the City because the 
City must approve any debt issuances. 

Accounting System and Budgetary Control 

The diversity of governmental operations and the necessity for legal compliance preclude recording and 
summation of all financial transactions in a single accounting entity. The City's accounting system is 
therefore organized and operated on a fund basis, wherein each fund is a distinct and separate self­
balancing entity. 

The City's financial records utilize two bases of accounting. The modified accrual basis is followed by 
the governmental funds. Under this basis, revenues are recognized when measurable and available, and 
expenditures are recorded when the fund liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt. The 
accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal accounting controls governing the financial transactions and records of the City. Internal 
controls are designed and developed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 
transactions are properly executed and recorded in line with management's policy and generally 
accepted accounting princip Jes. 

Budgetary control is maintained at the fund level. 

Local Economy 

The City of Osage Beach is recognized as both a retail center and a tourist destination and we pride 
ourselves in being the heart of Lake of the Ozarks. The Lake of the Ozarks was awarded Best 
Recreational Lake by USA Today readers. Osage Beach is part of the ever-growing and popular lake 
community, supporting a vital economy along with growing diversity in its economic base. While both 
population and local economic activity continue to peak in the summer season, the increasing number of 
second homeowners, the expansion in retail goods and the promotion of non-peak activities is 
smoothing out the sharpness of the peaks. 

Long-term Financial Planning and Policies 

On December 1, 2016, the Board of Aldern1en approved Bill 16-85 - Ordinance of the City establishing 
Section 135.020.C. Reserves. This section was added to the City's code of ordinances adopting reserve 
target levels for most funds. The Reserve Policy outlines fund reserve target levels for the General 
Fund, Transportation Fund, Water and Sewer Combined Funds, Lee C. Fine Airport Fund and the Grand 
Glaize Airp01i Fund. 

Capital expansion projects that are not funded through debt service but are high on the priority list are in 
the current year's budget. If the project lacks enough funds, the project will be carried into the next 
year's budget with funds added until enough funds are available to complete the project. 

11 
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Reporting Standards and Formats 

The standards used to formulate and present the content of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
were set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which incorporates the 
statements and interpretations of the National Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) until 
modification is deemed necessary. The GASB has also promulgated acceptance of certain standards as 
set by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) in the guide for "Audits of State 
and Local Governmental Units." Guidance for illustrative interpretation was obtained by use of the 2012 
"Governmental Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting" (GAAFR), published by the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). 

Future Major Initiatives 

On November 1, 2018, the Board approved a professional services agreement to provide a 
comprehensive analysis of the City's law enforcement services for a cost of $43,650, plus travel 
expenses not to exceed $4,000. The final rep01i is expected in the spring of 2019. 

On December 20, 2018, the Board approved a professional services agreement to provide Information 
Technology support, not to exceed $30,000. The projects include terminal replacement, anti-virus 
software deployment, licensing upgrades, network security assessment, etc. 

The Board approved engineering services for Mace Road Phase II. This project includes curb and 
gutter, sidewalks, and enclosed storm drainage. The Board approved a reconstruction contract for Mace 
Road from the end of City maintenance to the Aver Road intersection which includes building a round­
a-bout at the end of Mace Road. This project and phase II will be complete in 2019. 

TSG Osage Beach, LLC Tax Increment Financing (TIF) - City Ordinance 17.43 adopted the TSG 
Osage Beach, LLC TIF Plan as amended with recommendations from the Osage Beach TIF 
Commission on May 11, 2018. The project will redevelop the 13. 71-acre site previously known as The 
Golden Door Motel,.Jake's Steak and Fish restaurant and two abandoned single-family homes. The 
financing proposed for this TIF is a "pay as you go" plan. The developer's investment is proposed to be 
$30,500,000. The approved reimbursable project cost is estimated at $4,550,000 which is 14.9% of the 
total project costs. This project is expected to start in 2019. 

Park and Recreation - Peanick Park will complete a basketball cowi, pavilion and lower field dugout 
replacement in 2019. The total cost of these project is $149,779. These projects will be reimbursed 
45% through the Land and Water Conservation Fund. 

Transportation - Street improvement projects, including engineering, land purchases, and streetlights, 
totaling $2, 167 ,898, are included in the 2019 budget. This includes various land purchases, street lights, 
Mace Road Phase II ($265,500), Dude Ranch Sidewalk/Trail ($446,378), sidewalk projects that are 
grant reimbursable ($722,000), Zebra Connector and extension of Osage Beach Parkway. In a joint 
effort with the City, the Special Road District will reimburse the City $450,000 for projects that benefit 
the District (Rowan Road, Dorothy Lane and miscellaneous projects). The City provides the 
administrative and engineering services and the Special Road District provides the construction funds 
for the various projects. 

Public Works - Water, Sewer and Transpo1iation will share in the purchase of a 1h ton pickup truck, 
rock breaker and track skid steer. 

Water-Maintenance of the City's water system will include water tower cleaning at Bluff Tower. 

lll 
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Water projects, including engineering and land purchases totaling $776,675, are included in the 2019 
budget. This includes west side water well construction ($650,000), new connections and extension of 
service to Antioch Lane. 

Sewer projects, including engineering and land purchases totaling $273,500, are included in the 2019 
budget. This includes various lift station improvements, Rockwood Court extension, new connections 
at Antioch Lane, and inflow/infiltration improvements. 

Lee C. Fine Airport - On February 15, 2018, the Board of Aldermen approved a grant agreement with 
the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission for Lee C Fine Airpo1i Taxiway Phase II Project 
17-46-B. This grant will reimburse the City 90% of engineering and project costs. The engineering was 
complete in 2018 at a cost of $171,068. The project was awarded in 2018 ($1,698,982) and is scheduled 
to start and be completed in 2019. 

Economy-The lake area, including the City of Osage Beach, has been awarded both the 2018 
(successfully executed) and 2020 Can-Am Police Fire Games. Roughly 1,200 participants will come to 
the Lake from across the United States and Canada to participate in various competitive events. This is 
confirmation that the City of Osage Beach and the lake area continues to grow and attract new visitors. 

Single Audit 

The City of Osage Beach is required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conformity with the 
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and related amendments and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, if the City spends $750,000 or more in federal funding. In 2018, the 
City spent $601,017 in federal funds; therefore, a Single Audit was not performed, no separate report 
was required. 

Independent Audit 

The City's financial statements have been audited by Williams Keepers LLC, a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants. The purpose of the audit conducted by Williams Keepers was to review and provide 
reasonable assurance that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, 
are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the government-wide and fund financial statements; assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. The auditors gave an unmodified opinion for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, which can be found in the first report in the financial section of this document. 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Osage Beach for its Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Rep01i for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. This was the nineteenth year that 
the City of Osage Beach has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. This repmi must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another ce1iificate. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Osage Beach, Missouri 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, and each major fund of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri 
(the City), as of and for the year ended December 31 , 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City ' s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit al so includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the fin ancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtain ed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants I Missouri Society of Certified Pub lic Accountants I Member, All inial Global 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented 
component unit and each major fund of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, as of December 31, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis, the 
budgetary comparison schedules, and the OPES schedules as listed in the accompanying table of contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a paii of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Osage Beach's basic financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

June 10, 2019 
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City of Osage Beach, Missouri 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2018 

This section of the City of Osage Beach's annual financial rep01i presents a review of the City's financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter, the basic financial statements and the 
accompanying notes to those financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the City of Osage Beach exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 
$92, 131,534 (net position). Of this amount, $7 ,990,853 (unrestricted net position) may be used to 
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• The City's total net position decreased $637 ,94 7 from 2017. This is a combined total of a decrease of 
$1,988,026 from the City's governmental activities and an increase of $1,3 50,079 from the business­
type activities. 

• The overall decrease (4%) in governmental activities was due to a 6% increase in net expenses versus 
a 2% increase in revenue. One of the areas of expense increase was transportation asphalt overlay, 
seal and striping projects during the year, a $782,492 increase compared to 2017. 

• The increase in business-type activities of $1,350,079 (3%) was due to State Block Grant funding 
from the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission for the pavement overlay at Grand 
Glaize Airport, moderate increases in transfers from the governmental funds, and increases in charges 
for services provided. 

• The City's gross sales tax (on the cash basis) decreased 2% from $4,861, 163 in fiscal year 2017 
(General Fund) to $4,765,894 in fiscal year 2018. 

• On February 15, 2018, the City approved City Ordinance 18.10 to execute a cooperative agreement 
with the Osage Beach Commons Community Improvement District. 

• To promote economic development, the City continued its partnership for a fourth year with the Tri­
County Lodging Association to promote the City of Osage Beach through an advertising campaign. 
The City held white goods recycling events, hosted the 4th Annual Easter Egg Hunt in pa1inership 
with First Family Church, hosted the 2nct Annual National Night Out and hosted the 18111 Annual Fall 
Festival. 

• The City charges a Sewer Development Charge. This permit charge is based on one equivalent 
dwelling unit ( l EDU) and nine different Benefit Areas. All Benefit Area charges remained 
unchanged during the year. 

• The City supp01ied events through the "Community Event Support Program." During the year, the 
City supported Bikefest, Aquapalooza, Veteran's Day Parade and Pop's Concert for a total of $8,750. 

• The City's Transp01iation Department completed maintenance projects including slurry seal, asphalt 
overlay and road striping throughout the City, totaling $981,826. 

• The City received a settlement payment from Ameren Missouri in the amount of $45, 178. This is a 
final payment for a class action lawsuit about gross receipts taxes. 

• The City completed a Water Master Plan at a cost of $90,000. The plan was presented to the Board 
of Alden11en on March 22, 2018. The plan is for 20 years and includes a priority list for 
improvements, potential growth rates and the need for additional water storage. 
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• The Osage Beach Special Road District contributed a total of $207,228 during the year to assist with 
Mace Road, Cit-y sidewalk projects and reconstructing of private roads for acceptance to the City. 
During the year, the Board of Aldermen approved assisting the Road District with engineering 
services for Rowan Road and Ledges Drive roadway improvements. The Road District provides the 
funding for the construction of these projects. 

• On January 4, 2018, the Board approved the extension of its long-term agreement with the Osage 
Beach Fire Protection District to provide dispatching services. 

• On March 22, 2018, the Board approved a resolution to issue notice pursuant to section 260.247 of 
the Revised Statutes of Missouri, to all entities providing commercial and residential trash service 
within the City and to direct staff to investigate all options available to the City for efficient provision 
of trash collection services. Notification letters to providers were dated April 1, 2018. 

• The Board of Aldermen approved an Amendment to the Lee C. Fine Airport Lease Agreement to 
transfer the existing residential structure to the Depa1tment of Natural Resources. After nearly 20-
years of leasing the residential structure to City employees and performing normal maintenance, the 
structure became in need of extensive repair or demolition. 

• During the year ended December 31, 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB). 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial reports consist of the management's discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, 
required supplementary information and other information. 

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City. The 
first statements are government-wide financials that provide both long-term and shmt-tenn information about 
the City's overall financial status. These statements are prepared on a full accrual basis of accounting to 
present information in a more corporate-like presentation on individual parts of the government. The 
remaining statements are the fund financials that focus on individual parts of tbe City government and repmi 
more detail. 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

I I 
Management's Basic 

Discussion and Financial 
Analysis Statements 

I I 
Government- Fund Notes to the 

Wide Financial Basic 
Financial Statements Financial 

Statements Statements 
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Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are government-wide financial statements 
(Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities). The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's finances, similar in format to a financial 
statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term 
information about the City's financial status. 

The next statements are the fund financial statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual paiis of the City's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide 
statements. There are two pa1is to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental funds statements and 2) 
the proprietary funds statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes to the basic financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, 
required supplementary information is provided to show details about the City's performance relative to the 
budget and schedules of other post-employment benefits. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements present the financial picture of the City from the economic 
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. The statements present governmental 
activities and business-type activities, as well as the City's component unit separately. These statements 
include certain infrastructure as well as all known liabilities (including long-term debt). Additionally, certain 
eliminations have occurred as prescribed by the statement regarding inter-fund activity, payables and 
receivables. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities repoti the City's net position and the resulting 
changes. Net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows ofresources, which is one way to measure the City's financial health or financial assets. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position is a useful indicator of whether its financial 
position is improving or deteriorating. Other non-financial factors to consider when assessing the overall 
health of the City are changes in the City's sales tax base and the condition of the City's capital assets (roads, 
buildings, and water and sewer lines). 

The Statement of Activities distinguishes the City's functions that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
potiion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). 

Governmental activities -Most of the City's basic services are reported in this category, including General 
Administration, Finance, Public Safety, Transportation and Parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, user fees, 
interest income, and grants finance these activities. 

Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover most of the cost of services it 
provides. The Combined Water and Sewer Fund, Ambulance Fund, Lee C. Fine Airp01i Fund and Grand 
Glaize Airpoti Fund are reported in this activity. 

Component Unit - The City's component unit activities are re po tied in this category. 
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Fund Financial Statements 

The City uses two types of funds to manage its resources: governmental funds and proprietary funds. A fund 
is a fiscal entity with a set of self-balancing accounts recording financial resources, together with all related 
current liabilities and residual equities and balances, and the changes therein. These accounting entities are 
separated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining cetiain objectives in accordance with 
regulations, restrictions or limitations. 

Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows in to and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. 
These funds are repo1ied using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures 
cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund financial 
statements provide a detailed sho1i-term view of the City's general governmental operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent soon to finance the City's programs. The relationships or differences of 
activities reported in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements versus that reported in the government­
wide financial statements are explained in the reconciliation schedules following the governmental fund 
financial statements. 

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides to cover the cost of 
operations, these activities are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are rep01ied in the 
same way that all activities are reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities. In fact, the City's proprietary funds are the same as the business-type activities repotied in the 
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows for 
proprietary funds. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary comparison schedules for the 
major governmental funds and schedules of other post-employment benefits. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As mentioned earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the City's financial position. At 
December 31, 2018, the City of Osage Beach's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources by $92, 131,534. The largest po1iion of the City's net position, $74,407,646 
(81 %), reflects its investment in capital assets (i.e. land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The 81 % of capital assets has not changed from 
2017. This reflects the City's balanced approach in spending to operate versus investment in capital assets. 
The City of Osage Beach uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending. Although the City of Osage Beach's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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Statement of Net Position 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2018 and 
December 31, 2017: 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows -

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

Governmental 

Activities 

2018 

$ 9,913,752 

34,915,470 

44,829,222 

2017 

$ 10,159,523 

36,556,436 

46,715,959 

Business-Type 

Activities 

2018 

$ 9,392,250 
53,817,286 

63,209,536 

2017 

$ 9,041,473 

55,524,418 

64,565,891 

Total 

2018 

$ 19,306,002 
88, 732,756 

108,038,758 

2017 

$ 19,200,996 

92,080,854 

111,281,850 

503,711 Deferred charge on refunding 393,811 393,811 503,711 

Other post employment benefits ___ 2--'5,'--83_9_ ------ ------'3,'-82_5_ ------ ____ 2'-'9'"'-66"--4;_ ------
Total deferred outflows 25,839 397,636 503,711 423,475 503,711 

Long-tenn liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows -

221,287 

743,958 

965,245 

196,611 
664,015 

860,626 

12, 145,530 
3,219,767 

15,365,297 

14,841,780 

3,324,259 

18,166,039 

12,366,817 

3,963,725 

16,330,542 

15,038,391 
3,988,274 

19,026,665 

Other post employment benefits ______________ 15_7_ ------ _____ 15-'7- ------

Total deferred inflows 157 157 

Net position 

Net investment in 

capital assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

34,915,470 
6,476,810 

2,497,536 

$ 43,889,816 

Net position, ending (as originally reported) 

Effect of prior period adjustment 

36,556,436 
6,927,365 

2,371,532 

$ 45,855,333 

39,492, 176 

3,256,225 
5,493,317 

$ 48,241,718 

38,703,040 
3,211,266 

4,989,257 

$ 46,903,563 

74,407,646 
9,733,035 

7,990,853 

$ 92,131,534 

75,259,476 

10, 138,631 
7,360,789 

$ 92,758,896 

$ 92, 131,534 $ 92,758,896 

10,585 

Net position, ending (as restated) $ 92,131,534 $ 92,769,481 

Overall, assets decreased primarily due to an increase in net expenses and flat revenue in the governmental 
funds. Capital assets decreased $3 ,348,098 as a result of depreciation expense exceeding additions for 2018. 
Total long-term liabilities decreased $2,671,574 (18%), primarily as a result of principal payments on the 
City's water and sewer bonds. The City's unrestricted net position for governmental activities was 
$2,497 ,536. Total unrestricted net position was $7 ,990,853, including business-type activities. Unrestricted 
net position increased $630,064; 80% of the increase was in business-type activities. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City reports positive balances in al 1 categories of net position for the 
City, both per fund and in total. The City's combined net position decreased to $92, 131,534 from 
$92,758,896. This small decrease of 0.68% reflects the City's consistent management of financial resources. 
Total net position of $92, 131,534 is comprised of $74,407,646 invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 
$9,733,035 restricted for capital projects, debt service and other purposes; $2,497,536 unrestricted and 
available for general governmental purposes and $5,493,317 unrestricted and available for the City's 
business-type activities. 
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The "Effect of prior period adjustment" is due to the City's implementation of GASB Statement 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB). 

Change in Net Position 

The following table reflects the revenues and expenses from the City's activities for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 

Revenues: 

Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 513,760 $ 488,755 $ 5,748,200 $ 5,457,707 $ 6,261,960 $ 
Operating grants and contributions 21,630 54,362 428,331 487,820 449,961 
Capital grants and contributions 297,555 362,027 582,118 1,782,273 879,673 

General revenues: 

Sales taxes 9,476,784 9,428,003 9,476,784 
Franchise taxes 1,063,470 938,888 1,063,470 

Other taxes 246,284 246,028 246,284 

Unrestricted investment earnings 112,734 55,480 120,127 55,940 232,861 
Other revenues 414,193 458,335 27,610 12,174 441,803 
Sales of capital assets 2,861 28,080 2,487 2,059 5,348 
Total revenues 12,149,271 12,059,958 6,908,873 7,797,973 19,058,144 

Expenses: 

General government 2,934,961 2,986,937 2,934,961 

Public safety 3,141,925 3,081,476 3, 141,925 

Streets and highways 4,296,076 3,679,606 4,296,076 

Parks and recreation 669,858 614,335 669,858 

Information technology 492,477 527,030 492,477 

Water and sewer 5,363,483 5,664,709 . 5,363,483 

Ambulance 584,394 585,358 584,394 

Airport 1,555,938 1,147,180 1,555,938 

Interest - long term debt 656,979 788,175 656,979 

Total expenses 11,535,297 10,889,384 8,160,794 8,185,422 19,696,091 

Change in net position 

before transfers 613,974 1,170,574 (1,251,921) (387,449) (637,9.t7) 

Transfers (2,602,000) (2,431,000) 2,602,000 2,431,000 

Change in net position (1,988,026) ( 1,260,426) 1,350,079 2,043,551 (637,947) 

Net position, beginning (as restated) 45,877,842 47,115,759 46,891,639 44,860,012 92,769,481 

Net position, ending $ 43,889,816 $ 45,855,333 $ 48,241,718 $ 46,903,563 $ 92,131,534 

Net position, ending (as originally reported) $ 92, 131,534 

Effect of prior period adjustment 

Net position, ending (as restated) $ 92, 131,534 

Governmental Activities 

2017 

5,946,462 
542,182 

2, 144,300 

9,428,003 
938,888 
246,028 
111,420 
470,509 

30,139 
19,857,931 

2,986,937 
3,081,476 
3,679,606 

614,335 
527,030 

5,664,709 
585,358 

1,147,180 
788,175 

19,074,806 

783,125 

783,125 
91,975,771 

$ 92,758,896 

$ 92,758,896 
10,585 

$ 92,769,481 

Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by $1,988,026 primarily due to increases in 
expenses (6%). Expenses increased in the streets and highways due to an increase in maintenance projects. 
The program revenues decreased $72, 199 primarily due to sidewalk projects being on-hold for the year. The 
City is expecting grant funding for its Phase V sidewalk projects in 2019. Charges for services increased 5% 
from $488,755 in 2017 to $513, 760 in 2018. The overall increase of $25,005 is primarily due to increases in 
franchise taxes that include a one-time settlement payment ($45, 178) and an increase in park fees. The City 
started administrating the youth baseball program for the community; the goal is to break even on increases in 
revenue to offset the cost of adrnin istrating the program. Sales tax revenue, the City's largest general 
revenue, was $9,476,784. Sales tax revenue was 1 % more (on the accrual basis) than the total of $9,428,003 
in 2017. Interest revenue increased 103%, from $55,480 in 2017 to $112,734 in 2018. Interest rates on the 
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City's certificates of deposit increased from an average of0.75% in 2017 to a range of0.85% to 2.73% during 
2018. Other revenues decreased $44, 142, or 10%. Other revenues consist of payments from enterprise funds, 
reimbursements from TIF developers, insurance settlements and rental of public property. The City received 
$3,325 from the TSG (Osage Beach Commons) developer to reimburse the City for costs associated with the 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) proposal. Revenues totaled $19,070,277 (governmental and business-type). 
Revenues from governmental activities totaled $12, 161,404, or 64% of total City revenues. 

Governmental activities expenses increased $645,913, or 6% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, 
compared to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. The largest increase in expenses was in the streets and 
highways activities. Along with a substantial increase in maintenance projects, the streets and highways 
activities began to make transfers to the City airports. This year $137,000 was transferred to Grand Glaize 
Airport to assist with the cost of a pavement project. Expenses for public safety increased $60,449 but 
expenses in general government decreased $51,976. Some of the decreases of expenses in general 
government related to fewer grant projects completed in the City parks. 

The following table shows expenses and program revenues of the governmental activities for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. The purpose of this statement is to measure gross expenses against charges for services 
and grants and other funding. 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
NET COST OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Total Cost of Net Cost of 
Service Service 

General government $ 2,934,961 $ 2,640,480 
Public safety 3,141,925 2,941,025 
Parks and recreation 669,858 629,849 
Information technology 492,477 492,477 
Streets and highways 4,296,076 3,998,521 

Total cost $ 11,535,297 $ 10,702,352 

As previously noted, expenses from governmental activities totaled $11,535,297. However, net costs of these 
services were $10, 702,3 52. The difference represents direct revenues received from charges for services of 
$513,760, operating grants of$21,630 and capital grants and contributions of $297,555. Operating grants and 
contributions include overtime reimbursements associated with DWI programs and contributions for the 
City's events. Net costs of services increased $718, 112 from last year due to a combined increase in cost of 
services provided (6%), an increase of charges for services of $25,005 (5%) and a decrease of capital grants 
received of $64,472 (18%). 

The "Effect of prior period adjustment" is due to the City's implementation of GASB Statement 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB). 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities net position increased by $1,35 0,079. Program revenue decreased $969, 151 (13%) 
and total expenses decreased $24,628 (0.3%) compared to the prior year. Capital grants and contributions 
decreased $1,200, 155, or 67% due to less construction costs at Grand Glaize Airport for a pavement project. 
The maintenance/pavement project did not add to the City's fixed asset inventory. Water and Sewer State 
Revolving grants (interest subsidy) were less due to the decline of principal balance. Charges for services 
increased $290,493 (5%) from $5,457.707 in 2017 to $5,748,200 in 2018. Charges for services revenue 
increased 10% for Ambulance and increased 19% for Lee C. Fine and Grand Glaize airports combined. The 
increase at the airpotis was primarily associated with fuel sales which were matched with an increase in the 
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cost of fuel purchased. Water/Sewer increased 2%; this increase is primarily due to an increase in users and 
gallons of water sold. Total expenses decreased $24,628 (0.3% ), from $8, 185,422 in 2017 to $8, 160,794 in 
2018. Water and sewer had a net decrease of 6%, interest and financial services costs decreased by $130,584. 

The "Effect of prior period adjustment" is due to the City's implementation of GASB Statement 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Bene.fits Other than Pensions (OP EB). 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S MAJOR FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City of Osage Beach uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate comp I iance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City of Osage Beach's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Osage Beach's 
financial requirements. 

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Osage Beach. The General Fund 
includes legislative expenses, General Administration, City Attorney, Municipal Comi, City Treasurer, City 
Clerk, Building Official, Police, Communications, Parks, Economic Development, Planning and Information 
Technology activities for the City. All these activities are provided to and benefit all the citizens equally and 
equitably. This area tends to work on the quality of life and the protection of the citizens and assets of the 
citizens as a group. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the General Fund was 
$2,801,992, an increase of $165, 196 over the beginning balance of $2,636,796. General Fund total revenue 
increased 2%, sales tax was up 0.1 % and interest earnings were up 92%. Licenses, fines, permits and fees 
were strong for the year with an increase of 5%. General Fund expenses decreased 7% for the year. The 
reduction in expenses for the year was a result of fewer grant projects at the City's parks. The unassigned 
General Fund balance at year-end was $2,613,199. 

Transportation Fund - This fund is established pursuant to the Missouri Constitution A1iicle IV, Section 
30(a)(2) [State Gas Tax], Revised Missouri Statutes 94.745 (City V2 cent sales tax). It is used for 
transportation purposes within the City of Osage Beach. This fund provides for the maintenance and 
expansion of transportation needs of our citizens. Included in this fund are repair and maintenance of the 
existing public road system and upgrades to the local transpo1iation system. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, total fund balance of the Transportation Fund was $5,556,797, a decrease of $307,225 from the 
beginning balance of $5,864,012. Transportation Fund total revenue decreased 4% primarily due to a 
reduction of grant funding associated with sidewalk projects in past years. Expenses increased 13% primarily 
due to an increase in road maintenance projects and the Mace Road round-a-bout construction during the year. 
The Transportation Fund balance was restricted for highways and streets at year-end other than the 
nonspendable po1iion of $8,691 related to prepaid items and $31,000 invested in inventory. The fund balance 
decrease reflects the City's goal to plan, save and complete construction projects. The City spent$ l, 174,953 
in transportation projects across the City. The fund balance remaining will be used for future street/sidewalk 
projects. 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund - This fund is established as required under the Revised Missouri 
Statutes 94.577. The monies collected here are from a V2 cent general sales tax. The Mayor and Board of 
Aldermen, by ordinance, have committed these funds to help offset the debt service cost of the water and 
sewer system. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Osage Beach's Capital Improvement 
Sales Tax Fund reported an ending fund balance of $90 l, 714, a decrease of $1 79 ,8 82 from the beginning 
balance of $1,081,596. The Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund balance was restricted for capital 
improvements/debt service at year-end. The fund balance decrease was primarily clue to increases in transfer 
to the Water Fund; no transfers to made to the Sewer Fund during the year. 
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General Fund Budget Highlights - Each fiscal year, the City formally adopts its budget prior to the 
beginning of the fiscal year. If necessary, the original budget is amended to reappropriate unspent funds 
before the current fiscal year ends. The total original expenditure budget of $7,090,523 was amended to 
$7, 126,845 during the fiscal year. On a budgetary basis, which can be found in the Required Supplementary 
Information, the revenues and other sources compared to expenditures and other uses, resulted in an increase 
of $165, 196 in fund balance. Actual revenue was less than budgeted revenue by $51,682, primarily due to 
sales tax being less than budgeted. Actual expenditures were under the budgeted amount by $710,97 4. Some 
of the reasons for this was a reduction in all areas oflnformation Technology Department due to a change in 
staff, Public Safety vacancies and approved professional services being paid in 2019. 

Proprietary Funds 

Combined Water and Sewer Fund - The Sewer Fund was created in 1985 to track revenue and expenses 
associated with the operation of the sewer system. A City water system was started in 1998 and changed the 
Sewer Fund into a combined fund. This fund was established under the bond ordinances to segment the 
operations of the combined Water and Sewer Fund from other activities of the City. The combined Water and 
Sewer Fund is based on a user fee system where the individuals and businesses utilizing the services pay a fee 
based upon a p01iion of the estimated cost of operation of the water and sewer utilities. This fee is subsidized 
by revenue transferred in from the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund to offset debt service costs. At the 
end of the current fiscal year, total net position of the Water and Sewer Fund was $41, 758,087, an increase of 
$1, 194,265 over the beginning balance of $40,563,822. The increase of net position is a combination of 
several factors including increased charges, less interest expense and increased transfers in from Capital 
Improvement Fund. The unrestricted net position in the Water and Sewer Fund at year-end was $5,330,206. 

Ambulance Fund - This fund was established by Board directive in order to track the costs of ambulance 
service to the citizens of Osage Beach. The City of Osage Beach began operating an ambulance service in 
1984. The fund receives its revenue from user fees. Fees are not enough to cover the cash flow of operation, 
nor do they cover the non-cash cost (depreciation). The differences in cash payouts are made up by transfers 
from General Fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, total net position of the Ambulance Fund was 
$162,655. The unrestricted Ambulance Fund net position at year-end was $92,206, a decrease of $39, 137. 
Charges for services increased 10% and operating expenses remained the same compared to last year. The 
City approved rate increases for all categories of service and added charges for no-transport services. The 
increase in charges took effect January 2018. Although the operating loss was less for the year, transfers from 
General Fund ($265,000) were necessary. 

Lee C. Fine Airport Fund - This fund was established in 1999 by Board directive in order to track the costs 
of airport service to the public. The fund receives its revenue from user fees. The differences in cash payouts 
are made up by transfers from the General Fund or Transpo1iation Fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the total net position balance of the Lee C. Fine Airpoti Fund was $5,308,766, an increase of $215,695 from 
the beginning balance of $5,093,071. The net position increase is a result of a newly constructed taxiway paid 
for with grant funds. The unrestricted net position of the Lee C. Fine Airport Fund at year-end was $61,939. 
No transfers were made to Lee C. Fine airpo1i during the year. 

Grand Glaize Airport Fund - This fund was established in 1999 by Board directive in order to track the 
costs of airpoti services to the public. The fund receives its revenue from user fees. The differences in cash 
payouts are made up by transfers from the General Fund or Transpotiation Fund. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, total net position of the Grand Glaize Airpoti Fund was $1,012,210, a decrease of$20,744 from 
the beginning balance of $1,032,954. The unrestricted net position of Grand Glaize Fund at year-end was 
$8,966. The Transpotiation Fund transferred $137 ,000 to offset the operating loss of $382,951. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The amount invested in capital assets for the City as of December 31, 2018, was $88, 732, 756, net of 
accumulated depreciation. This amount includes all infrastructure assets acquired during 2018 and prior years 
(construction in progress) street infrastructure. Capital assets decreased $3,348,098 or 4% during the year. 
This change reflects a loss of net position in both governmental activities and business-type activities. The 
City is currently investing in capital assets and accepting capital grants/contributions, but not at a pace that 
equaled depreciation during the year. The following chart breaks down the City's capital asset balance into 
various categories of assets. Additional information regarding the City's capital assets can be found in Note 
6. 

Land $ 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 

CAP IT AL ASSETS 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

1,834,178 $ 1,834,178 $ 897,793 $ 897,793 

Total 

2018 2017 

$ 2,731,971 $ 2,731,971 

Construction in progress 658,099 84,261 338,016 2,308,988 996, 115 2,393,249 

Buildings and improvements 7,846,603 7,822,238 8,060,023 6,036,019 15,906,626 13,858,257 

Equipment 3,990,299 4,265,271 l,907,260 1,916,922 5,897,559 6,182, 193 

Infrastructure 57,207,083 56,617,321 57,207,083 56,617,321 

Water system 35,437,586 35,121,567 35,437,586 35,121,567 

Sewer system 59,988,366 59,295,253 59,988,366 59,295,253 

Less accumulated 

depreciation (36,620,792) (34,066,833) (52,811,758) (50,052, 124) (89,432,550) (84, l 18,957) 

Total capital assets $ 34,915,470 $ 36,556,436 $ 53,817,286 $ 55,524,418 $ 88,732,756 $ 92,080,854 

Major capital asset transactions during the year included the following: 

• The Police Department purchased computers and equipment for four police department vehicles in 
the amount of $16,561. This includes laptops, docking stations, mounting equipment, power 
supplies, cradle point modems with software and antennas. 

• Information Technology purchased a file storage service for $94,712. This equipment benefits all City 
departments. 

• The City purchased Executime Payroll Management System that integrates with the current software 
for a total cost of $28,816. This includes our electronic time clocks. This system will move the City 
from paper timesheets to an electronic system that tracks time and leave requests. 

• Peanick Park completed bleacher improvements totaling $10, 124. 

• Osage Beach City Park purchased a field sprayer for $11, 789, three portable pitching mounds for 
$7,775, playground spinner for $4,115, and an 18' trailer for $4,500. 

• For Transportation projects, the City completed engineering and started construction of Mace Road 
round-a-bout, Bentwood Drive improvements, Cedar Village Drive, Apple Blossom and College 
Boulevard storm drain improvements, Barry Prewitt Memorial Drive, Nichols Road and Three 
Seasons Road overlay. 
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• Transportation purchased a new finish mower for $3, 700. 

• Water projects included exterior cleaning of Bluff and Swiss Village towers and painting the 
Columbia Tower for a total of $263,520. Water meters purchased during the year totaled $52,499. 

• For the Sewer Department, the Sands Pump Station project was completed and included concrete, 
structure, pump, pipe and valve improvements totaling $335,600. 

• For the Sewer Depaiiment, various lift-station improvements, upgrades, and purchases of sewer pump 
replacement inventory. The Sewer Department completed a pump project at the Moorings and sewer 
extension on Highway 42, adding $357,544 to capital assets for the year. 

• Sewer purchased a gravity sewer camera to inspect lines for $6,395. 

• Transportation, Water and Sewer combined funds to purchase a vehicle lift for $30,084, a rake 
attachment for their skid steer $8,345 and a hot water pressure washer for $5,715. 

• Engineering for Phase II taxiway reconstruction of the Lee C. Fine Airport was completed during the 
year at a cost of $177,068; 90% of this cost was reimbursed through grant funding. 

• Grand Glaize Airpoti purchased a new mower deck for $2,600. 

Debt Administration 

The gross debt on December 31, 2018, was $14,421,527, a decrease of $2,534,058 compared to 2017. The 
debt consists of Sewerage and Waterworks Revenue Bonds and a Note Payable for an ambulance purchase in 
2015. The final payoff year for the bonds is 2027. 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
OUTSTANDING DEBT 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Revenue bonds 
Note payable 

$ $ $ 14,395,000 $ 16,900,000 $ 14,395,000 $ 16,900,000 
26,527 55,585 26,527 55,585 

Total debt $ $ $ 14,421,527 $ 16,955,585 $ 14,421,527 $ 16,955,585 

Missouri statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to twenty 
percent of the total assessed value of taxable propetiy located within the City's boundaries. The legal debt 
limit for the City of Osage Beach was $58,416,054. Additional information regarding the City's long-term 
debt can be found in Note 7 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City of Osage Beach's permit activity remained steady compared to past years. At the end of 2018, the 
City issued 631 business licenses to various businesses; 424 contractor's licenses; 73 liquor licenses; 8 taxi 
licenses; and 16 dog licenses. The Building Inspection Department issued 86 commercial permits and 80 
residential permits, representing investment in our community of $26,430, 115. 
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The City is recognized as both a retail and tourist destination and, like all communities, is impacted by the 
state and national economic activity; however, the City has continued to experience growth over the past 
several years. Sales tax, the principal source of funding for the City, remained steady for the year. The 2018 
fiscal year budget represents the priorities of the City and it is a financially responsible plan for our resources 
to provide the superior services to our community while preserving appropriate financial reserves. The City 
has committed to economic and community development efforts in 2019. For example, community event 
efforts, City promotional effo1ts, and economic development programs were supported in the 2019 Operating 
Budget. 

The unemployment rate for the City of Osage Beach was 4% (Camden and Miller County average) at 
December 31, 2018, which is an improvement compared to last year rate of 4.6%. This rate is slightly higher 
than the State's average unemployment rate of 3.1 % and the national average of 3.9%. 

The above factors were considered in preparing the City of Osage Beach's budget for the 2019 fiscal year. 

The City of Osage Beach has appropriated $7 ,3 52,008 for spending in the General Fund 2019 budget. 
Compared to the 2018 actual of $6,681,649, budgeted expenses will increase 10%. Of the total appropriated 
in General Fund, $3 88,675 is budgeted for capital expenditures. The budget includes a 1 % increase in sales 
tax revenue during the 2019 fiscal year compared to estimated revenue in 20 l 8. Merit increases will be 
granted to employees in 2019 based on the Matrix Plan and employee job perfonnance. The City's capital 
expenditures will focus on information technology that benefits the whole City, computer equipment 
including Wyse thin client upgrade, software, network switches, computers and printers totaling $67,210. 

There are no rate increases in the 20 l 9 Operating Budget. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial repott is designed to provide the reader a general overview of the City's finances. Questions or 
requests for more information concerning any of the information provided in this report should be directed to 
Karri Bell, City Treasurer (kbell@osagebeach.org), City of Osage Beach, 1000 City Parkway, Osage Beach, 
Missouri 65065, or call (573) 302-2000 extension 1030. 
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City of Osage Beach 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2018 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7 ,368,466 $ 5,014,532 $ 12,382,998 
Receivables, net 1,446,995 428,484 1,875,479 

Internal balances [ 18,000 (! [ 8,000) 

Due from other governments 500 212,416 212,916 

Inventories 31,000 175,316 206,316 

Prepaids items [ 97,484 46,084 243,568 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 744,734 2,074,259 2,818,993 
investments 6,573 1,559, 159 1,565,732 

Capital assets: 
Non-depreciable 2,492,277 1,235,809 3,728,086 
Depreciable, net 32,423, 193 52,581,477 85,004,670 

Total assets 44,829,222 63,209,536 108,038,758 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred charge on refunding 393,811 393,811 

Deferred outflows - other post employment benefits 25,839 3,825 29,664 

Total deferred outflows of resources 25,839 397,636 423,4 75 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 464,278 143,486 607,764 

Accrued liabilities 71,241 33,025 104,266 

Accrued interest 356,613 356,613 

Restricted customer deposits 16,371 16,371 

Funds held for others 1,369 1,369 

Unearned revenue 100,000 I 00,000 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due within one year: 

Note payable 26,527 26,527 

Bonds payable 2,620,000 2,620,000 

Compensated absences 90,699 40,116 130,815 

Due in more than one year: 
Bonds payable 12,072,394 12,072,394 

Other post employment benefits obligation 221,287 52,324 273,611 

Arbitrage rebate payable 20,812 20,812 

Total liabilities 965,245 15,365,297 16,330,542 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows - other post employment benefits 157 157 

Total deferred inflows of resources 157 157 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 34,915,470 39,492, 176 74,407,646 

Restricted for: 
Highways and streets 5,517,096 5,517,096 

Debt service 666,993 1,508,941 2, 175,934 

Depreciation and replacement 1,747,284 1,747,284 

Capital improvements 292,721 292,721 

Unrestricted 2,497,536 5,493,317 7,990,853 

Total net position $ 43,889,816 $ 48,241,718 $ 92,131,534 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Tax Increment 
Financing 

District 

$ 1,565 
881,858 

2, 198,524 
733,060 

3,815,007 

80,290 

80,290 

178,917 

75,278 

1,250,000 

7,982,044 

9,486,239 

2,931,584 

(8,522,526) 

$ (5,590,942) 
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Functions/Programs 
Primary Government 

Governmental activities 
General government 
Public safety 
Parks and recreation 
Inforniation technology 
Streets and highways 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Water/Sewer 
Ambulance 
Airports 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Component Unit 
Tax Increment Financing District 

City of Osage Beach 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31., 2018 

Net Revenue (Expense) and Changes in Net Position 
Program Revenue Primary Government 

Operating 
Charges for Grants and 

~enses Services Contributions 

$ 2,934,961 $ 272,851 $ 21,630 
3,141,925 

669,858 
492,477 

4,296,076 

11,535,297 

6,020,462 
584,394 

1,555,938 

8, 160,794 

$ 19,696,091 $ 

$ 1,363,293 $ 

General revenues: 
Taxes 

County road taxes 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 

200,900 
40,009 

513,760 

4,440,524 
278,392 

1,029,284 

5,748,200 

6,261,960 $ 

$ 

Motor vehicle fuel and license taxes 
Charges for services 

Other revenues: 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Other income 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Transfers 

21,630 

428,331 

-

428,331 

449,961 

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 

Change in net position 
Net position - beginning (as restated) 

Net position - ending 

Capital Grants 
and Governmental 

Contributions Activities 

$ $ (2,640,480) 
(2,941,025) 

(629,849) 
(492,477) 

297,555 (3,998,521) 

297,555 (I 0, 702,352) 

-

582,118 

582,118 

$ 879,673 (I 0, 702,352) 

$ 

70,470 

9,476,784 
1,063,470 

175,814 
314,600 

I 12,734 
99,593 
2,861 

(2,602,000) 

8,714,326 

(1,988,026) 

45,877,842 

$ 43,889,816 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Business-type 
Activities 

$ $ 

-

(1,151,607) 
(306,002) 

55,464 

(1,402, 145) 

(1,402,145) 

120,127 
27,610 

2,487 
2,602,000 

2,752,224 

1,350,079 

46,891,639 
-

$ 48,241,718 $ 

Total 

(2,640,480) 
(2,941,025) 

(629,849) 
(492,477) 

(3,998,521) 

(I 0,702,352) 

(1,151,607) 
(306,002) 

55,464 

(l,402,145) 

(12, 104,497) 

70,470 

9,476,784 
1,063,470 

175,814 
314,600 

232,861 
127,203 

5,348 

11,466,550 

(637,947) 

92,769,481 

$ 

Component 
Unit 

( 1,363,293) 

584,831 
2,598,312 

32,535 

3,215,678 

1,852,385 
(7,443,327) 

92,131,534 $ (5,590,942) 
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ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Unrestricted 

Restricted 

Investments: 

Restricted 

Receivables: 

Taxes 

Due from other funds 

Receivable from other governments 

Other 

Inventories 

Prepaid items 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Accrued payroll 

Unearned revenue 

Payable from restricted assets: 

Due to others 

Bail bond deposits 

Building deposits 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable: 

Inventories 

Prepaid items 

Restricted for: 

Debt service 

Highways and streets 

Capital improvements 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

City of Osage Beach 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

December 31, 2018 

General Transportation 

$ 2,088,203 $ 5,279,763 

84,314 

753,230 334,835 

176,000 

500 

24, 100 

31,000 

188,793 8,691 

$ 3,139,140 $ 5,830,289 

$ 256,190 $ 165,479 

63,218 8,023 

100,000 

1,369 

12,365 

4,006 

337,148 273,502 

31,000 

188,793 8,691 

5,517,096 

2,613,199 

2,801,992 5,556,787 

$ 3, 139, 140 $ 5,830,289 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Capital Total 
Improvement Governmental 

Sales Tax Funds 

$ 500 $ 7,368,466 
660,420 744,734 

6,573 6,573 

334,830 1,422,895 

176,000 

500 

24,100 

31,000 

197,484 

$ 1,002,323 $ 9,971,752 

$ 42,609 $ 464,278 
58,000 58,000 

71,241 

100,000 

1,369 
12,365 

4,006 

100,609 711,259 

31,000 

197,484 

666,993 666,993 

5,517,096 
292,721 292,721 
(58,000) 2,555,199 

901,714 9,260,493 

$ 1,002,323 $ 9,971, 752 
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City of Osage Beach 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2018 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for govermnental activities in the Statement of Net Position 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Governmental capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Other long-term assets and deferred outflows of resources are not available to 
pay for current-period expenditures and; therefore, are deferred in the 
governmental funds: 

Deferred outflows - other post employment benefits 

Long-term liabilities, including interest payable, bonds payable, accrued 
compensated absences, and other post employment benefits obligation, are 
not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore, are not reported as 
liabilities in the govermnental funds: 

Accrued compensated absences 

Other post employment benefits obligation 

Net position of governmental activities 

71,536,262 

(36,620, 792) 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

9,260,493 

34,915,470 

25,839 

(90,699) 

(221,287) 

43,889,816 
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REVENUES 

Taxes: 

City of Osage Beach 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Capital 
Improvement 

General Transportation Sales Tax 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Sales 

Franchise 

$ 4,785,881 $ 2,345,483 $ 2,345,420 $ 9,476,784 

1,063,470 

175,814 Motor vehicle fuel and license 

County road taxes 

Licenses, fines, permits and fees 

Intergovernmental 

Interest 

Contributions 

Charges for services 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Parks and recreation 

Information technology 

Streets and highways 

Capital improvements 

Capital outlay: 

Projects and equipment 

Streets and highways 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers out 

Sale of capital assets 

Total other financing (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending $ 

1,063,470 

513,760 

19,586 

48,644 

2,044 

314,600 

97,733 

6,845,718 

2,318,283 

3,011,840 

372,684 

443,009 

270,055 

6,415,871 

429,847 

(265,000) 

349 

(264,651) 

165,196 

2,636,796 

2,801,992 

175,814 

70,470 

297,555 

52,611 

1,860 

2,943,793 

1,943,542 

1, 174,953 

3, 118,495 

(174,702) 

(137,000) 

4,477 

(132,523) 

(307,225) 

5,864,012 

$ 5,556,787 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

19 

11,479 

2,356,899 

336,781 

336,781 

2,020, 118 

(2,200,000) 

(2,200,000) 

(179,882) 

1,081,596 

$ 901,714 $ 

70,470 

513,760 

317,141 

112,734 

2,044 

314,600 

99,593 

12,146,410 

2,318,283 

3,011,840 

372,684 

443,009 

1,943,542 

336,781 

270,055 

1, 174,953 

9,871,147 

2,275,263 

(2,602,000) 

4,826 

(2,597,174) 

(321,911) 

9,582,404 

9,260,493 
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City of Osage Beach 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The 
following is the detail of the amount by which capital outlays were more than 
the depreciation in the current period. 

Depreciation expense 
Capital outlay capitalized as assets 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use 
of current financial resources and these are not repo11ed as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Compensated absences 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Other post employment benefits obligation 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

(2,995,622) 
1,356,622 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

(321,911) 

(1,639,000) 

(3,803) 
(l,966) 

(21,346) 

(1,988,026) 
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City of Osage Beach 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
December 31, 2018 

Water and 
Sewer Ambulance Lee C. Fine 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,940,006 $ 71,984 $ 671 
Accounts receivables (net of allowances for 

uncollectibles) 386,824 40,594 705 

Due from other funds 58,000 

Receivables from other governments 212,416 

Inventories 119,159 40,322 

Prepaid expenses 33,228 3,026 5,711 

Total current assets 5,537,217 115,604 259,825 

Non-current assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,074,259 

Restricted investments l,559,159 

Capital assets: 
Non-depreciable 565,062 325,204 
Depreciable, net 46,905,177 96,976 4,921,623 

Total non-current assets 51, 103,657 96,976 5,246,827 

Total assets 56,640,874 212,580 5,506,652 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charge on refunding 393,811 

Deferred outflows - other post employment benefits 2,867 606 

Total deferred outflows of resources 396,678 606 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 129,525 5,230 6,235 

Accrued payroll 17,928 7,338 l,892 

Accrued interest payable 356,381 232 

Due to other funds 176,000 

Other accrued expenses 3,280 

Compensated absences 28,026 6,573 2,368 

Note payable 26,527 

Bonds payable 2,620,000 

Total current liabilities 3,155,140 45,900 186,495 

Non-current liabilities: 
Bonds payable 12,072,394 

Other post employment benefits payable 31,119 3,868 11,997 

Arbitrage rebate payable 20,812 

Total non-current liabilities 12,124,325 3,868 11,997 

Total liabilities 15,279,465 49,768 198,492 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows - other post employment benefits 157 

Total deferred inflows of resources 157 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 33, 171,656 70,449 5,246,827 

Restricted for: 
Debt service 1,508,941 

Depreciation and replacement 1,747,284 

Unrestricted 5,330,206 92,206 61,939 

Total net position $ 41,758,087 $ 162,655 $ 5,308,766 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Grand Glnize Total 

$ l,871 $ 5,014,532 

361 428,484 
58,000 

212,416 
15,835 175,316 
4,119 46,084 

22,186 5,934,832 

2,074,259 
l,559,159 

345,543 l ,235,809 
657,701 52,581,477 

l ,003,244 57,450,704 

1,025,430 63,385,536 

393,81 l 
352 3,825 

352 397,636 

2,496 143,486 
2,587 29,745 

356,613 
176,000 

3,280 
3,149 40,116 

26,527 
2,620,000 

8,232 3,395,767 

12,072,394 
5,340 52,324 

20,812 

5,340 12, 145,530 

13,572 15,541,297 

157 

157 

1,003,244 39,492,176 

1,508,94 l 
1,747,284 

8,966 5,493,317 

$ l,012,210 $ 48,241,718 
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City of Osage Beach 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Water and 
Sewer Ambulance Lee C. Fine 

REVENUES 

Charges for services $ 4,440,524 $ 278,392 $ 763,800 

Rental income 116,024 

Operating grants and contributions 428,331 

Total operating revenues 4,868,855 278,392 879,824 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

Cost of sales and services 994,965 32,178 571,004 

Administration 108,571 75,732 3,138 

Personnel services 1,038,849 412,449 218,227 

Repairs and maintenance 340,392 7,452 33,804 

Insurance 98,299 27,672 18,610 

Depreciation and amortization 2,693,653 27,981 178,463 

Miscellaneous expenses 281 

Total operating expenses 5,274,729 583,464 1,023,527 

Operating loss (405,874) (305,072) (143,703) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Interest and investment revenue 

Interest expense 

Miscellaneous revenue 

Gain on sale of capital assets 

Bond and financial services fees 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Loss before capital grants and transfers 

Capital grants 

Transfers in 

Change in net position 

Total net position - beginning (as restated) 

Total net position - ending 

120,127 

(656,049) (930) 

25,745 1,865 

(89,684) 

(599,861) 935 

( 1,005, 735) (304, 137) (143,703) 

359,398 

2,200,000 265,000 

1,194,265 (39, 137) 215,695 

40,563,822 201,792 5,093,071 

$ 41,758,087 $ 162,655 $ 5,308,766 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Grand Glaize Total 

$ 86,778 $ 5,569,494 

62,682 178,706 

428,331 

149,460 6, 176,531 

307,329 1,905,476 

22,275 209,716 

138,246 1,807,771 

19,731 401,379 

14,298 158,879 

30,468 2,930,565 

64 345 

532,411 7,414, 131 

(382,951) (1,237,600) 

120,127 

(656,979) 

27,610 

2,487 2,487 

(89,684) 

2,487 (596,439) 

(380,464) (1,834,039) 

222,720 582, 118 

137,000 2,602,000 

(20,744) 1,350,079 

1,032,954 46,891,639 

$ 1,012,210 $ 48,241,718 

89



City of Osage Beach 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 
Collections from customers and users 
Payments for goods and services 
Payments on behalf of employees for services 
Payments for interfund services used 
Other operating revenues 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Interfund transfers 

Water and 
Sewer 

$ 4,380,400 
( 1,695,368) 
( 1,028,312) 

(60,000) 
364,392 

1,961,112 

2,200,000 

Ambulance 

$ 271,957 
(90,425) 

(408,476) 
(51,900) 

1,865 

(276,979) 

265,000 

Lee C. Fine Grand Glaize Total 

$ 880,534 $ 

(697,265) 

(214,240) 
(34,900) 

(65,871) 

149,226 
(353,286) 

(134,908) 
(18,300) 

(357,268) 

$ 5,682, 117 
(2,836,344) 
(1,785,936) 

(165,100) 
366,257 

1,260,994 

137,000 2,602,000 
Net change in interfund receivables/payables _____________ 11_6_,o_o_o_ ---~( 1-'-,o_o_o-'-i ___ I 7_5""'",o_o_o_ 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Capital grants 
Sale of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest received 
Net change in short-term money market mutual funds 
Proceeds from maturity of guaranteed investment contracts 
Purchase of guaranteed investment contracts 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

$ 

2,200,000 265,000 

(714,948) 

(2,505,000) (29,988) 
(656,049) 

(3,875,997) (29,988) 

120,127 
( 13,728) 
22,102 

(36,131) 

92,370 

377,485 (41,967) 

6,636,780 113,951 

7,014,265 $ 71,984 

176,000 136,000 2,777 ,000 

(395,983) (2,600) (\,113,531) 
248,391 222,720 471,111 

2,487 2,487 
(2,534,988) 

(656,049) 

(147,592) 222,607 (3,830,970) 

120,127 
(13,728) 
22,102 

(36,131) 

92,370 

(37 ,463) 1,339 299,394 

38, 134 532 6,789,397 

$ 671 $ 1,871 $ 7,088,791 

Operating loss $ (405,874) $ (305,072) $ (143,703) $ (382,951) $ (l,237,600) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) 
Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net 
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from other funds 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in prepaids 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 

Total adjustments 

(63,939) 
2,621,543 

(2, 124) 
(58,000) 

(2,862) 

(3,203) 

(124,429) 

2,366,986 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 1,961, 112 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to Statement of Net Position: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,940,006 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,074,259 

$ 7,014,265 

1,865 
27,981 

(6,435) 

(1,051) 

5,733 

28,093 

$ (276,979) 

$ 71,984 

$ 71,984 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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(62,074) 
178,463 30,468 2,858,455 

710 (234) (8,083) 
(58,000) 

(7,042) (3,485) (13,389) 
(1,591) (2,302) (8, 147) 

(92.708) 1,236 (210,168) 

77,832 25,683 2,498,594 

$ (65,871) $ (357,268) $ 1,260,994 

$ 671 $ 1,871 $ 5,014,532 
2,074,259 

$ 671 $ 1,871 $ 7,088,791 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies employed in the preparation of the 
accompanying financial statements, as presented on the basis set fo1ih in Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Managenzent 's Discussion and Analysis -
for State and Local Governments. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Osage Beach, Missouri (the City) was incorporated in 1959 and covers an area of approximately 
ten square miles in Camden and Miller Counties, Missouri. The City is governed by an elected Mayor and an 
elected six-member Board of Aldermen, who in turn appoint a City Administrator, City Clerk, Police Chief, 
Building Official, City Treasurer, City Planner, City Engineer and City Attorney. The City provides services 
to its more than four thousand residents in many areas including: Jaw enforcement, water and sewer services, 
ambulance, airports, and economic development. These services do not include education, which is provided 
by separate governmental entities. 

The basic financial statements of the City include all of the funds relevant to the operations of the City of 
Osage Beach. The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been fanned 
under applicable state laws or separate and distinct units of government apart from the City of Osage Beach 
that have been determined not to be component units as defined by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government 
are financially accountable. Financially accountable means the primary government is able to impose its will 
or the component unit may provide financial benefits or impose a burden on the primary government. In 
addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and significance of the relationship 
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to 
be misleading if excluded. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has evaluated the above criteria to 
determine whether any other entity meets the definition of a component unit and must be included in these 
financial statements. The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District is responsible for encouraging development 
of commercial enterprises in the District. The members of the District's governing board are appointed by 
various political subdivisions which levy taxes in the District. The City is financially accountable for the 
District as the City appoints a voting majority to the District's governing board and is able to impose its will 
on the organization through approval or rejection of plans and projects recommended by the District's 
governing board. 

The District is presented as a discretely presented component unit in the basic financial statements. The 
District maintains only one fund, a governmental fund type, and does not issue separately prepared financial 
statements. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the City. The effect of interfund activities has been removed from these 
statements. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. 
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Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges to external pa1iies. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are repo1ied instead as 
general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. Each individual fund of the City is considered to be a major fund. 

The City uses funds to report its financial position and results of its operations in the fund financial 
statements. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by 
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting 
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, 
proprietary and fiduciary. The City has no fiduciary funds. 

The City rep01is the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund- This fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Transpotiation Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for funds provided from a one-half of one 
percent sales tax restricted as to use for ongoing maintenance and construction of streets. 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for funds provided by a one­
half of one percent sales tax restricted as to use to subsidize debt service for the water and sewer 
systems. In addition, this fund may be used in the future for other capital projects, as voter approved. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund-This enterprise fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to 
the residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, 
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt 
service, and collection. 

Ambulance Fund -This enterprise fund accounts for the operation of the City's ambulance response 
service. 

Lee C. Fine and Grand Glaize Funds - These enterprise funds account for the operation of the City's 
two airp01is. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-wide financial statements are repo1ied using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 
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The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60-days of the end of the current fiscal 
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, interest and principal on general long-term debt are recognized when due. 

Sales tax, franchise tax, interest, and revenues from other governmental units associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash 
is received by the government. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account for 
operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resource measurement focus concerns 
determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and management control. Their revenues 
are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. Allocations 
of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's ongoing operations. Operating expenses include the costs of services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

The City's general spending prioritization policy is to consider restricted resources to have been used first, 
followed by committed, assigned, and unassigned amounts when expenditures have been incurred for which 
resources in more than one classification could be used. 

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (i.e.,restricted bond or grant 
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position 
and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. 
It is the City's policy to consider restricted- net position to have been depleted before unrestricted- net 
position is applied. 

D. Budgets 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental fund t)'pes on the modified accrual basis. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

E. Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City maintains a cash money-market pool that is used by all funds. Interest income is allocated to each 
fund in proportion to each fund's ownership of the pool each month. For purposes of the statement of cash 
flows, all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are 
considered to be cash equivalents. Because a statement of cash flows is prepared only for proprietary funds 
under generally accepted accounting principles, cash and cash equivalents are distinguished only for those 
funds. 

Investments are stated at fair value, determined by quoted market prices. State statutes authorize the City to 
invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements, 
collateralized certificates of deposit and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool. 
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F. Receivables 

Receivables consist primarily of taxes, franchise fees, interest, and water and sewer charges. They are shown 
net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible amounts. 

G. Inventories 

Inventories, which consist of airport fuel and materials and supplies, are recorded on the purchases method 
and are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method. 

H Prepaid Expenses 

Prepaid expenses represent the payment of insurance premiums and other information technology related 
services for coverage that benefits more than one fiscal period. The premium amount is being amortized over 
the policy period following the consumption method. 

I Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e. roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fund statements, capital assets are charged 
to expenditures as purchased and capitalized in the proprietary fund statements. All capital assets are valued 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital 
assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date donated. 

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of $2,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of five years. Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that 
significantly extend the useful life of an asset or that significantly increase the efficiency or capacity of an 
asset are capitalized. Other costs, such as capital outlays incurred for repairs and maintenance, are expensed 
as incurred. 

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of activities with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is provided on the straight­
line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Office furniture, fixture, and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Sewage collection systems 
Treatment plant 
Water systems 
Infrastructure - streets/roads 

20 -40 years 
5 - 10 years 
5 years 
20-40 years 
40 years 
40 years 
20- 25 years 

It is the City's policy to capitalize interest incurred on debt during the construction of proprietary funds' 
capital assets, when appropriate. Interest incurred in the construction or acquisition of governmental funds' 
capital assets is not capitalized, in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3 7. 

The cost of assets disposed or sold and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation are eliminated from 
the accounts in the year of disposal or sale and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the basic financial 
statements. 

Fully depreciated capital assets are included in the capital assets accounts until their disposal or sale. 
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J Compensated Absences 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and personal pay 
benefits. All unused vacation must be used within one year. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated 
personal leave since the City does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from 
service with the City. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have 
matured, for example, as a result of an employee resignation or retirements. 

K. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 
then. The City has two items that qualify for repo1iing in this category, which are the deferred charge on 
refunding and the defeJTed outflows related to other post-employment benefits. Both of these items are 
reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net position. A deferred charge on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes repoti a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. The City has one item that qualifies for rep01iing in this category, which is the deferred inflow 
related to other post-employment benefit plan contributions repotied in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund statements of net position. 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

General long-term obligations consist of the non-current portion of bonds payab1e, other post-employment 
benefits, and other long-term liabilities. In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bond issuance costs are 
expensed in all statements as incurred. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, general long-term obligations are not reported as liabilities 
because they do not require the use of current resources. Governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Principal repayments are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

M Equity 

In the governmental fund financial statements, equity is displayed in five components as follows: 

Nonspendable - This consists of amounts that are not in a spendable form or are legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted - This consists of amounts that are constrained to specific purposes by their providers, 
through constitutional or contractual provisions or by enabling legislation. 
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Committed - This consists of amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined 
by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of 
Aldermen) by the end of the fiscal year. The Board of Alderman can, by adoption of an 
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation 
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the 
limitation. 

Assigned - This consists of amounts that are intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. The Board of 
Aldermen can assign fund balance; however, an additional formal action does not have to be 
taken for the removal of the assignment. 

Unassigned - This consists of amounts that are available for any purpose and can only be 
reported in the General Fund. However, in governmental funds other than the General Fund, it 
may be necessary to repoti a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund if expenditures 
incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to 
these purposes. 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in three components as 
follows: 

Net investment in capital assets - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less 
the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. 

Restricted - This consists of amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted - Th is consists of amounts that do not meet the definition of "net investment in capital 
assets" or "restricted". 

N. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates an;d assumptions that affect 
the rep01ted amounts of assets and liabilities, and the repo1ted amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGET 

The City's policy is to prepare the operating budgets in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. The City prepared budgets for all governmental fund types for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1) Prior to January 1, the City Administrator submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal period commencing January 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2) The City utilizes multiple public budget workshops that the public is invited to attend and make 
comments. The proposed budget is available for public inspection prior to the budget workshops. 

3) Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 
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4) The City Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within a fund; however, any 
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Aldermen. 

5) All appropriations lapse at year-end. 

The reported budgetary data represents the final approved budget after amendments as adopted by the Board 
of Aldermen. The budget was amended during the year. 

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

Missouri State Statutes authorize the City to deposit funds in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal 
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit; and repurchase agreements. Custodial credit risk for 
deposits is the risk that, in event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The 
City's deposit policy for custodial credit risk is set by statutes. Statutes require that collateral pledged must 
have a fair market value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit, less insured amounts. Collateral securities, 
which are the same type as authorized for investment by the City, are limited to the following as prescribed by 
state statutes: 

• Bonds of the State of Missouri, of the United States, or of any wholly owned corporation of the 
United States. 

• Other sho1i-term obligations of the United States. 

The City of Osage Beach maintains a cash and investment pool which is available for use by all funds for the 
purpose of increasing income through investment activities. Interest is allocated to the various funds based on 
average cash or investment balances. The pool includes money market funds and certificates of deposit. 
Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the statement of financial position as "Cash and Cash 
Equivalents" under each fund's caption. 

The City's deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of custodial risk assumed by the City at 
December 31, 2018. Deposits, categorized by level of custodial risk, were as follows as of December 31, 
2018: 

Cash and Certificates 

Cash of Petty 

Equivalents Deposit Cash Total 

Bank balance 
Insured by the FDIC $ 250,000 $ $ $ 250,000 
Collateralized with securities pledged by 

the financial institution in the entity's name 458,386 13,884,136 14,342,522 
Collateralized by securities held by the 

pledging financial institutions' trust 
department or agent but not in the 
depositor government's name 326,975 2,858,920 3,185,895 

$ 1,035,361 $ I 6,743,056 $ $ I 7,778,417 

Carrying value $ 656,016 $ I 6,742,990 $ 3,075 $ 17,402,080 
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A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as shown on the government-wide statement of net position is 
as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total 

Investments 

Government-Wide 

Statement of Net Position 

Primary Component 
Government Unit 

$ 12,3 82,998 $ 1,565 

2,818,993 2, 198,524 

$15,201,991 $ 2,200,089 

The City had the following investments as of December 31: 

Total 

$12,3 84,563 

5,017,517 

$17,402,080 

Investment Maturities (in years) 

Less than 1 1-5 Over 5 

Restricted assets: 

Money market mutual funds $ 1,263,906 $ $ 

Guaranteed investment contracts 265,424 769,462 

Total investments $ 1,263,906 $ 265,424 $ 769,462 

Fair 

Value 

$ 1,263,906 

1,034,886 

$ 2,298,792 

$ 

$ 

The money market mutual funds held by the City at December 3 1, 2018, are fixed income funds invested in 
U.S. Treasuries and other governmental securities. 

A reconciliation of investments as shown on the government-wide statement of net position is as follows: 

Restricted assets: 

Investments 

Government-Wide 

Statement of Net Position 

Primary Component 

Government Unit Total 

$ 1,565,732 $ 733,060 $ 2,298,792 

Carrying 

Value 

1,263,906 

1,034,886 

2,298,792 

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of investments will be adversely affected by 
a change in interest rates. The City does not have a formal interest rate risk policy. 

Credit risk- Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Credit risk is measured using credit quality ratings of investments in debt securities as described 
by nationally recognized rating agencies such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's. State statutes authorize the 
City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, and federal agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of 
deposit issued by Missouri banks; and repurchase agreements. The City has no investment policy that would 
further limit its investment choice. Of the total guaranteed investment contracts balance of $1,034,886, 
$2,069 of the amount is rated A2 by Moody's and $1,032,817 is rated Al by Moody's. 
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Concentration of credit risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of 
investment in a single issuer. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. 
Of the City's total investments, 55% are money market mutual funds and 45% are guaranteed investment 
contracts (substantially all issued by Natixis Global Asset Management). 

Custodial credit risk in investments - For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterpa1ty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in 
possession of an outside party. The City does not have any custodial risk in investments. 

Fair Value Measurements 

For assets and liabilities required to be reported at fair value, U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
prescribes a framework for measuring fair value and financial statement disclosures about fair value 
measurements. A fair value hierarchy has been established that distinguishes between market participant 
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable 
inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity's own assumptions 
about market paiiicipant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). 

The fair value hierarchy as prescribed by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles is as follows: 

Level l Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the City has the ability to access. 

Level 2 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for simiiar assets and liabilities in active markets, as 
well as inputs that are observable for the asset or liability (other than quoted prices), such as 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are observable at commonly 
quoted intervals. 

Level 3 Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant 
assumption based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based 
on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement 
falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The 
City's assessment of the significance of a paiiicular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires 
judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability. 

The City's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2018, 
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall, are as follows: 

Description Total Level 1 Level2 Level3 

Measured at fair value: 

Money market mutual funds $ 1,263,906 $ 1,263,906 $ $ 

Guaranteed investment contracts 1,034,886 1,034,886 

Total investments $ 2,298,792 $ 1,263,906 $ 1,034,886 $ 

Level 1 classifications above consist of money market mutual funds that are valued at the daily closing price 
as repo1ted by the fund. These funds are primarily invested in U.S. Treasuries and other governmental 
securities. 

32 

99



Level 2 classifications above consist of guaranteed investment contracts that are valued based on third party 
pricing services for identical or similar assets. 

No investments are classified as Level 3 above. 

4. RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

At December 31, 2018, cash and investments were restricted for various uses as follows: 

General Fund 

Restricted for bail bond deposits 

Restricted for building permit deposits 

Amounts held for others 

Amounts paid under protest 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

Reserved for bond requirements 

Water and Sewer Fund 

Restricted for bond requirements 

Tax Increment Financing District 

Restricted for bond requirements 

5. RECEIVABLES 

$ 12,365 

4,006 

1,369 

66,574 

666,993 

3,633,418 

2,931,584 

Receivables are composed of the following at December 31, 2018: 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

Taxes receivable $ 1,422,895 $ $ 

Accounts receivable 563,612 

Other receivable 24, 100 

1,446,995 563,612 

Allowance for 

uncollectible accounts (135, 128) 

Accounts receivable $ 1,446,995 $ 428,484 $ 

33 

Total 

1,422,895 

563,612 

24, 100 

2,010,607 

(135,128) 

1,875,479 

Component 

Unit 

$ 881,858 

881,858 

$ 881,858 
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 3 I, 20 I 8 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 

December 31, December 3 1, 

2017 Additions Retirements Transfers 2018 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,834, 178 $ $ $ $ 1,834, 178 

Construction in progress 84,261 658,099 (84,261) 658,099 

Total capital assets, not 

being depreciated 1,918,439 658,099 (84,261) 2,492,277 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 7,822,238 24,365 7,846,603 

Machine1y and equipment 4,265,271 168,657 443,629 3,990,299 

Infrastructure 56,617,321 505,50 l 84,261 57,207,083 

Total capital assets, being 

depreciated 68,704,830 698,523 443,629 84,261 69,043,985 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and improvements 4, 132,254 232,337 4,364,591 

Machinery and equipment 3,239,985 347,923 441,663 3,146,245 

Infrastructure 26,694,594 2,415,362 29,109,956 

Total accumulated depreciation 34,066,833 2,995,622 441,663 36,620,792 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 34,637,997 (2,297 ,099) 1,966 84,261 32,423,193 

Total capital assets, net $ 36,556,436 $ (l,639,000) $ 1,966 $ $ 34,915,470 
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Balance 

December 31, 
2017 Additions Retirements Transfers 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land and easements $ 897 ,793 $ $ $ 

Construction in progress 2,308,988 195,135 (2, 166, I 07) 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 3,206,781 195, 135 (2,166,107) 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 6,036,021 209,675 1,814,327 

Equipment 1,916,922 51,369 61,031 

Water system, tower and lines 35,121,567 316,019 

Sewage collection system 
and treatment plant 59,295,253 341,333 351,780 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 102,369,763 918,396 61,031 2,166,107 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 1,978,090 208,141 

Equipment 1,273,856 165,984 61,031 

Water system, tower and lines 13,195,844 898,350 

Sewage collection system 
and treatment plant 33,604,335 1,548, 189 

Total accumulated depreciation 50,052, 125 2,820,664 61,031 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 52,317,638 ( 1,902,268) 2,166,107 

Business-type activities 
capital assets, net $ 55,524,419 $ (1,707,133) $ $ 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General administration 

Public safety 

Streets and highways 

Parks and recreation 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities: 

Business-type activities: 

Water/Sewer 

Ambulance 

Airports 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities: 
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Balance 

December 31, 
2018 

$ 897,793 
338,016 

1,235,809 

8,060,023 

1,907,260 

35,437,586 

59,988,366 

105,393,235 

2,186,231 
1,378,809 

14,094,194 

35,152,524 

52,811,758 

52,581,477 

$ 53,817,286 

$ 254,416 

103,991 

2,331,036 

306,179 

$ 2,995,622 

$ 2,583,752 

27,981 

208,931 

$ 2,820,664 
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7. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended December 3 l, 2018: 

Beginning Ending Amount Due 

Balance Additions Retirements Balance in One Year 

Primary Government: 

Governmental activities 

Compensated absences $ 86,896 $ 18,196 $ 14,393 $ 90,699 $ 90,699 

Business-type activities 

Note payable 55,585 29,058 26,527 26,527 

Revenue bonds 16,900,000 2,505,000 14,395,000 2,620,000 

Compensated absences 32,479 14,828 7, 191 40, 116 40,116 

$ 17,074,960 $ 33,024 $ 2,555,642 $ 14,552,342 $ 2,777,342 

Component Unit: 

Revenue bonds $ 11,055,000 $ $ 1,810,000 $ 9,245,000 $ 1,250,000 

Accrued compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

The State Constitution permits a city, by vote of two-thirds of the voting electorate, to incur general 
obligation indebtedness for "city purposes" not to exceed 10% of the assessed value of taxable tangible 
property and to incur additional general obligation indebtedness not to exceed, in the aggregate, an additional 
10% of the assessed value of taxable tangible pro petty, for the purpose of acquiring rights-of-way, 
construction, extending and improving streets and avenues and/or sanitary or storm wastewater systems, and 
purchasing or constructing waterworks, electric or other light plants, provided that the total general obligation 
indebtedness of the City does not exceed 20% of the assessed valuation of taxable property. 

Based on the assessed valuation as of January 1, 2018, of $292,228,310, the constitutional total general 
obligation debt limit was $58,445,662, which provides a general obligation debt margin of $58,445,662. 

Note Payable 

Note payable consists of the following as of December 31, 2018: 

$141,995 note payable to a bank, bearing interest at 2.1 %, 
principal and interest due annually through maturity of August 
2019, secured by vehicle. 

Less current portion 

Long-term portion 
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$ 26,527 

(26,527) 

$ 
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Revenue Bonds - State Revolving Loans 

In 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, and 2007, the City issued $5,000,000 (Series 2001A), $24,585,000 (Series 
2002B), $6,075,000 (Series 2003B), $4,950,000 (Series 2005C), and $2,550,000 (Series 2007 A) in State 
Environmental Improvement and Energy Resources Authority Water Pollution Revenue Bonds and Public 
Drinking Water Bonds for the purpose of financing construction of certain wastewater treatment, sanitary 
sewerage or water facilities and costs associated with the issuance of the bonds. In connection with the 
issuance of these bonds, the City participates in a revolving loan program established by the Missouri 
Depatiment of Natural Resources (DNR). The State of Missouri manages and invests the bond proceeds on 
behalf of the City. As the City incurs approved expenditures, DNR reimburses the City for the expenditures 
from the construction escrow fund. Additionally, an amount (83.33% of which is federal funding) 
representing 70% of the construction costs is deposited into a bond reserve fund in the City's name and is 
held as a guarantee against the outstanding bond obligation. Interest earned from this reserve fund can be 
used by the City to fund interest payments on the revenue bonds. A portion of the reserve fund is transferred 
back to the State as principal payments are made on the revenue bonds. The costs of operation and 
maintenance of the wastewater treatment and sewerage facilities and the debt service is payable from 
operating revenues. 

The City has pledged future utility customer revenues and capital improvement sales tax collections, net of 
current specified operating expenses, to repay $21.6 million in revenue bonds. Proceeds from the bonds 
provided financing for the construction of a new water system and expansion of sewerage facilities. The 
bonds are payable from utility customer net revenues and capital improvement sales tax net collections and 
are payable through 2026. Net revenues available for debt service are not to be less than 110% of the amount 
required to be paid annually of principal and interest. Net revenues for 2018 are over 140% of the annual 
principal and interest payments made in 2018. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 
bonds is $16,593,358. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total net revenues were $3,161,049 
and $4,422,614, respectively. 

Revenue bonds payable are comprised of the following individual issues: 

Final 

Original Interest Maturity 

Amount Rate Date 

2001A, Clean Water $ 5,000,000 4.0%-5.0% 111/2022 

2002B, Drinking Water 24,585,000 2%-5.5% 7/1/2022 

2003B, Drinking Water 6,075,000 2%-5.25% 111/2024 

2005C, Clean Water 4,950,000 3.0%-5.25% 7/1/2025 

2007 A, Drinking Water 2,550,000 4.0%-4.75% 111/2026 

The following is a summary of net revenue bonds payable for December 31, 2018: 

Revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2018 

Unamoriized premiums (net of accumulated amoriization 

of $1,096,223) 

Less amount due within one year 

Net revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2018 
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$14,395,000 

297,394 

14,692,394 

(2,620,000) 

$12,072,394 

Balance 

December 31, 

2018 

$ 1,155,000 

6,880,000 

3,105,000 

1,990,000 

1,265,000 

$14,395,000 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows: 

Year Ending 

December 31 Principal Interest Total 
2019 $ 2,620,000 $ 705,219 $ 3,325,219 
2020 2,740,000 555,572 3,295,572 

2021 2,865,000 417,759 3,282,759 

2022 2,995,000 271,050 3,266,050 
2023 1,090,000 129,896 1,219,896 

2024-2026 2,085,000 118,862 2,203,862 

Total $14,395,000 $ 2,198,358 $16,593,358 

Revenue Bonds - Tax Increment Financing 

On February 28, 2002, the City issued Tax Increment Bonds Series 2002 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$7,775,000 to finance roads, water and sewer infrastructure in the Prewitt's Point redevelopment area. These 
bonds were issued for the City's component unit, the Tax Increment Financing District. These bonds are 
limited obligations of the City, payable solely from bond proceeds, payments in lieu of taxes, economic 
activity tax revenue and monies on deposit in a debt service reserve fund. The application of economic 
activity tax revenues to the payment of the Series 2002 bonds is subject to annual appropriation by the City. 

On September 18, 2012, the City issued $4,410,000 of Tax Increment Bonds Series 2012 for the refunding of 
the $4,510,000 remaining balance of the February 28, 2002 issuance. The refunding was undertaken to 
reduce the total future debt service payments. The transaction also resulted in an economic gain of $486,595 
and a reduction of $302,665 in future debt service payments. Although the outstanding principal balance of 
$1,245,000 is not due until 2023, it is the City's intent to make annual principal payments using TIF revenue 
received each year. 

On December 31, 2006, the City issued Tax Increment Bonds Series 2006 in the aggregate principal amount 
of $18,590,000 to finance roads, water and sewer infrastructure in the Prewitt's Point redevelopment area. 
These bonds were issued for the City's component unit, the Tax Increment Financing District. These bonds 
are limited obligations of the City, payable solely from bond proceeds, payments in lieu of taxes, economic 
activity tax revenue and monies on deposit in a debt service reserve fund. The application of economic 
activity tax revenues to the payment of the Series 2006 bonds is subject to annual appropriation by the City. 
The amount of the bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2018, is $8,000,000. 

The bond issues are structured so that bonds are redeemed as funds become available; accordingly, debt 
coverage will not exceed 100% over the life of the bonds. Principal and interest payments on the bonds are 
due semiannually. Debt service on principal and interest cannot exceed the life of the redevelopment area of 
May 1, 2023. For the current year, principal and interest paid and total incremental tax revenues for the TIF 
bonds are $2,298, 113 and $2,362,890, respectively. 
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The following is a summary of net revenue bonds payable for December 31, 2018: 

Revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2018 

Unamo1tized discount (net of accumulated amo1tization 

of $21,594) 

Less amount due within one year 

Net revenue bonds payable at December 31, 2018 

$ 9,245,000 

(12,956) 

9,232,044 

(1,250,000) 

$ 7,982,044 

The annual requirements to amotiize debt outstanding in the as of December 31, 2018, including interest 
payments, are as follows: 

Year Ending Series 2006 Series 2012 

December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2019 1,250,000 368,750 $ $ 64,533 $ 
2020 1,355,000 303,625 64,533 

2021 1,445,000 233,625 64,533 

2022 1,560,000 158,500 64,533 

2023 2,390,000 59,750 1,245,000 32,266 

Total 

1,683,283 

1,723,158 

1,743,158 

1,783,033 

3,727,016 

Total $ 8,000,000 $ 1,124,250 $ 1,245,000 $ 290,398 $10,659 ,648 

The Series 2012 bonds do not have a required redemption schedule but require a balloon payment on May 1, 
2023. Interest payments are made on May 1 and November 1 each year. The City will pay at 4.15% on the 
outstanding loan balance annually over the life of the loan. 

Arbitrage Liability 

The arbitrage liability is established as the arbitrage rebate payable on the statements of financial position to 
set aside funds for the future potential interest rebate due the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Separate trust 
accounts have been established for the Series 2001 A, Series 2005C, and Series 2007 A bonds. Pursuant to 
certain Internal Revenue Code requirements, the City is required to expend funds for designated purposes 
within time frames established by the IRS. In the event the "spend-down" schedule is not met, a rebate of 
excess interest earnings must be made. Excess interest earnings accrue if the interest rate on invested bond 
proceeds exceeds the interest rate paid to investors. The liability is estimated by the City's bond counsel. 
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8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund balances and transfers between governmental funds are not included in the government-wide 
statement of net position or the government-wide statement of activities. 

A summary of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2018, follows: 

TRANSFERRED FROM 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 

Transpo1iation Fund 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

Water/Sewer 

Fund 

$ 

2,200,000 

$ 2,200,000 

TRANSFERRED TO 

Proprietary Funds 

Ambulance Grand Glaize 

Fund Airport Fund 

$ 265,000 $ 

137,000 

$ 265,000 $ 137,000 

Total 

$ 265,000 

137,000 

2,200,000 

$ 2,602,000 

The purpose of the transfer from the General Fund to the Ambulance Fund is to subsidize the operations of this 
fund. The purpose of the transfer from the Transportation Fund to the Grand Glaize Airport Fund is to subsidize the 
operations of this fund. The purpose of the transfer from the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund to the 
Water/Sewer Fund is to subsidize the payment of this fund's revenue bonds. 

Interfund Charges for Support Services 

Interfund charges for support services paid to the General Fund were as follows: 

Transpo1iation Fund $ 149,500 

Water/Sewer Fund 60,000 

Ambulance Fund 51,900 

Lee C. Fine Airport Fund 34,900 

Grand Glaize Airport Fund 18,300 

$ 314,600 

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

A Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to to1is; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; workman's compensation; liability, crime, and employee errors and omissions; and 
natural disasters. The City purchases commercial insurance to provide coverage for general liability, property 
damage, and workers' compensation. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial insurance coverage 
in any of the past three years. 
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B. Litigation 

The City is involved in lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of activities, including claims regarding 
construction contract issues, personal injury and discriminatory personnel practices, property condemnation 
proceedings, and suits contesting the legality of certain taxes. While these cases may have future financial 
effect, management, based on advice of counsel, believes that their ultimate outcome will not be material to 
the basic financial statements. 

C. Contracts for Construction 

The City has entered into agreements with contractors for various projects for street construction, park 
improvements, construction of water and sewer facilities, and airpott construction. As of December 31, 
2018, commitments under these contracts were as follows: 

Remaining 

Project Spent-to-Date Commitment 

Transportation $ 512,660 $ 322,017 

Grand Glaize Airpo1t 217,478 11,446 

Lee C Fine Airpo1t 1,698,982 

$ 730, 138 $ 2,032,445 

D. Tax Increment Financing 

On November 1, 2007, the Board of Aldermen approved the Marina View Tax Increment Financing Plan. 
This plan consists of the construction of a hotel on approximately 28 acres and includes a future bond 
issuance of approximately $3. 7 million plus interest and other miscellaneous costs. No activity occurred for 
this project during 2018. 

On December 16, 2010, the Board of Aldermen approved the Dierbergs Osage Beach Tax Increment 
Financing Plan for a shopping centei·. This center consists of a Dierbergs Market, Dicks Sporting Goods, Bed 
Bath & Beyond and miscellaneous stores. The 2011 notes payable represent special, limited obligations of 
the City, payable solely from the incremental sales and real estate taxes generated by Dierbergs 
redevelopment area. The City functions as a collecting agent for the taxes, which are then passed through to 
the bond trustee. As the City is not liable for this debt beyond remitting all collected taxes, it is not recorded 
on the statement of net position as of December 3 1, 2018. The notes bear interest at 6.5% with final maturity 
on December 15, 2033. The balance at December 31, 2018, represents outstanding notes of $4,604, 105 and 
accrued interest of $49,878, for a total of $4,653,983. The annual debt service repayments of the 2011 TIF 
notes are the combined amounts of economic activity taxes and payments in lieu of taxes collected by the 
special allocation fund. The notes terminate December 15, 2033, whether or not the principal and interest 
have been paid in full. 

On February 18, 2016, the City entered into a TIF agreement with Arrowhead Development Group, LLC. 
Under this agreement, the City will reimburse the developer on a pay-as-you-go method with funds generated 
by the TIF project. The Agreement will redevelop the 226-acre site of the former Dogwood Hills Golf 
Course. It provides flexibility for the developer with eight separate project areas for a mixed-use 
development to be built over the next several years. The agreement provides for a TIF incentive to the 
developer for promote a $386,731,340 project when all 8 projects are completed. The total amount of the TIF 
reimbursement requested is $55,835,595, which is 14.5% of the total project costs. One half (50%) of the 
new real estate and sales taxes generated by the development shall be passed through to the taxing districts. 
To date, Project 1 is proceeding with lot development. This project includes a skilled nursing home and an 
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assisted living facility. As of December 31, 2018, approved project costs total $4,889,912 and accrued 
interest is $484, 192. No economic activity taxes or payments in lieu of taxes have been collected to date. 

On September 21, 2017, the City entered into a TIF agreement with TSG Osage Beach, LLC. Under this 
agreement, the City will reimburse the developer on a pay-as-you-go method with funds generated by the TIF 
project. The Osage Beach Commons TIF Plan will redevelop the 13.71-acre site pre-plan was The Golden 
Door motel, the closed Jake's Steak and Fish restaurant and two abandoned single-family homes. The Plan 
proposes a $30,500,000 project. The approved reimbursement is $4,550,000, which is 14.9% of the total 
project costs. One half (50%) of the new real estate and sales taxes generated by the development shall be 
passed through to the taxing districts. To date, the site is being cleared for the development. No economic 
activity taxes or payments in lieu of taxes have been collected to date. 

10. INTER GOVERNMENT AL REVENUE 

The City receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state, and local governmental 
agencies in the form of grants. Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods 
are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs. The disbursement of 
funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the 
grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such 
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of 
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements or 
the individual fund-types included herein or on the overall financial position of the City as of December 31, 
2018. 

11. PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

The City, by a Board of Aldermen resolution, created a defined contribution, single employer, retirement plan 
under Internal Revenue Code Section 401 for the employees of the City. The Board of Aldermen can amend 
the plan at their discretion. The City appointed ICMA Retirement Corporation to administer the plan. The 
plan is available to all full-time employees of the City. Employees are fully vested in contributions made on 
their behalf after 5 years. 

Plan Funding 

The City contributes 6% of eligible employee wages, while employees do not contribute to the plan. The City 
contributed $25 8,553 to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2018. There were no forfeitures in the 
current year used to offset the City's expense. 

12. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

General Information About the Plan 

The following infonnation is presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post Employment Benefits Other Than 
than Pensions. 
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Plan Description and Benefits Provided 

In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 11 above, the City provides full-time 
employees that retire after 10-years of service, the opportunity for continuation of medical and dental 
insurance coverage offered through the Mid-America Regional Council Insurance Trust (MARCIT). The 
City provides retiree healthcare benefits through MARCIT, which is an insurance pool comprised of about 59 
entity members. MARCIT functions as an agent multiple-employer plan. 

Retirees who elect to continue coverage in the medical and dental plans offered through MARCIT are 
required to pay a contribution until the employee becomes eligible for Medicare. Since the retirees pay the 
same premium as active employees each year, the City share of any premium cost is determined on the basis 
of a blended rate or implicit rate subsidy calculation. The implicit rate subsidy is the difference between what 
the retiree actually pays, and the age adjusted amount he or she would have paid for the full cost of the 
benefit. The benefits and benefit levels are governed by City policy and the MARCIT trust agreement. 

The City maintains a trust arrangement with MARCIT to collect premiums and pay claims and administrative 
costs. This trust arrangement does not qualify as an "OPEB Plan" and is not treated as holding assets in order 
to offset GASB 75 liabilities. However, GASB does require that the "Plan" determine the valuation interest 
rate (or discount rate) based on expected return of the MARC IT Health and Dental Fund since it is used to 
pay retiree claims. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund since an irrevocable trust has not been 
established. There is no stand-alone financial report for the Plan. 

Retirees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At July 1, 2017, there were no benefit recipients enrolled in the Plan for the City. 

Funding Policy 

The City does not pay retiree benefits directly; they are paid implicitly over time through employer 
subsidization of active premiums that would be lower ifretirees were not part of the experience group. 

Annual OPEB Costs and Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total OPEB liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017. The Plan provisions changed between the 
measurement date of December 3 1, 201 7 and the City's year end of December 31, 2018. As of December 3 1, 
2017, the retiree premium was 1.25 times the group plan premiums. As of December 3 1, 2018, the retiree 
premium increased to 1.35 times the group plan premiums. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Discount rate 

Medical/Rx cost trend (and retiree 

contribution trend) 

Salary scale 

Average expected remaining service life 

3.23% to 3.76% 

Average of 6.06% through fiscal year 2025 

3. 0% per year 

15 years 

Mo1iality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries RPH-2014 Adjusted to 2006 Total Dataset Headcount­
weighted Mo1iality Table with MP-2017 Full Generational Improvement. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 2, 2016 through July 1, 20 l 7. 

The following changes in actuarial assumptions were included in the July 1, 2017 valuation: 

• The retirement, disability and turnover assumptions were updated, when applicable, based on the 
latest LAGERS (Local Government Employees Retirement System) pension valuation. 

• The per capita costs, retiree contribution premiums and trend assumptions were updated. 
• The actuarial cost method was change from the Projected Unit Credit Method to Entry Age Normal -

Level %-of-Pay Method as mandated by GASB 75. 
• The discount rate was changed from 4.5% to 3.76% (beginning-of-year) and 3.23% (end-of-year) in 

accordance with GASB 75. 
• The assumed propotiion of future employees electing retiree insurance coverage was lowed from 30% 

(retirement ages< 55), 40% (retirement ages 55 to 59), and 50% (retirement ages 60 to 64) to 25%, 
35%, and 45%, respectively. 

In order to determine the municipal bond rate, the actuarial valuation uses the average of the published yields 
from the S&P Municipal Bond 20-year High Grade and the Fidelity GO AA-20 Years indexes. The selected 
average rates are 3.76% and 3.23% as of the beginning and end of the valuation year, respectively. 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of3.23%, as 
well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be using a discount rate that is l percentage point lower 
(2.23%) or l percentage point higher (4.23%) than the current rate. 

Total OPEB liability 

Increase/( decrease) from base! ine 

Current Single Discount 

1% Decrease 

(2.23%) 

$ 302,402 

28,791 

Rate Assumption 

(3.23%) 

$ 273,611 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

l % Increase 

(4.23%) 

$ 243,618 

(29,993) 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the healthcare cost trend 
assumption, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 
1 percentage point lower or l percentage point higher than the current rate. 

1% Decrease 

Total OPEB liability $ 232,060 

Increase/( decrease) from base! ine (41,551) 
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Current Trend 
Assumption 

$ 273,611 

1 % Increase 

$ 319,276 

45,665 
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning-of-year 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 

Interest 

Changes in assumptions and inputs 

Contributions - employer 

Net changes 

Total OPEB liability - end-of-year 

$ 

$ 

214,859 

21,414 

8,865 

29,473 

(1,000) 

58,752 

273,611 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows o[Resources and Deferred Inflows o[Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $29,244. The City reported 
deferred outflows resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Changes in assumptions* $ 27,664 $ (157) 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date** 2,000 

Total $ 29,664 $ (157) 

*Related to change in discount rate from 3 .76% to 3 .23% and update to actual 2017-18 retiree premium 
contributions for end-of-year measurement. 

**The amount repmied as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the total OPEB liability for the year ending December 
31, 2019. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense during the 
fiscal years ending as follows: 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

Thereafter 

Total 

$ 

$ 

45 

1,965 

1,965 

1,965 

1,965 

1,965 

17,682 

27,507 
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13. JOINT VENTURE 

On August 5, 1981, the City agreed to a joint partnership with City of Lake Ozark of a Sewage Treatment 
Plant (STP). The Board administering the STP consists of eight members, four from each city. Amounts to 
be billed to each city are based upon usage billed at identical rate structures. Costs of operation and 
maintenance are split proportionately between the two cities. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City 
paid $478,667 for its share of STP expenses. A separate audit is performed on this entity, and a copy may be 
reviewed at the City of Lake Ozark or City of Osage Beach City Hall. 

14. ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY 

Assessed valuation is established by the County Assessor. The City does not levy property taxes. A propeiiy 
tax is levied by Miller County for prope1iy located within the Prewitt's Point Project, part of the component 
unit. The Tax Increment Financing Fund receives 75% of incremental property tax collected. This revenue is 
pledged toward the repayment of the Tax Increment Financing revenue bonds pursuant to the bond indenture. 

Assessed valuation and tax levy for the property located in the Tax Increment Financing District as of 
September 21, 2018, was as follows: 

Assessed valuation for Miller County: 

Tax Increment Financing 

Tax rates per $100 assessed valuation: 

General Fund 

15. TAX ABATEMENTS 

Forthe2018 

Calendar Year 

$ 9,746,370 

$ 0.005025 

Pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation Act, Sections 99.800 through 99.865, RSMo, as 
amended (the "TIF Act"), cities and counties (governments) may adopt a redevelopment plan ("TIF plan") 
that provides for the redevelopment of a "blighted area," "conservation area" or "economic development 
area" located within the boundaries of the government to encourage increased prope1iy valuations. The 
Osage Beach Tax Increment Financing District (TIF District), a component unit of the City, recommends the 
designation of blighted areas, the redevelopment plan, and the developer, and the City has final approval. All 
of the TIF plans approved to date have been for the development of retail centers in blighted areas within the 
City by approved developers. 

In general, once approved, the City enters into a development contract with the developer covering the 
development project, including ad valorem tax (sales tax) and property tax abatements. There are no 
provisions for recapture since the taxes abated are for prope1iy development and used to fund the project and 
service debt. Under these contracts, the governments in the TIF District grant two types of tax abatements: 

• Sales tax abatements of 50 percent of the total additional revenue from taxes, penalties and interest 
which are imposed by the City or taxing districts and which are generated by economic activities 
within the areas of the TIF over the amount generated in the year before the TIF plan was adopted. 
Total sales taxes abated under the agreements totaled approximately $2,326,067 in 2018. 

• Property tax abatements attributable to the increase in assessed value of the property of property in 
the TIF district over the assessed value of the property before the development. Total property taxes 
abated under the agreements totaled approximately $584,831 in 2018. 
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16. BUDGET DISCLOSURE 

The Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund's actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by $15,781 
during the year ended December 31, 2018, due to additional expenditures being incurred that either weren't 
budgeted for, or that the budget wasn't amended for. 

17. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reportingfor Post Employment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB). This statement established 
standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and 
expenditures related to the City's OPEB plan. 

As a result of the implementation of this standard, the City's net position as of January 1, 2018 was restated as 
follows: 

Net position, as previously reported 

Prior period adjustment: 

Total OPEB liability (based on implementation of GASB 

Statement No. 75) 

Total OPEB liability (as previously repo1ied under GASB 

Statement No. 45) 

Total prior period adjustment 

Net position, as restated 
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$ 92,758,896 

(214,859) 

225,444 

10,585 

$ 92, 769,481 
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City of Osage Beach 
Budget and Actual (with Variances) 

General Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Sales $ 4,900,000 $ 4,900,000 $ 4,785,881 $ (114,119) 
Franchise 967,000 967,000 1,063,470 96,470 

Licenses, fines, permits and fees 543,200 543,200 513,760 (29,440) 
Intergovernmental 17,500 17,500 19,586 2,086 
Contributions 20,000 20,000 2,044 (17,956) 
Interest 15,000 15,000 48,644 33,644 
Payments from enterprise funds 350,600 350,600 314,600 (36,000) 
Miscellaneous 84, 100 84, 100 97,733 13,633 

Total revenues 6,897,400 6,897,400 6,845,718 (51,682) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 2,508,060 2,508,060 2,318,283 189,777 
Public safety 3,309,172 3,309,172 3,011,840 297,332 
Park and recreation 352,886 373, 104 372,684 420 
Information technology 551,449 562,404 443,009 119,395 

Capital outlay: 
Projects and equipment 368,956 374,105 270,055 104,050 

Total expenditures 7,090,523 7, 126,845 6,415,871 710,974 
Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over 
(under) expenditures (193,123) (229,445) 429,847 659,292 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers out (265,000) (265,000) (265,000) 

Sale of capital assets 11,000 11,000 349 (10,651) 

Total other financing (uses) (254,000) (254,000) (264,651) (10,651) 

Net change in fund balance (447,123) (483,445) 165,196 648,641 
Fund balance - beginning 2,636,796 2,636,796 2,636,796 

Fund balance - ending $ 2, 189,673 $ 2, 153,351 $ 2,801,992 $ 648,641 
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City of Osage Beach 
Budget and Actual (with Variances) 

Transportation Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Sales $ 2,450,000 $ 2,450,000 $ 2,345,483 $ (104,517) 

Motor vehicle fuel and license 171,000 171,000 175,814 4,814 

County road taxes 70,000 70,000 70,470 470 

Intergovernmental 341,660 341,660 297,555 (44,105) 

Interest 22,000 22,000 52,611 30,611 

Miscellaneous 1,860 1,860 

Total revenues 3,054,660 3,054,660 2,943,793 (110,867) 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
Streets and highways 2,801,514 2,838,474 1,943,542 894,932 

Capital outlay 

Streets and highways 2,637,801 2,637,801 1,174,953 1,462,848 

Total expenditures 5,439,315 5,476,275 3,118,495 2,357,780 

(Deficiency) of revenues (under) 
expenditures (2,384,655) (2,421,615) (174,702) 2,246,913 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers out (120,000) (120,000) (137,000) (17,000) 

Sale of capital assets 4,477 4,477 

Total other financing (uses) (120,000) (120,000) (132,523) (12,523) 

Net change in fund balance (2,504,655) (2,541,615) (307,225) 2,234,390 

Fund balance - beginning 5,864,012 5,864,012 5,864,012 

Fund balance - ending $ 3,359,357 $ 3,322,397 $ 5,556,787 $ 2,234,390 
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City of Osage Beach 

Budget and Actual (with Variances) 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

REVENUES 

Taxes: 

Sales $ 2,450,000 $ 2,450,000 $ 2,345,420 $ (104,580) 

Interest 4,100 4,100 11,4 79 7,379 

Total revenues 2,454, 100 2,454,100 2,356,899 (97,201) 

EXPENDITURES 

Cun-ent: 
Capital improvements 321,000 321,000 336,781 (15,781) 

Total expenditures 321,000 321,000 336,781 (15,781) 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,133,100 2,133,100 2,020,118 (112,982) 

OTHER FINANCING USES 

Transfers out (2,200,000) (2,200,000) (2,200,000) 

Total other financing uses (2,200,000) (2,200,000) (2,200,000) 

Net change in fund balance (66,900) (66,900) (179,882) 112,982 

Fund balance - beginning 1,081,596 1,081,596 1,081,596 

Fund balance - ending $ 1,014,696 $ 1,014,696 $ 901,714 $ 112,982 
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Budgetary Information 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

The City's policy is to prepare the operating budgets in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. The City prepared budgets for all governmental fund types for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

6) Prior to January 1, the City Administrator submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal period commencing January 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

7) The City utilizes multiple public budget workshops that the public is invited to attend and make 
comments. The proposed budget is available for public inspection prior to the budget workshops. 

8) Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

9) The City Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within a fund; however, any 
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Aldermen. 

10) All appropriations lapse at year-end. 

The primary basis of budgetary control is at the fund level. The budget was amended during the year. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 
Required Supplementary Information - OPEB Plan 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Total OPEB liability 

Service cost 

Interest 

Assumption changes 

Contributions - employer 

Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 

Total OPEB liability - ending 

Note: This schedule will ultimately contain ten years of data. 

Schedule of OPEB Contributions 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Expected retiree claims and administrative costs 

Expected retiree premium contributions 

Employer contributions 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Note: This schedule ·will ultimately contain ten years of data. 
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$ 21,414 

8,865 

29,473 

(1,000) 

58,752 

214,859 

$ 273,611 

$ 

$ 

4,000 

(3,000) 

1,000 

$ 4,162,388 

0.02% 
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Statistical Section 

This section of the City of Osage Beach's annual financial rep01i presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
City's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends (Tables 1-4) 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity (Tables 5-6 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the 
City's ability to generate its sales taxes. 

Debt Capacity (Tables 7-11) 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in 
the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information (Tables 12-13) 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place and to 
help make comparisons over time and with other governments. 

Operating Information (Tables 14-16) 

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the 
reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City 
provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant fiscal year. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE I 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting~ 

FISCAL YEAR 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Governmental Activities: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 27,731,455 $ 27,894,023 $ 28,345,590 $ 29,136,972 $ 40,750, 125 $ 39,307,279 $ 37,653,615 $ 37,500,016 $ 36,556,436 $ 34,915,470 
Restricted 7,005,298 6,760,655 5,420,281 4,824,565 5,499,168 6,010,852 6,931,150 6,502,607 6,927,365 6,476,810 
Unrestricted 4, 137,610 3,597,054 3,787,573 3,288,366 3,308,811 3,530,536 3,231, 106 3, 113, 136 2,371,532 2,497,536 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 38,874,363 $ 38,251,732 $ 37,553,444 $ 37,249,903 $ 49,558,104 $ 48,848,667 $ 47,815,871 $ 47,115,759 $ 45,855,333 $ 43,889,816 

Business-type activities: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 32,892,194 $ 33,970,840 $ 34,151,316 $ 33,596,269 $ 34,434,359 $ 35,337,942 $ 36,016,361 $ 36,440,536 $ 38,703,040 $ 39,492,176 
Restricted 2,444,465 2,586,902 2,697,627 2,727,651 2,806,768 2,895,805 2,945,442 3,004,278 3,211,266 3,256,225 
Unrestricted 6,682,522 6,200,856 5,480,505 6,667,923 5,537,936 5,791,462 5,448,395 5,415,198 4,989,257 5,493,317 

Total business-type activities net assets $ 42,019,181 $ 42,758,598 $ 42,329,448 $ 42,991,843 $ 42,779,063 $ 44,025,209 $ 44,410,198 $ 44,860,012 $ 46,903,563 $ 48,241,718 

Primary government: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 60,623,649 $ 61,864,863 $ 62,496,906 $ 62,733,241 $ 75,184,484 $ 74,645,221 $ 73,669,976 $ 73,940,552 $ 75,259,476 $ 74,407,646 
Restricted 9,449,763 9,347,557 8,117,908 7,552,216 8,305,936 8,906,657 9,876,592 9,506,885 10,138,631 9,733,035 
Unrestrickd 10,820, 132 9,797,910 9,268,078 9,956,289 8,846,747 9,321,998 8,679,501 8,528,334 7,360,789 7,990,853 

Total primary government net assets $ 80,893,544 $ 81,010,330 $ 79,882,892 $ 80,241,746 $ 92,337, 167 $ 92,873,876 $ 92,226,069 $ 91,975,771 $ 92,758,896 $ 92, 131,534 

Note: The Cit) implemented GASB 65 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. As a result, beginning net position for the business-type activities was reduced by $427, 771. However, prior years were not restated. The City 
implemented GASB 75 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. As a result, beginning net position for the governmental activities was increased by $22,510 and the net position for the business-type activities was reduced by 
$1 I,924. However, prior years were not restated. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE2 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(accn1al basis of accounting) 

FISCAL YEAR 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 2, 796,047 $ 2,836,549 $ 2,728,669 $ 2,634,466 $ 2, 795, 702 $ 2,652,546 $ 2,780,408 $ 2,908,660 $ 2,986,937 $ 2,934,961 
Public safety 3,001,162 3, 122,315 3,057,360 3,023,822 3,091,649 2,978,236 3,052,006 3, 143,046 3,081,476 3,141,925 
Parks and recreation 210,671 420,349 456,627 510,657 458, 198 529,212 494,456 610,252 614,335 669,858 
Information technology 233,44 l 255,380 262,973 379,314 331,982 328,665 429,671 381,851 527,030 492,477 
Streets and highways 2,411,262 2,705,865 3,018,295 2,911,893 2,967,447 3,613,537 3,354,035 3,536,724 3,679,606 4,296,076 
Interest on long-tenn debt 21,563 15,360 175 

Total governmental activities expenses 8,674,146 9,355,818 9,524,099 9,460,152 9,644,978 10,102,196 10,1 I0,576 10,580,533 10,889,384 l l,535,297 
Business-type activities: 

Water/Sewer 6,608,497 6,201,919 6,353,915 6,308,541 6,384,I 14 6,005,376 6,510,125 6,684,891 6,452,884 6,020,462 
Ambulance 489,201 530,342 508,179 502,076 549,256 550,425 559,263 599,568 585,358 584,394 
Airports 943,157 1,222,842 1,298,290 1,453,944 1,267,451 1,152,138 1,136,262 1,217,135 1,147,180 1,555,938 

Total business-type activities expenses 8,040,855 7,955, 103 8,160,384 8,264,561 8,200,821 7,707,939 8,205,650 8,501,594 8, 185,422 8,160,794 
Total primary government expenses $ 16,715,001 $ 17,310,921 $ 17,684,483 $ 17,724,713 $ 17,845,799 $ 17,810,135 $ 18,316,226 $ 19,082,127 $ 19,074,806 $ 19,696,091 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
General government $ 183,234 $ 230,490 $ 182,720 $ 177,475 $ 287,269 $ 193,175 $ 196,614 $ 188,250 $ 251,529 $ 272,851 
Public safety 277,441 241,182 248,011 207,181 231,185 243,122 252,439 210,874 203,491 200,900 
Parks and recreation 13,969 4,059 7,122 18,650 32,749 33,735 40,009 
Streets and highways 6,260 7 

Operating grants and contributions 25,642 27,658 28,289 13,961 80,180 10,588 21,004 25,322 54,362 21,630 

Capital grants and contributions 67,520 848,628 191,983 710,078 13,134,610 663, 157 177,439 709,092 362,027 297,555 

Total governmental activities program revenues 553,837 1,347,958 651,003 1,128,924 13,737,310 1,117,164 666, 146 1,166,287 905,144 832,945 

Business-type activities: 
Charges for services: 

Water/Sewer 3,006,674 3,473,822 3,462,061 3,701,841 3,813,025 4,040,992 3,926,031 4,202,405 4,341,405 4,440,524 

Ambulance 164,749 163,800 195,689 169,359 178,696 213,254 221,469 235,158 253,263 278,392 

Airports 694,795 887,587 1,030,363 944,568 916,094 921,421 935,702 899,751 863,039 1,029,284 

Operating grants and contributions 851,576 862,516 808,004 762,814 712,858 661,112 622,627 537,637 487,820 428,331 

Capital grants and contributions 883,607 624,873 57,020 739,451 429,451 706,897 372,655 622,107 1,782,273 582,118 

Total business-type activities program revenues 5,601,401 6,012,598 5,553,137 6,318,033 6,050, 124 6,543,676 6,078,484 6,497,058 7,727,800 6,758,649 

Total primary government program revenues $ 6,155,238 $ 7,360,556 $ 6,204,140 $ 7,446,957 $ 19, 787,434 $ 7,660,840 $ 6,744,630 $ 7,663,345 $ 8,632,944 $ 7,591,594 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE2 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(acc111al basis of accounting) 

FISCAL YEAR 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Net (expense)/revenue 
Governmental activities $ (8, 120,309) $ ( 8,007,860) $ ( 8,873,096) $ ( 8,331,228) $ 4,092,332 $ (8,985,032) $ (9,444,430) $ (9,414,246) $ (9,984,240) $ (10,702,352) 
Business-type activities (2,439,454) (I,942,505) (2,607,247) (l,946,528) (2, 150, 697) (!, 164,263) (2,127, 166) (2,004,536) (457,622) (1,402, 145) 
Total primary government net expenses $ (10,559,763) $ (9,950,365) $ (l 1,480,343) $ ( 10,277,756) $ 1,941,635 $ (I 0, 149,295) $ (ll,571,596) $ (11,418,782) $ (10,441,862) $ (12,104,497) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in 
Net Position 

Governmental Activities: 

Taxes 
County road taxes $ 60,136 $ 67,842 $ 67,859 $ 67,752 $ 69,622 $ 67,902 $ 69,887 $ 70,833 $ 70,477 $ 70,470 
Sales taxes 8,449,041 8,388,738 8,553,918 8,765,944 8,745,521 9,065,925 9,157,986 9,424,674 9,428,003 9,476,784 
Franchise taxes 823,723 832,706 848,634 851,346 941,599 952,678 993,059 943,737 938,888 1,063,470 
Motor vehicle fuel and license 135,750 140,107 138,790 155,949 157,635 164,069 170,674 172,097 175,551 175,814 
Payments from enterprise funds 500,702 465,145 390,300 459,400 479,312 194,600 212,000 271,500 290,000 314,600 
Unrestricted investment earnings 137,682 72,809 69,197 52,263 50,401 36,444 22,338 38,010 55,480 112,734 
Other income 89,447 44,042 208, 145 68,815 79,236 63,338 156,215 l 18,731 168,335 99,593 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 1,878 16,840 9,632 11,218 543 85,639 14,475 10,052 28,080 2,861 
Transfers (2,095,991) (2,643,00 I) (2,l l l,667) (2,405,000) (2,308,000) (2,355,000) (2,385,000) (2,335,500) (2,431,000) (2,602,000) 

Total governmental activities 8, I 02,368 7,385,228 8, 174,808 8,027,687 8,215,869 8,275,595 8,411,634 8,714,134 8,723,814 8,714,326 
Business-type activities 

Unrestricted investment earnings 88,584 56,534 55,486 49,697 49,346 32,889 20,061 28,409 55,940 120,127 
Other income (3,920) (24,980) 10,944 130,000 4,460 13,620 51,013 87,415 12,174 27,610 
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (96,799) 7,367 24,226 3,883 8,900 56,081 3,026 2,059 2,487 

Transfers 2,095,991 2,643,001 2,111,667 2,405,000 2,308,000 2,355,000 2,385,000 2,335,500 2,431,000 2,602,000 
Total business-type activities 2,083,856 2,681,922 2, 178,097 2,608,923 2,365,689 2,410,409 2,512,155 2,454,350 2,501,173 2,752,224 
Total primary government $ 10,186,224 $ 10,067,150 $ I 0,352,905 $ 10,636,610 $ 10,581,558 $ 10,686,004 $ 10,923, 789 $ 11, 168,484 $ l l,224,987 $ 11,466,550 

Change in net position 
Governmental activities $ (17,941) $ (622,632) $ (698,288) $ (303,541) $ 12,308,201 $ (709,437) $ (l,032,796) $ (700,112) $ (l,260,426) $ ( 1,988,026) 

Business-type activities (355,598) 739,417 (429,150) 662,395 214,992 1,246, 146 384,989 449,814 2,043,551 1,350,079 

Total primary government $ (373,539) $ 116,785 $ (1,127,438) $ 358,854 $ 12,523,193 $ 536,709 $ (647,807) $ (250,298) $ 783,125 $ (637,947) 

Note: The City implemented GASB 65 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. As a result, beginning net position for the business-type activities was reduced by $427, 771. However, prior years were not restated. The City implemented 
GASB 75 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. As a result, beginning net position for the governmental activities was increased by $22,510 and the net position for the business-type activities was reduced by $11,924. However, prior years 
were not restated. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE 3 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

FISCAL YEAR 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
General Fund 

Nonspendable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 71,107 $ 95,007 $ 134,056 $ 140,773 $ 188,793 
Unassigned 4,251,360 3,750,291 3,967,259 3,488,474 3,467,352 3,274,396 3,295,348 3, 116,070 2,496,023 2,613,199 

Total General Fund 4,251,360 3,750,291 3,967,259 3,488,474 3,467,352 3,345,503 3,390,355 3,250,126 2,636,796 2,801,992 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonspendable 5,726 6,548 30,811 18,243 39,691 
Restricted 7,005,298 6,760,655 5,420,281 4,824,565 2,499,168 6,010,852 6,931,150 6,502,607 6,927,365 6,476,810 
Unassigned - (58,000) 

Total all other governmental funds 7,005,298 6,760,655 5,420,281 4,824,565 2,499,168 6,016,578 6,937,698 6,533,418 6,945,608 6,458,501 

Total governmental funds $ l l,256,658 $ 10,510,946 $ 9,387,540 $ 8,313,039 $ 5,966,520 $ 9,362,081 $ 10,328,053 $ 9,783,544 $ 9,582,404 $ 9,260,493 

Note: GAS8 54 was implemented during fiscal year 201 J. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE4 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

FISCAL YEAR 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 9,468,650 $ 9,429,393 $ 9,609,201 $ 9,840,991 $ 9,914,377 $ 10,250,574 $ 10,391,606 $ 10,611,341 $ 10,612,919 $ 10, 786,538 
Licenses, fines, pem1its 460,675 471,672 430,731 404,885 522,520 443,419 467,703 431,873 488,755 513,760 
Intergovernmental 25,642 659,184 216,422 459,077 209,925 322,940 522,477 690,410 528,690 317,141 
Interest 137,682 72,809 65,297 52,263 50,401 36,444 22,338 38,010 55,480 112,734 
Contributions 2,044 
Charges for services 500,702 465,145 390,300 459,400 479,312 194,600 212,000 271,500 290,000 314,600 
Miscellaneous 89,447 44,042 208,145 68,815 79,236 63,338 162, 765 133,939 174,545 99,593 
Total revenues 10,682,798 11,142,245 10,920,096 11,285,431 11,255,771 11,311,315 11,778,889 12,177,073 12,150,389 12,146,410 

Expenditures 
General government 2,470,121 2,571,390 2,503,170 2,457,491 2,517,947 2,397,258 2,457,995 2,314,939 2,433,501 2,318,283 
Public safety 2,799,756 2,901,521 2,898,977 2,809,445 2,973,390 2,859,619 2,885,675 2,941,372 2,942,362 3,011,840 
Parks and recreation 145,046 198, 755 211,405 248,085 250,501 253,983 253,021 300,587 300,8!5 372,684 
lnfomiation technology 228,392 254,128 258,651 264,122 272,124 282,989 333,231 319,004 455,477 443,009 
Streets and highways 816,!35 1,046,961 1,064,677 1,160,715 919,711 1,152,84! 797,661 939,140 I,109,614 I,943,542 
Capital outlay 2,448,424 2,008,876 2,722,098 3,026,290 1,364,162 1,707,908 1,716,624 3,581,775 2,710,928 1,781,789 
Debt service 

Interest and fees 24,758 17,310 2,489 
Principal 260,000 270,000 280,000 

Total expenditures 9, 192,632 9,268,941 9,941,467 9,966,148 8,297,835 8,654,598 8,444,207 10,396,817 9,952,697 9,871,147 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 1,490,166 1,873,304 978,629 1,319,283 2,957,936 2,656,717 3,334,682 l,780,256 2,197,692 2,275,263 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 50,176 - 150,000 175,000 34,000 

Transfers out (2,146,167) (2,643,001) (2, 111,667) (2,405,000) (2,308,000) (2,505,000) (2,560,000) (2,369,500) (2,431,000) (2,602,000) 

Sale of capital assets 17,769 23,985 9,632 11,216 3,545 93,844 16,290 10,735 32,168 4,826 

Total other financing (uses) (2,078,222) (2,619,016) (2,102,035) (2,393, 784) (2,304,455) (2,261,156) (2,368, 710) (2,324, 765) (2,398,832) (2,597,174) 

Net change in fund balance $ (588,056) $ (745,712) $ (I, 123,406) $ (1,074,50 I) $ 653,481 $ 395,561 $ 965,972 $ (544,509) $ (201,140) $ (321,911) 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 4.02% 3.81% 3.66% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MlSSOURI 
TABLE 5 

GOVERNMENT AL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

MOTOR 
COUNTY VEHICLE 

FISCAL ROAD SALES FRANCHISE FUEL & LICENSE 
YEAR TAX TAX TAX TAX TOTAL 

2009 $ 60,136 $ 8,449,041 $ 823,723 $ 135,750 $ 9,468,650 
2010 67,842 8,388,738 832,706 140, 107 9,429,393 
2011 67,859 8,553,918 848,634 138,790 9,609,201 
2012 67,752 8,765,944 851,346 155,949 9,840,991 
2013 69,622 8,745,521 941,599 157,635 9,914,377 
2014 67,902 9,065,925 952,678 164,069 10,250,574 
2015 69,887 9,157,986 993,059 170,674 10,391,606 
2016 70,833 9,424,674 943,737 172,097 10,611,341 
2017 70,477 9,428,003 938,888 175,551 10,612,919 

2018 70,470 9,488,917 1,063,470 175,814 10,798,671 
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CITY STATE 
FISCAL DIRECT SALES TAX 
YEAR RATE RATE --

2009 2% 4.225% 
2010 2% 4.225% 
2011 2% 4.225% 
2012 2% 4.225% 
2013 2% 4.225% 
2014 2% 4.225% 
2015 2% 4.225% 
2016 2% 4.225% 
2017 2% 4.225% 
2018 2% 4.225% 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RA TES 
LAST TEN YEARS 

CAMDEN MILLER MILLER CO. TDD 
COUNTY COUNTY AMBULANCE PREWITT 

RATE RATE RATE RATE 

1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
1.25% 1% 0.5% 1% 
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TABLE 6 

TDD TDD CID 
OSAGE STAT. DIERBERGS ARROWHEA[ 

RATE RATE RATE 

0.75% 0% 0% 
0.75% 0% 0% 
0.75% 0% 0% 
0.75% 0% 0% 
0.75% 1% 0% 
0.75% 1% 0% 
0.75% 1% 0% 
0.75% 1% 1% 
0.75% 1% !% 
0.75% 1% 1% 
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GOVERNMENT AL 
ACTIVITIES 

FISCAL GENERAL OBLIGATION 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN YEARS 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

TOTAL 
WATER/SEWER PRIMARY PER 

YEAR BONDS REVENUE BONDS GOVERNMENT POPULATION CAPITA 

2009 $ 550,000 $ 33,575,000 $ 34,125,000 4,370 
2010 280,000 31,361,272 31,641,272 4,351 
2011 - 29,534,059 29,534,059 4,480 
2012 - 27,626,850 27,626,850 4,528 
2013 - 26,577,951 26,577,951 4,563 
2014 - 24, 195,839 24,195,839 4,395 
2015 - 22,123,728 22,123,728 4,477 
2016 - 19,751,616 19,751,616 4,471 
2017 - 17,269,504 17,269,504 4,857 
2018 - 14,692,394 14,692,394 4,857 

Notes: 
Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data. 

$ 7,809 
7,272 
6,592 
6,101 
5,825 
5,505 
4,942 
4,418 
3,556 
3,025 

% OF PER CAPITA 

INCOME OF OSAGE 

BEACH RESIDENTS 

WITHIN CAMDEN CTY 

27% 
25% 
22% 
20% 
18% 
17% 
14% 
13% 
10% 
8% 

Personal income and per capita personal income are not available for the City of Osage Beach, so county information was utilized. 
Osage Beach population is in both Camden and Miller County, but the exact division of population is unknown. 
Population data listed is based on estimates from the U.S. Census Bureau. 
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TABLE 7 

% OF PER CAPITA 

INCOME OF OSAGE 

BEACH RESIDENTS 

WITHIN MILLER CTY 

31% 
27% 
24% 
21% 
19% 
17% 
15% 
13% 
10% 
9% 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN YEARS 

GENERAL PERCENTAGE OF 
FISCAL OBLIGATION SALES TAX PER 
YEAR BONDS RECEIVED CAPITA 

2009 $ 550,000 6.51% $ 
2010 280,000 3.31% 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Note: 
Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data. 

TABLE 8 

175 
59 

Sales tax received for each year is in the schedule Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by source for the City. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENT AL ACTIVITIES DEBT 
As of December 31, 2018 

TABLE 9 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

OUTSTANDING 

PERCENTAGE 
APPLICABLE TO 

AMOUNT 
APPLICABLE TO 

NAME OF GOVERNMENTAL UNIT CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 1 
CITY OF OSAGE BEACH 

Camdenton R-III School District 
School of the Osage R-II 

61,010,000 
58,575,000 

675,000 

16% 
4% 

53% 

9,761,600 
2,343,000 

357,750 Osage Beach Fire Protection District 
Total direct and overlapping debt $12,462,350 

Sources: Debt outstanding data provided by Camden County, Miller County, Camdenton Schoel District, School of the Osage 
School District and the Osage Beach Fire Protection District. 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City. This 
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents 
and businesses of the City of Osage Beach. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to 
issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken in account. 
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of each 
overlapping government. 

1 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using student population of both of the school districts and land 
area located inside or out of the Osage Beach Fire District. 
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Debt limit 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

as a percentage of debt limit 

2009 

$55,907,389 

550,000 

$55,357,389 

0.98% 

2010 

$55,846,465 

280,000 

$55,566,465 

0.50% 

CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN YEARS 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

$55,111,829 $54, 718,090 $55,091,515 $57,307,294 $57, 728,809 $57,258,506 

$55,lll,829 $54,718,090 $55,091,515 $57,307,294 $57, 728,809 $57,258,506 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2018 

Total Assessed Value 

Debt limit (20% of total assessed value) 

Debt applicable to limit: 

Legal debt margin 

Under Article VI, Sections 26 (b) and 26 ©of the Missouri Constitution, the City by a vote of2/3 of the qualified electors thereof, may incur general obligation bonded indebtedness 

for City purposes in an amount not to exceed I 0% of the assessed valuation of taxable intangible property within the City as asserted by the last complete assessment for state 

or county purposes. Under Section 26 {d) of said Article VJ, the city may incur general obligation indebtedness not exceeding in the aggregate an additional I 0% of the aforesaid 

assessed valuation for the purpose of acquiring rights of way, constructing and improving sanitary or storm sewer systems; and under Section 26 (e) of said article VI, additional 

general obligation indebtedness may be incurred for purchasing or constructing water-works electric or other light plants to be owned exclusively by the City, provided that the 

general obligation indebtedness of the City shall not exceed 20% of the assessed valuation. 
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TABLE IO 

2017 2018 

$57, I 53,052 $58,416,054 

$57,153,052 $58,416,054 

0.00% 0.00% 

$292,080,270 

58,416,054 

$58,416,054 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

WATER/SEWER FUND 
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

NET 
REVENUE 

DIRECT AVAILABLE 

FISCAL OPERATING OPERATING FOR DEBT DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

YEAR REVENUE 2 EXPENSE 3 SERVICE PRINCIPAL4 INTEREST 

2009 $3,946,471 $2,494,769 $1,451,702 $1,745,000 $1,718,762 
2010 4,392,279 2,302,711 2,089,568 1,815,000 1,642,436 
2011 4,336,457 2,501,602 1,834,855 1,865,000 1,574,428 
2012 4,660,931 2,449,339 2,2I 1,592 1,945,000 1,486,003 
2013 4,583,572 2,615,319 1,968,253 2,030,000 1,391,400 
2014 4,763,887 2,312,994 2,450,893 2, 110,000 1,289,621 
2015 4,568,719 2,698,936 1,869,783 2,200,000 1,181,323 
2016 4,740,042 3,003,538 1,736,504 2,300,000 1,069,765 
2017 4,829,225 2,883,252 1,945,973 2,410,000 953,056 
2018 4,868,855 2,581,076 2,287,779 2,505,000 828,256 

1 The Water/Sewer fund deficit is subsidized by Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund transfers. 
2 Operating revenue includes investment income and DNR interest subsidies. 
3 Excludes depreciation expense. 
4 Principal balance found in notes to financial statements, page 37 
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TOTAL 

$3,463,762 
3,457,436 
3,439,428 
3,431,003 
3,421,400 
3,399,621 
3,381,323 
3,369,765 
3,363,056 
3,333,256 

TABLE 11 

COVERAGE CAPT. IMPROV. 

RATIO TRANSFER 1 

0.42 $1,776,667 
0.60 1,910,001 
0.53 1,800,000 
0.64 1,855,000 
0.58 1,925,000 
0.72 1,925,000 
0.55 1,935,000 
0.52 1,935,000 
0.58 1,935,000 
0.69 2,200,000 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

DEMOGRAPHIC ST A TISTICS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Personal Income2 Personal Income 2 

of Osage Beach of Osage Beach Per Capita 

FISCAL Residents within Residents within Personal Income2 

YEAR Population 1 Camden County* Miller County * Camden County 

2009 4,370 139,970 111,299 29,386 
2010 4,351 125,472 115,462 28,848 
2011 4,480 135,166 124,751 30,186 
2012 4,528 140,316 133,214 31,002 
2013 4,563 144,161 139,297 31,599 
2014 4,395 144,355 141,339 32,831 
2015 4,477 153,728 150,315 34,308 
2016 4,471 154,804 I 50,537 34,558 
2017 4,857 173,595 168,369 35,598 
2018 4,857 159,263 154,469 35,598 

Sources: 
1U.S. Census Bureau (estimates updated July lst of each year) 
2 U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis 
3 U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics (percentage calculated on an annual average) 
Reflects revised inputs, estimations, and new statewide controls 

Notes: 
* Denotes numbers expressed in thousands 

Per Capita Unemployment 

Personal Income2 Rate3 

Miller County Camden County 

25,357 9.8% 
26,542 12.0% 
27,852 11.2% 
29,426 9.6% 
30,534 9.3% 
32,164 8.2% 
33,579 6.6% 
33,672 5.9% 
34,635 4.8% 
34,635 4.3% 

Personal income and per capita personal income is not available for the City of Osage Beach, so county information was utilized. 
Osage Beach population is in both Camden and Miller Counties, but the exact division of population is unknown. 
Population data listed is based on estimates from the U.S. Census Bureau. 
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TABLE12 

Unemployment 

Rate3 

Miller County 

11.7% 
12.9% 
11.5% 
9.0% 
8.8% 
7.7% 
6.0% 
5.2% 
4.4% 
3.7% 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO 

2018 

Percentage 

of Total City 

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees 

1Lake Regional Health System 1359 1 30.50% 1100 
20sage Beach Outlet Marketplace 800 2 17.95% 800-1200 
3Camdenton R-III School District 730 3 16.38% 575 
4Tan-Tar-A Resort 450 4 10.10% 560 

Hy-Vee 314 5 7.05% 435 
3School of the Osage R-II School District 302 6 6.78% 225 

Wal-Mart Supercenter 300 7 6.73% 430 
5Central Bank of Lake of the Ozarks 155 8 3.48% 100 

Lowe's Home Improvement 130 9 2.92% 150 

City of Osage Beach 124 10 2.78% 104 

Target 85 1.91% 150 

Sources: 
Lake of the Ozarks Council of Local Governments and employer representatives 

Notes: 
All numbers include both full time and part time employment. 

'Employee totals represent hospital and clinics which include clinics outside Osage Beach city limits. 
2Employee totals are estimates comprised from over 60 different stores within the mall. 
3Employee totals represent entire School District which includes schools outside Osage Beach city limits. 
4Employer is not located within Osage Beach city limits. 

2009 

Rank 

2 

I 

3 

4 

5 

7 

6 

8 

9 

9 

5Employee totals represent all Central Bank locations of which three locations are within Osage Beach city limits. 
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TABLE13 

Percentage 

of Total City 

Employment 

23.55% 

21.41% 

12.31% 

11.99% 

9.31% 

4.82% 

9.21% 

2.14% 

3.21% 

2.23% 

3.21% 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE14 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function/Program 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

General Government 

City Administrator 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 

City Clerk4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 4 2.5 

City Treasurer4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 

Municipal Court I I 

City Attorney I I 

Building Inspection1 3.5 3.5 3.5 3 3 3 3 2.5 3.5 3.5 

Building Maintenance3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.5 0.5 0.5 

Parks & Recreation 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4.8 

Human Resources I I I I I I I I I I 

Planning Department1 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.25 2 2 1.5 1.5 1.5 

Information Technology 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2.5 3 3 

Engineering Department2 4 4 4 4.5 4.75 0 0 0 0 0 

Police 

Law Enforcement 30 30 29 29 29 30 30 30 29.5 28 

911 Center II II II II 11 11 II 11 II II 

Public Works 

Transportation I 8.3 8.3 8.3 10.3 10.3 10 10 10 IO 10.5 

Water1 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3 7 7 7 7 7.2 

Sewer1 8.4 8.4 8.4 8.4 8.4 10 10 10 10 10.2 

Ambulance 7 7 7 6 6 6 7 8 9.5 8.5 

Airport 

Lee C. Fine1 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 4 4.3 

Grand Glaize1 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.5 

Total 104 104 103 103 103 103 104 106 IIO 109 

Source: Annual Budget 

Note: 
1 Some employees' wages are split between different departments. 
21n 2014, the City of Osage Beach integrated the Engineering Department into Public Works. 
31n 2016, a part-time building maintenance position was added. 
4 In 2018, a full-time position was moved from the City Clerk to the City Treasurer. 

68 

137



CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE15 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Police 

Incident Reports 2,023 1,975 1,727 1,644 1,464 1,660 1,832 1,851 1,752 1,554 

Traffic Violations 1,858 1,793 1,712 1,290 1,783 1,856 2,145 1,975 1,968 1,748 

Traffic Warnings 2,967 2,561 2,430 2,169 2,507 2,099 2,307 2,348 2,547 2,349 

911 Center 

Number of Calls Answered 1 20,946 19,927 20,420 23,133 21,160 21,458 20,859 21,463 24,108 23,719 

Ambulance 

Calls for service 828 887 888 825 812 777 858 885 968 900 

Building 

Permits 

Residential 87 76 57 86 67 77 70 49 75 80 

Commercial 68 79 97 92 72 73 71 76 81 86 

Water 

Total Water Sold 260,479 300,688 305,915 329,769 306,699 318,395 314,987 333,138 330,431 340,759 

(thousands of gallons) 

Wastewater 

Average Daily Sewage Treatment 1,229 1,093 987 1,030 1,006 1,176 1,320 1,304 1,358 1,364 

(thousands of gallons) 

Airports 

Lee C. Fine Airport 

Number of Take Offs & Landings 5,131 5,667 5,030 5,147 4,721 4,522 5,023 4,863 4,971 5,342 

Grand Glaize Airport 

Number of Take Offs & Landings 3,937 3,196 3,059 2,587 2,348 2,129 2,431 2,768 3,130 2,794 

Recycling 
Waste Oil (gallons) 1,673 2, 138 1,750 951 551 634 1,029 2,427 863 1,330 

White Goods (pounds)2 15,080 9,420 8,500 5,168 5,620 7,860 9,080 2,740 

Sources: Various City Government Departments 

Notes: 
1Number of Calls represents both emergency and non-emergency calls. In 2005, the Osage Beach 911 Center was extended to include calls for 

Lake Ozark Fire & Ambulance. Due to contract expiration in early 2016, Osage Beach 911 ceased taking calls for Lake Ozark Fire & Ambulance. 
2Prior to 201 1, White Goods were not tracked. 
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CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI 
TABLE16 

CAPITAL ASSET ST A TISTICS BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Public Safety 
Police: 

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Patrol Units 22 22 21 21 21 21 21 22 22 22 

Ambulance Protection: 
Number of Vehicles 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Highways and Streets 
Miles of Streets Paved 37.38 37.78 37.78 38.08 44.65 44.65 45.45 45.92 45.92 45.92 
Miles of Sidewalks 5.31 6.09 6.09 6.87 6.87 7.33 7.33 8.83 9.59 9.59 
Number of Street Lights 517 517 538 628 638 638 640 640 671 671 

Parks and Recreation 
Park Acreage 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 106 
Number of Parks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Water 
Water Mains (miles) 241.56 241.84 245.80 246.84 246.84 246.84 248.15 249.00 249.00 249.00 

Fire Hydrants 927 930 969 983 983 983 994 994 994 994 

Wells 10 10 IO 10 10 10 10 7 7 7 

Water Towers 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Sewer 
Sanitary Sewers (miles) 143.39 143.96 148.30 149.71 149.95 150.95 151.94 152.02 152.39 152.96 

Pump Stations 1,174 1,178 1,186 1,218 1,224 1,229 1,239 1,242 1,237 1,240 

Sources: Various City Government Departments 
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.:: WILLIAMS 
.::::KEEPERS LLC 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS 

June 10, 2019 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Osage Beach, Missouri 

2005 West Broadway, Suite 100, Columbia, MO 65203 
OFFICE ( 573) 442-6171 FAX ( 573) 777-7800 

3220 West Edgewood, Suite E, Jefferson City, MO 65109 
OFFICE ( 573) 635-6196 FAX ( 573) 644-7240 

www.williamskeepers.com 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist the Board of Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri (the City) 
in its governance and oversight function by providing annual audit services. Our audit reports for the year 
ended December 31, 2018, have been provided to you and management and include the following: 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awards a Certificate 
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Repo1iing to entities for their Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Reports (CAFR) submitted to and approved by the GFOA. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual 
financial report. This rep01i must satisfy generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), GFOA 
requirements and applicable legal requirements. A CAFR contains substantially more information than that 
required by GAAP and is a sign of excellence in financial reporting. 

A CAFR contains the following information: 

• Introductory Section (additional GFOA requirement) 
• Financial Section (GAAP requirement) 
• Statistical Section (additional GFOA requirement) 

Financial Statements 

The City's CAFR contains the City's annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, along 
with our report on those financial statements. Highlights are as follows: 

• We issued an "unmodified" or a "clean" opinion on the financial statements. In our opinion, the 
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the activities and 
funds of the City as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in its financial position and 
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with GAAP. 

• The financial statements include 2 different sets of financial statements: 

o Government-wide financial statements, which are full accrual and include all funds as well as 
capital assets and long-term debt and other liabilities. These are separated into governmental 
and business-type activities. 

o Fund financial statements, which are separated into governmental funds (revenue from taxes 
and other general sources and use modified accrual) and proprietary funds (revenue from user 
charges and full accrual). 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants j Missouri Society of Certified Public Accountants I Member, Allinial Global 
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• The following summarizes the highlights from the government-wide financial statements (primary 
government only) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016. 

2018 2017 2016 

Total assets $ 108,038,758 $111,281,850 $ 112,759,927 
Total deferred outflows of resources 423,475 503,711 613,612 
Total liabilities 16,330,542 19,026,665 21,397,768 
Total deferred inflows of resources 157 
Total net position 92,131,534 92,758,896 91,975,771 
Unrestricted net position 7,990,853 7,360,789 8,528,334 

Total revenues $ 19,058,144 $ 19,857,931 $ 18,831,829 
Total expenses 19,696,091 19,074,806 19,082,127 
Change in net position (637,947) 783,125 (250,298) 

• Total assets decreased approximately $3.2 million primarily due to a decrease in capital assets as a 
result of depreciation expense exceeding capital asset purchases in 2018. 

• Total deferred outflows ofresources were stable. 

• Total liabilities decreased approximately $2. 7 million primarily due to principal payments on long­
term debt. 

• Total revenues and total expenses were stable. 

• The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-14 discusses the changes in the various 
categories in more detail. 

Auditors' Communication Letter 

This letter consists of comments about the audit process and its results that are required under our professional 
standards to be communicated to an audit or similar committee of the governing board of an organization or 
entity. For the City, the Board of Aldermen serves that role. 

Highlights from the letter are as follows: 

• We noted no transactions that we considered both unusual and significant. There was a change in 
accounting policies during the year, as the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions (OPEB). 

• The following are new pronouncements issued by GASB that will be effective in the next few years: 

o GASB Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and 
Direct Placements, will be effective for the City's year ending December 31, 2019. 

o GASB Statement 87, Leases, and GASB Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 
Before the End of a Construction Period, will be effective for the City's year ending 
December 31, 2020. 
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• We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop significant estimates in the financial 
statements in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. The most significant estimates affecting the City's financial statements are the allowance for 
uncollectible receivable balances; the fair value of contributions and investments; the useful lives of 
property, equipment, and infrastructure; and post-retirement obligations. 

• The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. The most sensitive disclosures 
affecting the financial statements are capital assets, debt, and commitments and contingencies. 

• We found the accounting records to be in good order, but proposed adjustments related to the 
implementation of GASB Statement 7 5 and to correct inventory balances at yearend as a result of our 
procedures. 

• We had no disagreements with management on accounting or auditing issues, we had no difficulties in 
performing our audit, and we felt we received full cooperation from the City's staff. 

Management Letter 

This letter is used to communicate any findings we may have about the City's internal controls and certain 
other matters that are, in our opinion, significant enough to warrant your attention. 

Highlights from the letter are as follows: 

• Although the scope of our engagement was not directed towards an opinion on the adequacy of 
internal control, we considered internal control as a basis for designing our audit procedures. Given 
this limitation and inherent limitations in internal control, we found no material weaknesses in internal 
control. 

• This letter contains a recommendation for the Board of Aldermen's and management's consideration 
related to inventory procedures. 

We wish to thank City and its personnel for their cooperation and assistance during our audit. The information 
in this audit report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Aldermen and management of the City. 

Sincerely, 

WILLIAMS KEEPERS LLC 
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.:5 WILLIAMS 
.::::KEEPERS LLC 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS 

June 10, 2019 

Jeana Woods, City Administrator 
Karri Bell, City Treasurer 
Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
City of Osage Beach, Missouri 

2005 West Broadway, Suite 100, Columbia, MO 65203 
OFFICE (573) 442-6171 FAX (573) 777-7800 

3220 West Edgewood, Suite E, Jefferson City, MO 65109 
OfFICE (573) 635-6196 ~.'\X (573) 644-7240 

www.williamskeepers.com 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and each major fund of the City of Osage Beach (the 
City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In addition, 
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of 
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given these 
limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

In addition, we noted a matter involving internal control that we have included in Attachment A to this letter. 
This recommendation is an oppotiunity for the City to enhance its internal control. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor, the Board of 
Aldermen, and others within the City, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

WILLIAMS-KEEPERS LLC 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Missouri Society of Certified Public Accountants Member, Allinial Global 
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Inventory Procedures 

ATTACHMENT A 
OTHER RECOMMENDATION 

During the audit, we identified a deficiency in the City's internal controls over valuing and recording 
inventory balances in the Water/Sewer Fund, which could cause the balances reported in the City's financial 
statements to be inaccurate. 

We recommend the City develop procedures so that purchases and sales are entered into the inventory system 
on a timely basis. We also recommend the inventory listings be reviewed for accuracy, completeness, and 
reasonableness on a regular basis by both the Public Works and the Treasurer's Departments in order to 
ensure the accounting and financial reporting is appropriate. 
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COMMUNICATION TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR 
AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MiSSOURI 
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.:5 WILLIAMS 
.::::KEEPERS LLC 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS 

June 10, 2019 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri 

2005 West Broadway, Suite 100, Columbia, MO 65203 
OFFIU- (573) 442-6171 FAX (573) 777-7800 

3220 West Edgewood, Suite E, Jefferson City, MO 65109 
OFFICF ( 573) 635-6196 IAX ( 573) 644-7240 

www.williamskeepers.com 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component unit, and each major fund of the City of Osage Beach (the City) for the year 
ended December 31, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 
January 16, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to 
the financial statements. Except as noted below, no new accounting policies were adopted, and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during 2018. We noted no transactions entered into by the 
City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions (OP EB). This statement established standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures. This statement also identified the methods and 
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their 
actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. In general, this 
statement required the City to record and report the net OPEB liability, along with deferred outflows of 
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures. It also required significant changes to 
the footnote disclosures and required supplementary information. 

The following summarizes new accounting standards that may impact the City in the future: 

GASB has issued Statement 87, Leases, which is intended to improve financial reporting about 
leasing transactions. This statement will require governmental entities that lease assets - referred to 
as "lessees" - to recognize on the government-wide statement of net position (and on the proprietary 
funds' statement of net position) the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by 
those leases with lease terms of more than 12-months. The accounting by governmental entities that 
own the assets leased by the lessee - also known as lessor accounting- will remain largely 
unchanged from current generally accepted accounting principles. This statement will be effective 
for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted. 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants I Missouri Society of Certified Public Accountants I Member, Allinial Global 
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GASB has issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements, which is intended to improve information that is disclosed in the notes to 
government financial statements related to debt, direct borrowings, and direct placements. This 
statement clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related 
to debt. This statement will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 

GASB has issued Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a 
Construction Period, which enhances the relevance and comparability of information about capital 
assets and the cost of borrowing for a rep01iing period and simplifies the accounting for interest cost 
incurred before the end of a construction period. This statement allows interest cost incurred before 
the end of a construction period to be expensed instead of capitalized. This statement will be 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most significant estimates affecting the City's financial statements were the allowance for 
uncollectible receivable balances; the fair value of contributions and investments; the useful lives of property, 
equipment, and infrastructure; and post-retirement obligations. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop these estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were capital assets, debt, 
and commitments and contingencies. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected !Yfisstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
During the audit, we proposed adjustments related to the implementation of GASB Statement 75 (as discussed 
above) and to correct inventory balances at yearend. Management accepted the proposed adjustments, which 
are included in the City's financial statements. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditors' repoti. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
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Management Representations 

We have requested ce1iain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June I 0, 2019. 

lvfanagement Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on ce1iain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We have been advised that the audited financial statements will be reproduced in the City's Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Our responsibility for the other information in the CAFR does not extend 
beyond the financial information identified in the rep01i, and, as auditors, we do not have an obligation to 
perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in the CAFR. 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, the budgetary 
comparison schedules, and the OPEB schedules, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
response to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI. 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory or statistical sections, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the Board of Aldermen, and 
management of the City of Osage Beach and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

We thank the City's management and staff for their assistance during the course of our audit. 
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Sincerely, 

WILLIAMS-KEEPERS LLC 
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   
Date Submitted: 06/10/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-41 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the sale of property to Lazy L. 
Properties and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute a Quitclaim Deed as described in Section 2. 

 
 
Presented by: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   

 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill # 

 
 
 
 
19-41 

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill #     

Resolution #    

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for disposal of assets per Municipal Code Chapter 135; Article II: 
Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-41; Quitclaim Deed; Bid Opening; Site Map 

✔ 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

The bid opening for this piece of property was on 06/10/2019. One bid was received. 

Mace Road (Tank Lot) property: 

Winning bidder = Lazy L. Properties 
 

Bid amount = $3176.00 To be deposited in Sale of Used Equipment (30-00-600000) 

Assistant City Administrator Recommends Approval 

 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-41 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

I concur with the Asst City Administrator's recommendation. 
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BILL NO. 19-41                                    ORDINANCE NO. 19.41 
               
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 
PROPERTY TO LAZY L. PROPERTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF OSAGE 
BEACH TO SIGN AND EXECUTE A QUITCLAIM DEED AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 2. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, AS 
FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 
 

Section 1. That the sale of property located on Mace Road (Tank Lot) to Lazy L. Properties for Three 
Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Six Dollars ($3,176.00) described in Section 2 is hereby authorized. 

 
Section 2.  The Mayor of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, is hereby authorized and directed to sign 

a Quitclaim Deeds for the sale of property located on Mace Road (Tank Lot) to Lazy L. Properties for Three 
Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Six Dollars ($3,176.00) described as follows: 
  
 A tract of land lying in part of Government Lot 6 and Lot 7 of Section 6, Township 39 North, Range 15 
West, Camden County, Missouri, and more particularly described as follows:  
 
 From the Southwest corner of Section 32, Township 40 North, Range 15 West, run North 89 degrees 27 
minutes East along and with the North line of said Section 6, Township 39 North, Range 15 West, a distance 
of 1996.5 feet to an iron pin; thence departing said North line South 02 degrees 01 minutes West 627.6 feet to 
another existing iron pin; thence South 47 degrees 53 minutes East 345.2 feet to an existing iron pin marking 
the most Northeasterly common corner of Lots 2 and 3 of Indian Pointe Estates Subdivision Second Addition, 
a subdivision of record at Camden County, Missouri; thence South 55 degrees 40 minutes East (record plat = 
South 52 degrees 29 minutes East) along and with the lot line of said Lot 2 a distance of 94.5 feet to an 
existing iron pin marking the most Northeasterly common corner of Lot 2 and Lot 1 of said subdivision; 
thence South 46 degrees 07 minutes East (record plat = South 42 degrees 56 minutes East) along and with the 
Northeasterly lot line of said Lot 1 a distance of 92.6 feet to an existing iron pin; thence South 50 degrees 56 
minutes West (record plat = South 54 degrees 07 minutes West) along the Southeasterly lot line of said Lot 1 
a distance of 150.0 feet to an existing iron pin located on the right-of-way of Mace Road, a 40 feet wide road; 
thence departing said right-of-way and continuing South 50 degrees 56 minutes West 20.0 feet to a nail 
located on the centerline of said Mace Road; thence along and with the centerline the following bearings and 
distances: North 39 degrees 04 minutes West (record plat = North 35 degrees 53 minutes West) 43.0 feet to a 
nail, North 57 degrees 04 minutes West (record plat = North 53 degrees 55 minutes West) 169.3 feet to 
another nail, North 71 degrees 04 minutes West (record plat = North 67 degrees 59 minutes West) 269.3 feet 
(old plat = 269.1 feet) to another nail, North 74 degrees 53 minutes West (record plat = North 71 degrees 43 
minutes West) 345.2 feet (old plat = 346.0 feet) and North 71 degrees 24 minutes West (old plats = North 71 
degrees 22 minutes West and North 68 degrees 15 minutes West) a distance of 108.8 feet to the P.C. of a 15 
degree curve to the right; thence departing said centerline along and with the semi-tangent of said 15 degree 
curve continuing North 71 degrees 24 minute West 44.7 feet to an existing nail for the point of beginning; 
thence departing said semi-tangent South 18 degrees 53 minutes West (old deed = South 18 degrees 56 
minutes West) 17.5 feet to an existing iron pin located on the Southerly right-of-way of said Mace Road; 
thence departing said right-of-way and continuing South 18 degrees 53 minutes West 167.5 feet to another 
existing iron pin; thence North 47 degrees 18 minutes West 76.5 feet to an existing iron pin marking the most 
Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 of Indian Pointe Estates Subdivision First Addition, a subdivision of record at 
Camden County, Missouri; thence along and with the Southeasterly lot line of said Lot 19, North 28 degrees 
33 minutes East 146.2 feet to another existing iron pin located on the Southerly right-of-way of said Mace 
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Bill No. 19-41                               Ordinance No. 19.41 
Page 2                     
 
Road marking the Northeasterly corner of said Lot 19; thence departing said lot line and right-of-way and 
continuing North 28 degrees 33 minutes East 9.9 feet to an existing nail marking the P.I. of aforementioned 
15 degree curve to the right; thence departing said P.I. along and with the semi-tangent South 71 degrees 24 
minutes East (old plats = South 71 degrees 22 minutes East and South 68 degrees 15 minutes East) 43.8 feet 
returning to the point of beginning. The basis of bearings is the call North 89 degrees 27 minutes East along 
the North line of Section 6, Township 39 North, Range 15 West.  
 
Subject to the right-of-way of Mace Road and any other rights-of-way, easements, restrictions, reservations, 
conditions and exceptions of record, and to any roadways or power lines whether of record or not. 
 
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are, in so much as 
they conflict with this ordinance, hereby repealed. 

 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage by the 

Board of Aldermen and approval by the Mayor. 
   

READ FIRST TIME:     READ SECOND TIME:   
 
I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.41 was duly passed on             by the Board of Aldermen of 
the City of Osage Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 
 Ayes:   Nays:  Abstentions:   Absent:    
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  
  
                                    _____________________________  
Date           Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.41. 
 
        ___________________________________ 
_____________              John Olivarri, Mayor 
Date 
 

ATTEST: 
        __________________________________ 
        Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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Bill No. 19-41                               Ordinance No. 19.41 
Page 3                     
 
 
  
 
STATE OF MISSOURI     ) 
COUNTY OF CAMDEN  ) 
 
 
 
On this   day of    , 2019, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally 

appeared    John Olivarri/Mayor , to me know to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing 

instrument, as Mayor of the City of Osage Beach, and that seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal 

of the City of Osage Beach and this instrument was signed and the seal affixed by the authority of its Board of 

Aldermen, and said  John Olvarri   acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of 

the city of Osage Beach.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand an affixed my official seal in the county and Ste 

aforesaid, the day and year last written above. 

 

My term of office as Notary Public will expire      . 

 

 

 

            

       Notary Public 
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Quitclaim Deed 
 

 This indenture, made on the ______day of     , 2019, by and 
between City of Osage Beach, of the County of Camden, State of Missouri, parties of the 
first part, and _____________, of the State of ______________, party of the second part. 
(Mailing address of said party of the first part is: (1000 City Parkway, Osage Beach, 
MO, 65065) 
 
Witnesseth, that the said party of the first part, in the consideration of the sum of ten and 
no/100 dollars, and other valuable considerations, to them paid by the said party of the 
second part, and the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these presents, 
REMISE, RELEASE and FOREVER QUIT CLAIM, unto the said party of the second 
part, its successors, heirs and assigns, the following described real estate, lying, being and 
situated in the county of Camden and State of Missouri, to-wit:  
   
      A tract of land lying in part of Government Lot 6 and Lot 7 of Section 6, 
Township 39 North, Range 15 West, Camden County, Missouri, and more 
particularly described as follows:   
 
From the Southwest corner of Section 32, Township 40 North, Range 15 West, run 
North 89 degrees 27 minutes East along and with the North line of said Section 6, 
Township 39 North, Range 15 West, a distance of 1996.5 feet to an iron pin; thence 
departing said North line South 02 degrees 01 minutes West 627.6 feet to another 
existing iron pin; thence South 47 degrees 53 minutes East 345.2 feet to an existing 
iron pin marking the most Northeasterly common corner of Lots 2 and 3 of Indian 
Pointe Estates Subdivision Second Addition, a subdivision of record at Camden 
County, Missouri; thence South 55 degrees 40 minutes East (record plat = South 52 
degrees 29 minutes East) along and with the lot line of said Lot 2 a distance of 94.5 
feet to an existing iron pin marking the most Northeasterly common corner of Lot 2 
and Lot 1 of said subdivision; thence South 46 degrees 07 minutes East (record plat 
= South 42 degrees 56 minutes East) along and with the Northeasterly lot line of said 
Lot 1 a distance of 92.6 feet to an existing iron pin; thence South 50 degrees 56 
minutes West (record plat = South 54 degrees 07 minutes West) along the 
Southeasterly lot line of said Lot 1 a distance of 150.0 feet to an existing iron pin 
located on the right-of-way of Mace Road, a 40 feet wide road; thence departing 
said right-of-way and continuing South 50 degrees 56 minutes West 20.0 feet to a 
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nail located on the centerline of said Mace Road; thence along and with the 
centerline the following bearings and distances:  North 39 degrees 04 minutes West 
(record plat = North 35 degrees 53 minutes West) 43.0 feet to a nail, North 57 
degrees 04 minutes West (record plat = North 53 degrees 55 minutes West) 169.3 
feet to another nail, North 71 degrees 04 minutes West (record plat = North 67 
degrees 59 minutes West) 269.3 feet (old plat = 269.1 feet) to another nail, North 74 
degrees 53 minutes West (record plat = North 71 degrees 43 minutes West) 345.2 
feet (old plat = 346.0 feet) and North 71 degrees 24 minutes West (old plats = North 
71 degrees 22 minutes West and North 68 degrees 15 minutes West) a distance of 
108.8 feet to the P.C. of a 15 degree curve to the right; thence departing said 
centerline along and with the semi-tangent of said 15 degree curve continuing North 
71 degrees 24 minute West 44.7 feet to an existing nail for the point of beginning; 
thence departing said semi-tangent South 18 degrees 53 minutes West (old deed = 
South 18 degrees 56 minutes West) 17.5 feet to an existing iron pin located on the 
Southerly right-of-way of said Mace Road; thence departing said right-of-way and 
continuing South 18 degrees 53 minutes West 167.5 feet to another existing iron pin; 
thence North 47 degrees 18 minutes West 76.5 feet to an existing iron pin marking 
the most Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 of Indian Pointe Estates Subdivision First 
Addition, a subdivision of record at Camden County, Missouri; thence along and 
with the Southeasterly lot line of said Lot 19, North 28 degrees 33 minutes East 
146.2 feet to another existing iron pin located on the Southerly right-of-way of said 
Mace Road marking the Northeasterly corner of said Lot 19; thence departing said 
lot line and right-of-way and continuing North 28 degrees 33 minutes East 9.9 feet to 
an existing nail marking the P.I. of aforementioned 15 degree curve to the right; 
thence departing said P.I. along and with the semi-tangent South 71 degrees 24 
minutes East (old plats = South 71 degrees 22 minutes East and South 68 degrees 15 
minutes East) 43.8 feet returning to the point of beginning.  The basis of bearings is 
the call North 89 degrees 27 minutes East along the North line of Section 6, 
Township 39 North, Range 15 West. 
 
 Subject to the right-of-way of Mace Road and any other rights-of-way, 
easements, restrictions, reservations, conditions and exceptions of record, and to any 
roadways or power lines whether of record or not. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME, with all the rights, immunities, privileges 
and appurtenances thereto belonging, unto the said party of the second part and unto its 
heirs and assigns forever; so that neither the said party of the first part nor its heirs or 
assigns, nor any other person or persons, for whom or in whose name or behalf, shall or 
will hereinafter claim or demand any right or title to the aforesaid premises or any part 
thereof, but they and each of them shall, by these presents, be excluded and forever 
barred.   
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said party of the first part has caused these presents to 
be signed as of the day and year first above written.   

 
Signed and executed this _______ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 
 
X       ATTEST: 
 

John Olivarri, Mayor 
            

       City Clerk 
       (SEAL) 
STATE OF     

COUNTY OF     

 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared John Olivarri, 
personally known to me to be the Mayor of Osage Beach whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he is the Mayor of Osage Beach and 
acknowledged that he executed the same as his free act and deed.  
 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the ________day of _______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ My Commission Expires:  

Notary Public 
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Mike Welty, Assistant City Administrator   
Date Submitted: 06/10/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-42 An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, amending Ordinance No. 18.59 Adopting the 
2019 Annual Budget, Transfer of Funds for Necessary Expenses. 

 
 
Presented by: (Name/Title) Mike Welty, Assistant City Administrator   

 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill # 

 
 
 
 
19-42 

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill #     

Resolution #    

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for budget amendments over $5,000 per Municipal Code Chapter 135; 
Article II: Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    

Budget Line Item/Title:     
FY Budgeted Amount: $    
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

 

Requested Amount: $    
 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-42 

✔ 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

The Mitel phone upgrade was budgeted in 2018, but the project was not completed until early 2019. 
The Mitel VIOP project was originally approved on the 10/04/18 Board meeting (Bill # 18.49) and then 
modified at the 12/06/18 Board meeting (Bill #18.67). 

 
This Budget Amendment is for multiple accounts. There are a number of items that carried over from 2018 and 
a few items that will require a transfer from other accounts in General fund. 

 

 
10-13-743102 Telephone Service 

Original Item 
$25,000 

Amended Item 
$44,400 

10-13-743300 Repair of System - Telephone $3,000 $11,500 
10-13-774261 Office Equip & Machinery $0.00 $9,407 
10-13-761150 Contingency $10,000 $3,800 
10-14-733610 Maintenance & Repair $14,220 $10,720 

Account Details:    

10-13-743102 Telephone Service -    

Carryover from 2018 - $13,200.00 
Transfered from another account- 6,200.00 
Total - $19,400.00 

   

 

The project was complete in February of 2019. The project costs ($13,200.00) are a carry over for 2018. 
 

When forecasting the cost for the 2019 phone bill I believed that we would not have to pay the County 911 Tax 
because we operate our own 911 system. When this tax passed in our County, it was done County wide and 
therefore we are responsible for paying these taxes even though we operate our own 911 system. National 
Regulatory fees and other Federal taxes that were previously only charged to traditional land line phone 
systems are now also being charged to VoIP systems as well. Additionally, bridging the 911 system with Mitel 
ended up requiring us to keep a few lines with AT&T active so that we could convert a digital phone line into a 
analog phone line to accommodate the 911 system. The additional cost of these taxes, regulatory fees and the 
cost of keeping some of our AT&T phone lines will require us to transfer funds from the 10-13-761150 
Contingency to cover the difference which I estimate to be $6,200.00 
 
10-13-743300 Repair of System – Telephone 
 
Carryover from 2018 - $5,000.00 
Transfered from other account - 3,500.00 

   Total - $8,500.00 
 

Funds from this account were to pay the City's phone maintenance company, Electronic Unlimited, to assist us          
with keeping our existing phone system up and running until the switch to the Mitel phone system, work with 
Mitel to insure a smooth transition, and to assist with some wiring clean up after the switch. Due to delays with 
installation, new intercom installations, and poor labeling from the original install of the Meridian phone system 
these cost were considerably higher than expected. Much of the additional work was done for the Police and 
911 Departments. Additional funds needed will be transfered from 10-14-733610 Maintenance & Repair. 
 
10-13-774261 Office Equip & Machinery  
 
Carryover from 2018 - $9,407.00 
 
The cost of the equipment purchased came in as budgeted. 
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Asst. City Administrator recommends approval. 
 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-42 is in correct form as per City Attorney. 

I concur with the recommended budget amendment. 
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BILL NO. 19-42                                                          ORDINANCE NO.19.42 
 
  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
18.59 ADOPTING THE 2019 ANNUAL BUDGET, TRANSFER OF FUNDS FOR NECESSARY 
EXPENSES. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, AS 
FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 
 

Section 1. That the 2019 Annual Budget adopted as Ordinance No. 18.59 is hereby amended by 
appropriating additional funds or reducing appropriations as follows: 

       Original Item  Amended Item 
10-13-743102 Telephone Service              $25,000                          $44,400   
10-13-743300 Repair of System - Telephone   $3,000    $11,500 
10-13-774261 Office Equip & Machinery   $0.00   $9,407 
10-13-761150 Contingency     $10,000                          $3,800 
10-14-733610 Maintenance & Repair     $14,220   $10,720 

 
Section 2.   In all other respects the 2019 Annual Budget adopted in Ordinance No. 18.59 remains 

in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon date of passage and approval 

by the Mayor.   
 

READ FIRST TIME: _______________    READ SECOND TIME: ____________ 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.42 was duly passed on ____________ by the Board of 
Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 

Ayes:   Nays:   Abstain:    Absent:   

This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  

  
______________     ___________________________________  
Date         Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.42.  
       ____________________________________ 
       John Olivarri, Mayor 
________________ 
Date 
 
ATTEST: 
       ___________________________________ 
       Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   
Date Submitted: 06/10/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-43 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract for 
the fireworks show with Brilliant Skies Fireworks, to be held at the City Park during the National Night Out 
event on Tuesday August 6, 2019. 

 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Mike Welty/Assistant City Administrator   
 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill # 

 
 
 
 
19-43 

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill #     

Resolution #    

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for purchases if fewer than three (3) proposals from qualified vendors are 
received per Municipal Code Chapter 135; Article II: Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    
Budget Line Item/Title: 10-21-754250 - Community Promotions    

FY  19   Budgeted Amount: $ 70,000.00 
 

Expenditures to Date 06/10/19 : ($ 21,038.00 ) 
Available:   $ 48,962.00 

Requested Amount: 
  $ 2,000.00 

 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-43, Proposal, Contract, Site Map 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

City Staff looked informally for fireworks companies that would be willing to do a show for the amount that we
budget ($2,000.00). After contacting several fireworks vendors both locally and nationally, Brilliant Skies is the
only one willing to do such a small show.

This Fireworks show will be part of the entertainment for the National Night Out event being held at the City
Park on Tuesday August 6, 2019.

Brilliant Skies has done multiple shows in the lake area for Shawnee Bluff Winery, Celebration Cruises, and 7
Spring Winery with good results. Brilliant Skies has also previously done fireworks shows in our Park and they
have a good relationship with our local Fire Department.

Asst City Administrator recommends approval.

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-43 is in correct form as per City Attorney.

Although this request is within City Administrator authority to approve regarding the expenditure amount,
Board approval is required due to less than three bids received.
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BILL NO. 19-43         ORDINANCE 19.43 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
TO SIGN A FOR A FIREWORKS SHOW TO BE HELD AT THE NATIONAL NIGHT OUT EVENT 
AT THE CITY PARK ON TUESDAY AUGUST 6, 2019 WITH BRILLIANT SKIES FIREWORKS. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS, WIT: 

 Section 1. The Board of Aldermen hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute on behalf of the  
City a contract with Brilliant Skies Fireworks substantially under the terms set forth in the form attached 
hereto as (Exhibit A”). 

 Total expenditures authorized under this contract shall not exceed Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000). 

 Section 2.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to take such further actions as are 
necessary to carry out the intent of this Ordinance and Contract. 

 Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from date of passage and approval by the 
Mayor. 

 READ FIRST TIME:    READ SECOND TIME: 

 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.43 was duly passed on    by the Board of 
Aldermen of the City of Osage Beach.  The votes thereon were as follows: 

Ayes   Nays   Abstain    Absent 

This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature. 

 

              
Date        Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approval as to form: 
 
      
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney 
  
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.43. 
              
        John Olivarri, Mayor 
    
Date         
              
        Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
ATTEST 
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Fireworks Display Contract 
THIS CONTRACT (this “Contract”) is made this 

 
 

day of ________, 20__ by and between Brilliant Skies Fireworks. 

(“Brilliant”) and The City of Osage Beach(“Sponsor”), with its principal place of business located in Osage Beach, Missouri. 

WHEREAS, Brilliant Skies Fireworks is desirous of providing Sponsor with a fireworks exhibition and display for Sponsor’s benefit 
under such terms and conditions as provided herein, and thereby, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Fireworks Display. 
Brilliant Skies Fireworks shall sell, furnish and deliver to Sponsor certain fireworks which Brilliant Skies Fireworks agrees to exhibit and display 
on DATE: August 6, 2019_/Rain Dates: August 7, 2019 in accordance with the program set forth and agreed upon at the time of the  
signing of this Contract, the specifics of which are set forth in the “Fireworks Exhibition and Display Program” attached hereto and  
incorporated herein by reference thereto (the “Fireworks Display”). 

2. Payment Schedule. 
For and in consideration of the Fireworks Display, Sponsor agrees to pay Brilliant Skies Fireworks the contract price of $2,000.00 (the “Contract 
Price”) paid as follows:  100% of the Contract Price due the day of Fireworks Display. 

Sponsor agrees to pay interest at the rate of 1½ % per month on any delinquent balance of the Contract Price until paid in full.  Payment shall 
be made by certified check or otherwise as agreed by Brilliant Skies Fireworks to Brilliant Skies Fireworks at 5736 Pheasant Place, Osage Beach, 
Mo 65065. 

3. Display Responsibilities. 
Brilliant Skies Fireworks and Sponsor will collaborate in the performance of all tasks relating to the Fireworks Display. These tasks include, but are 
not limited to, (i) procuring and furnishing a place suitable for the Fireworks Display (the “Display Site”), (ii) applying for, obtaining and securing 
all permits, licenses and approvals required by all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations as well as those required by any local 
police and fire departments for the Fireworks Display (collectively, the “Required Approvals”) Sponsor is responsible for the payment of all 
governmental fees and expenses imposed or applied to this exhibition including any fees or expenses incurred after the signing and execution 
of contract for said show, (iii) providing adequate private and/or public security, police and fire protection, (iv) securing an acceptable location 
with private and/or public security personnel to park the Brilliant Skies Fireworks fireworks truck(s) overnight (or for such longer or shorter 
period as Brilliant Skies Fireworks may reasonably require in order to effectively provide the Fireworks Display), (v) securing adequate protection 
to preclude all individuals, other than those authorized by Brilliant Skies Fireworks, from entering the security area designated by Brilliant Skies, 
(vi) removing and keeping unauthorized persons, as well as, personal or real property of any kind, including, without limitation, motor vehicles, 
outside of the area designated by Brilliant Skies Fireworks as the Display Site, fallout area or safe zone. Brilliant Skies Fireworks and Sponsor 
shall fulfill their responsibilities as set forth herein in accordance with all local, state and federal rules, laws, orders and regulations, including 
those of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA).  

4. Indemnification and Limitation of Liability. 
Sponsor shall not under any circumstances be entitled to recover any exemplary, special and/or punitive damages from Brilliant Skies 
Fireworks, including, without limitation, loss of income, business or profits. Brilliant Sky is required to provide the City with a One Million Dollar 
(1,000,000.00) liability insurance policy listing the City as additionally insure. 

5. Postponement.  
In the event that weather is such that Brilliant Skies Fireworks, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines that the Fireworks Display scheduled 
for August 6, 2019 would be impossible or would unnecessarily increase the risk of damage or danger to person and/or property, the parties agree 
to hold the show the evening of August 7, 2019. In the event that weather is such that Brilliant Skies Fireworks, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, determines that the Fireworks Display would be impossible or would unnecessarily increase the risk of damage or danger to person 
and/or property on August 6, 2019 and August 7, 2019 this contract shall become null and void and neither party shall have further obligation 
or responsibility hereunder; and the City of Osage Beach agrees to pay Brilliant Skies Fireworks a total of $1,000.00 in set up fees for the 
cancelled shows. 
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6. Cancellation. 
If (i) Sponsor cancels this Contract for any reason, or (ii) Brilliant Skies Fireworks is unable to timely complete all tasks relating to the Fireworks 
Display in accordance with this Contract with the assistance of Sponsor and cancels this Contract despite both parties best efforts, liquidated 
damages for such cancellation shall be paid by Sponsor to Brilliant Skies Fireworks as follows: a. In the event the Fireworks Display is cancelled 
more than thirty (30) days before the date scheduled for the Fireworks Display, twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount of the Contract Price; 
b. In the event that the Fireworks Display is cancelled less than 30 days before the date scheduled for the Fireworks Display, seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the amount of the Contract Price. 

In the event that Sponsor chooses to terminate this Contract, it shall do so by written notice addressed to Brilliant Skies Fireworks at 5736 Pheasant 
Place, Osage Beach, Mo 65065. Except as provided in Section 5 above with respect to weather postponement, in the event of circumstances 
beyond the control of either party, such as fire, strikes, delay, or similar causes which prevent the delivery of materials or performances as 
set forth herein, the parties hereto release one another from any and all obligations and responsibilities contained herein, provided however, 
sponsor shall pay to Brilliant Skies Fireworks 25% of contract price as liquidated damages. 

7. Venue. 
In any action on or relating to this Contract, the parties hereto consent to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state courts located in 
Camden County, Missouri and of the federal courts located in the United States District Court for the Western District of Missouri. 

8. Legal Construction. 
If any provision of this Contract is held to be illegal, invalid or otherwise unenforceable, then: (a) the same shall not affect other terms or 
provisions of this Contract; and (b) such term or provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to render such term or provision 
enforceable and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced accordingly, preserving to the fullest extent the intent 
and agreements of the parties set forth herein. Brilliant Skies Fireworks reserves the right to substitute products of equal or greater value. 

9. Entire Agreement. 
This Contract and the Fireworks Exhibition and Display Program constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and there are no 
other understandings, either oral or written, regarding to the subject matter hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned executed this Contract by and through their authorized representatives whose names appear below. 
 

Brilliant Skies Fireworks: CLIENT (SPONSOR): 
 

By: By:  _______________________________________________ 
 

 

Title: Title:  _____________________________________________ 
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 1000 City Parkway, Osage Beach, MO 65065

Fax: (573) 302-0528   Phone: (573) 302-2000
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting: 

 
 

 06/20/19   
Originator: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   
Date Submitted: 06/10/19   

 
 

 
Agenda Item Title: 

Bill 19-44 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to execute construction 
contract OB18-016 with Stockman Construction for the Dude Ranch Road Sidewalk Improvements, Phase 4, in 
an amount not to exceed $401,930. 

 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director   
 

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill # 

 
 
 
 
19-44 

 
Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading of Bill #     

Resolution #    

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board of Aldermen approval required for purchases over $15,000 per Municipal Code Chapter 135; Article II: 
Purchasing, Procurement, Transfers, and Sales. 

 
Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:    
Budget Line Item/Title:   20-00-773209 Dude Ranch Road Sidewalks/Trail    

FY  19   Budgeted Amount: $ 446,378.00 
 

Expenditures to Date 06/10/19 : ($ 245.25 ) 
Available:   $ 446,132.75 

Requested Amount: 
  $ 401,930.00 

 

 

 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Bill 19-44, Contract, Bid Tab 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

This project is to remove the non-ADA asphalt trail along Dude Ranch Road and replace with ADA compliant
which includes concrete curb and gutter along the northern side of the roadway. This is the last piece of Dude
Ranch Road that doesn't meet ADA requirements. This project will also improve storm drainage in the Dude
Ranch Road area.

We opened bids on May 22, 2019. There were 2 bidders. Donald Maggi, Inc. out of Rolla, MO is the low
bidder with a bid amount of $331,540.56. The second bidder is Stockman Construction out of Jefferson city,
MO with a bid amount of $401,930.00.

We have done work with both contractors in the past. Donald Maggi, Inc. is currently working on Mace Road.
They have been issued a substantial completion as of right now. We expect the final acceptance to be
completed soon. Stockman Construction's most recently awarded project was Dorothy Lane. They completed
Cedar Village Lane Storm Water Improvements and Nichols Road Reconstruction between Osage Beach
Parkway and Route 54.

There are multiple options on proceeding with this at the Board's discretion:

1) We can delay the award of this contract. As stated in the Instruction to Bidders "15.0 Bids to Remain Open,
15.1 All Bids shall remain open for delivery by the Owner... ninety (90) consecutive calendar days after the
date of Bid opening." We opened bids on May 22, 2019. We can delay until August 20th. This allows time to
finalize the Mace Road contract to see how those negotiations played out.

2) We can reject all bids. We only received two bids. We had other contractors that were interested but they
couldn't get it completed in the time frame that we were looking at. We do not know if we will get a better
price.

3) We can award the project to one of the two bidders.

There is some additional work to be completed with this project out of account 20-00-773209 and we expect to
be under budget. We are making some storm water improvements near Cayman Beach with the Transportation
Department.

Per City Code 110.230, Bill 19-44 is in correct form as per City Attorney.

I recommend awarding the contract to the second lowest bidder, Stockman Construction because, 1) current
issues have not been resolved with the lowest bidder, Donald Maggi, Inc., on a recent project and I don't
recommend proceeding with a new project with them at this time, 2) it is not guaranteed that rebidding the
project will attract a lower bid or will draw more bidders, 3) the second lowest bid is under budgeted amounts
as well as the engineer's estimate, and 4) projects to finish the sidewalks on Dude Ranch have been ongoing for
a few years.
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BILL NO. 19-44                          ORDINANCE NO. 19.44 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OB18-016 WITH STOCKMAN CONSTRUCTION FOR THE 
DUDE RANCH ROAD SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS, PHASE 4.  
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF OSAGE BEACH, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS, WIT. 
 
 Section 1.  The Board of Aldermen hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute on behalf of the City a 
construction contract with Stockman Construction substantially under the terms set forth in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.    
 
 Section 2.  Total expenditures or liability authorized under this Ordinance shall not exceed Four 
Hundred and One Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty Dollars ($401,930.00).   
 
 Section 3.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to take such further actions as are necessary 
to carry out the intent of this Ordinance and Contract.     
 
 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from date of passage and approval of the 
Mayor. 
 

READ FIRST TIME:      READ SECOND TIME:  
 
I hereby certify that the above Ordinance No. 19.44 was duly passed on  , by the Board of Aldermen 
of the City of Osage Beach. The votes thereon were as follows:  
 
 Ayes:  Nays:    Abstentions:   Absent:   
 
 
This Ordinance is hereby transmitted to the Mayor for his signature.  
  
 _____________________    ___________________________________  
Date         Tara Berreth, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________ 
Edward B. Rucker, City Attorney  
 
I hereby approve Ordinance No. 19.44. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
__________________    John Olivarri, Mayor 
Date 
 
ATTEST: 
      ____________________________________ 
      Tara Berreth, City Clerk  
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Dude Ranch Sidewalk Phase 4 
 

6/13/2019 Agreement A-1 

AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this    day of    , 20 , by and 
between the City of Osage Beach,  Party of the First Part and hereinafter called the Owner, and    
    a     of     Party of the Second Part and hereinafter 
called the Contractor. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
THAT WHEREAS, the City of Osage Beach has caused to be prepared, in accordance with law, specifications, plans, 
and other contract documents for the work herein described and has approved and adopted said documents, and has 
caused to be published, in the manner and for the time required by law, an advertisement for and in connection with the 
construction of the improvements, complete, in accordance with the contract documents and the said plans and 
specifications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor, in response to such advertisement, has submitted to the Owner, in the manner and at the time 
specified, a sealed bid in accordance with the terms of said advertisement; 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner, in the manner prescribed by law, has publicly opened, examined and canvassed the bids 
submitted in response to the published advertisement therefor, and as a result of such canvass has determined and 
declared the aforesaid Contractor to be the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder for the said work and has duly 
awarded to the said Contractor a contract therefor, for the sum or sums named in the Contractor's bid, a copy thereof 
being attached to and made a part of this contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the compensation to be paid to the Contractor and of the mutual agreements 
herein contained, the Parties to these presents have agreed and hereby agree, the Owner for itself and its successors, and 
the Contractor for its, his, or their executors and administrators, as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I.  That the Contractor shall (a) furnish all tools, equipment, supplies, superintendence, transportation, and 
other construction accessories, services and facilities; (b) furnish all materials, supplies and equipment specified and 
required to be incorporated in and form a permanent part of the completed work except the items specified to be 
furnished by the Owner; (c) provide and perform all necessary labor; and (d) in a good, substantial, and workmanlike 
manner and in accordance with the provisions of the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions of this contract 
which are attached hereto and make a part hereof, and in conformance with the contract plans and specifications 
designated and identified therein, execute, construct, and complete all work included in and covered by the Owner's 
official award of this contract to the said Contractor, such award being based on the acceptance by the Owner of the 
Contractor's bid for the construction of the improvements. 
 
It is further stipulated that not less than the prevailing rate of wages as found by the Department of Labor and Industrial 
Relations of the State of Missouri or determined by the courts of appeal shall be paid to all workmen performing work 
under this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE II.  That the Contractor shall construct, complete as designated and described in the foregoing Bid Form and 
attached specifications and in accordance with the Advertisement for Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form, Bonds, 
General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, detailed specifications, plans, addenda, and other component parts of the 
contract documents hereto attached, all of which documents form the contract and are fully a part hereto as if repeated 
verbatim here. 
 
ARTICLE III.  That the Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the performance of the work described as follows:      
 

Dude Ranch Sidewalk Phase 4 
 
and the Contractor will accept as full compensation thereof, the sum (subject to adjustment as provided by the contract) 
of            for all work covered by and 
included in the contract award and designated in the foregoing Article I.  Payment therefor shall be made in the manner 
provided in the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions attached hereto. 
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Dude Ranch Sidewalk Phase 4 
 

6/13/2019 Agreement A-2 

ARTICLE IV.  That the Contractor shall begin assembly of materials and equipment within fifteen (15) days after receipt 
from the Owner of executed copies of the contract and that the Contractor shall complete said work within One Hundred 
Twenty (120) consecutive calendar days from the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the agreement, or if a Notice to 
Proceed is given, from the date indicated in the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Owner and Contractor recognize time is of the essence of this agreement and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the 
work is not completed within the time specified above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in allowance with Article 11 
of the General Conditions.  Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay, but not as a penalty, 
Contractor shall pay Owner Five Hundred dollars ($ 500.00) for each and every calendar day of each section that expires 
following the time specified above for completion of the work. 
 
ARTICLE V.  This Agreement will not be binding and effective until signed by the Owner. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this contract as of the day and year first above written. 
 
SIGNATURE:      ATTEST: 
 
       
Owner, Party of the First Part           
                                                          City Clerk 
By        
          Name and Title       (SEAL) 
 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
*  
LICENSE or CERTIFICATE NUMBER, if applicable         
 
SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR: 
 
IF AN INDIVIDUAL OR PARTNERSHIP 
 
       By        
Contractor, Party of the Second Part                 Name and Title 
 
IF A CORPORATION                           ATTEST: 
 
              
Contractor, Party of the Second Part   Secretary 
 
By         (CORPORATE SEAL) 
        Name and Title 
 
 
STATE OF      
COUNTY OF      
 
On This    day of     , 20 , before me appeared       
 to me personally known who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the     of  
       and that the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate seal of 
said corporation by authority of its board of directors, and said      acknowledged said 
instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation. 
 

(SEAL) 
 
 
My commission Expires: ______________________          

Notary Public Within and For Said County and State 
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SECTION ONE - Dude Ranch Rd Sidewalk

Item Est. Extension Extension Extension 
No. Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Figure Unit Price Figure Unit Price Figure
1 Mobilization 1 LS $20,000.00 20,000.00$   $7,000.00 7,000.00$       $20,000.00 20,000.00$     
2 Existing Storm Box and Pipe Removals 1 LS $3,500.00 3,500.00$     $1,500.00 1,500.00$       $4,000.00 4,000.00$       
3 Subgrade Preparation 4,255 SY $25.00 106,375.00$ $12.00 51,060.00$     $9.00 38,295.00$     
4 Silt Fence 815 LF $2.50 2,037.50$     $2.75 2,241.25$       $3.00 2,445.00$       
5 Rock Ditch Check 6 EA $200.00 1,200.00$     $250.00 1,500.00$       $200.00 1,200.00$       
6 Inlet Protection 7 EA $350.00 2,450.00$     $75.00 525.00$          $120.00 840.00$          
7 Relocate Existing Sign 6 EA $300.00 1,800.00$     $75.00 450.00$          $150.00 900.00$          
8 Remove Existing Sign, Return to City 3 EA $100.00 300.00$        $50.00 150.00$          $90.00 270.00$          
9 Relocate Existing Mailbox 1 EA $190.00 190.00$        $50.00 50.00$            $145.00 145.00$          
10 Relocate Existing Mailbox Group at Ledges 1 EA $500.00 500.00$        $400.00 400.00$          $550.00 550.00$          
11 Adjust Water Valves 7 EA $250.00 1,750.00$     $100.00 700.00$          $95.00 665.00$          
12 Adjust/Raise existing Utility Box 1 EA $250.00 250.00$        $350.00 350.00$          $700.00 700.00$          
13 Remove and Relocate Existing Fire Hydrant 3 EA $2,500.00 7,500.00$     $1,250.00 3,750.00$       $1,100.00 3,300.00$       
14 Lower Existing Sanitary Sewer Force Main 24 LF $150.00 3,600.00$     $187.00 4,488.00$       $350.00 8,400.00$       
15 Stone Rip Rap - 3 to 6 inches 52.9 SY $42.00 2,221.80$     $8.40 444.36$          $80.00 4,232.00$       
16 15 in. CMP Storm Pipe 87 LF $50.00 4,350.00$     $39.00 3,393.00$       $190.00 16,530.00$     
17 18 in. CMP Storm Pipe 240 LF $50.00 12,000.00$   $42.00 10,080.00$     $100.00 24,000.00$     
18 15 in. Flared End Sections 1 EA $250.00 250.00$        $160.00 160.00$          $270.00 270.00$          
19 18 in. Flared End Sections 5 EA $250.00 1,250.00$     $185.00 925.00$          $330.00 1,650.00$       
20 Concrete Curb Inlets (Complete w/Lid & Grate) 5 EA $4,000.00 20,000.00$   $2,748.00 13,740.00$     $3,000.00 15,000.00$     
21 Concrete Catch Basin Inlets (Complete w/Beehive Grate) 2 EA $3,000.00 6,000.00$     $1,975.00 3,950.00$       $2,600.00 5,200.00$       
22 Trench Drain 2 EA $2,500.00 5,000.00$     $1,000.00 2,000.00$       $2,100.00 4,200.00$       
23 Concrete Approach Pavement (7-Inch Thick) 216 SY $100.00 21,600.00$   $75.50 16,308.00$     $70.00 15,120.00$     
24 Concrete Approach Pavement (6-Inch Thick) 125 SY $80.00 10,000.00$   $72.50 9,062.50$       $65.00 8,125.00$       
25 Asphalt Driveway Extension (3-Inch Thick) 15 SY $30.00 450.00$        $33.25 498.75$          $111.00 1,665.00$       
26 Gravel Driveway Extension (6-Inch Thick) 6 SY $30.00 180.00$        $28.50 171.00$          $22.00 132.00$          
27 Concrete Sidewalk 1,425 SY $50.00 71,250.00$   $51.10 72,817.50$     $52.00 74,100.00$     
28 Concrete Curb and Gutter 2,834 LF $30.00 85,020.00$   $24.80 70,283.20$     $32.00 90,688.00$     
29 Full Depth Pavement Edge Repair 135 SF $12.00 1,620.00$     $14.80 1,998.00$       $16.00 2,160.00$       
30 Full Depth Asphalt Repair 50 SY $60.00 3,000.00$     $80.00 4,000.00$       $200.00 10,000.00$     
31 Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching 1,556 SY $5.00 7,780.00$     $6.10 9,491.60$       $3.75 5,835.00$       
32 2" Brown Landscape Rock w/Fabric 170 SY $45.00 7,650.00$     $21.10 3,587.00$       $15.00 2,550.00$       
33 Replace Landscaping Mulch Area 160 SY $20.00 3,200.00$     $18.75 3,000.00$       $12.00 1,920.00$       
34 Detectable/Tactile Warning Surfaces Installed 7 EA $200.00 1,400.00$     $450.00 3,150.00$       $225.00 1,575.00$       
35 Force Account 1 LS $10,000.00 10,000.00$   $10,000.00 10,000.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$     

Total for Section One = 425,674.30$ 313,224.16$   376,662.00$   

SECTION TWO - Ledges Drive

36 Subgrade Preparation 214 SY $25.00 5,350.00$     $12.00 2,568.00$       $30.00 6,420.00$       
37 Temporary Gravel Drive Lane 120 SY $30.00 3,600.00$     $9.25 1,110.00$       $35.00 4,200.00$       
38 Concrete Approach Pavement (7-Inch Thick) 140 SY $110.00 15,400.00$   $75.50 10,570.00$     $75.00 10,500.00$     
39 Concrete Curb and Gutter 106 LF $40.00 4,240.00$     $24.80 2,628.80$       $28.00 2,968.00$       
40 Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching 236 SY $5.00 1,180.00$     $6.10 1,439.60$       $5.00 1,180.00$       

Total for Section Two = 29,770.00$   18,316.40$     25,268.00$     

Total for Section One and Two = 455,444.30$ 331,540.56$   401,930.00$   

BID TABULATION
City of Osage Beach
Dude Ranch Road Sidewalk Phase 4
Osage Beach Project # OB18-016

Bids

5/22/2019 Engineer Estimate Stockman Construction

Jefferson City, MO

Donald Maggi, Inc.

Rolla, MO
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting:  06/20/19  
Originator: (Name/Title) Ty Dinsdale / Airport Manager 
Date Submitted: 06/10/19  

Agenda Item Title: 

Motion to authorize the City Administrator to execute the "Request for Approval of Agreement to Transfer 
Funds" to effectuate a transfer of non-primary entitlement funds alloted to the City in 2016. 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Ty Dinsdale / Airport Manager  

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #   

Second Reading of Bill # 

Resolution #   

Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

N/A 

Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

Immediate action is needed if MoDOT is to be able to use these funds elsewhere within the State of 
Missouri. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source: 

Budget Line Item/Title:   
FY Budgeted Amount: $ 
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

Requested Amount: $ 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Request for Approval of Agreement to Transfer Funds 

✔ 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

Approval of this motion will authorize the City Administrator to execute the attached form titled "Request for 
Approval of Agreement to Transfer Funds." The effect of this will release (return to Mo-DOT Aviation) 
$150,000 previously reserved to our the Grande Glaize Airport in Fiscal Year 2016. 

 
This money is an allotment (grant) of Non-Primary Entitlement Funds alloted to the City by the Missouri 
Department of Transportation which remain unused and unneeded by the City. The City Treasurer has 
confirmed that this action does not require the City to write a check or move any money. The Airport Manager 
reports that this action only releases money held for the City by Mo-DOT. This action will allow Mo-DOT 
Aviation to put this money to use elsewhere in Missouri. If the City does not release or use these funds this 
year, the allotment expires and the funds lapse back to the United States, Department of Transportation. 

 
The Airport Manager and Public Works Director recommend this action. 

 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

This is a necessary action due to the fact we did not have a project use for the funds; therefore, funds should be 
released from our use. I believe this should be an action approved at Board level. 

 
I concur with the departments' recommendation. 
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Missouri Department of Transportation 
Aviation Section 

 

Request for Approval of Agreement for Transfer of Entitlements 

In accordance with 49 USC § 47117(c)(2),  

Name of Transferring Sponsor: City of Osage Beach 
hereby waives receipt of the following amount of funds apportioned to it under 49 USC § 47117(c) for the: 

Name of Transferring Airport (and Locid): Grand Glaize-Osage Beach (K15) 

for each fiscal year listed below: 

Entitlement Type 
(Passenger, Cargo 

or Nonprimary) 
Fiscal Year Amount 

Nonprimary 2016 $150,000 

  $ 

            $      

            $      

Total  $150,000 

 

The Missouri Department of Transportation has determined that the waived amount will be made 
available to: 

Name of Airport (and Locid) Receiving Transferred Entitlements:  

Name of Receiving Airport’s Sponsor:  

a public use airport in the same state or geographical areas as the transferring airport for eligible projects 
under 49 USC § 47104(a).   

The waiver expires on the earlier of 9/30/18 (date) or when the availability of apportioned funds lapses 
under 49 USC § 47117(b). 

For the Missouri Department of Transportation: 

Signature: ___________________________________________   

Name: Michelle Kratzer 

Title: Multimodal Operations Director 

Date: _______________________________________________ 
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Missouri Department of Transportation 
Aviation Section 

 

 

Certification of Transferring Sponsor 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. I understand that knowingly and 
willfully providing false information to the federal government is a violation of 18 USC § 1001 (False 
Statements) and could subject me to fines, imprisonment, or both. 

Executed on this       day of ____________________ , ___________.   

Name of Sponsor: City of Osage Beach 

Name of Sponsor’s Authorized Official:       

Title of Sponsor’s Authorized Official:       

Signature of Sponsor’s Authorized Official: ___________________________________  

Certificate of Transferring Sponsor’s Attorney 

I, ______________________________________________, acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do 
hereby certify that in my opinion the Sponsor is empowered to enter into the foregoing Agreement under 
the laws of the state of _____________________________.  Further, I have examined the foregoing 
Agreement and the actions taken by said Sponsor and Sponsor’s official representative has been duly 
authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with the 
laws of the said state and 49 USC § 47101, et seq. 

Dated at __________________________ (City, State), this _____ day of ________________, ________. 

Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney: ________________________________________________________ 

 

182



City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting:  06/20/19  
Originator: (Name/Title) Eric Hibdon, Public Works Supervisor  
Date Submitted: 06/10/19  

Agenda Item Title: 

Motion to approve the purchase of parts and equipment for lift station improvements from Municipal 
Equipment in the amount not to exceed $169,551.14. 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Nick Edelman, Public Works Director  

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #   

Second Reading of Bill # 

Resolution #   

Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Other (Describe) 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

Board approval required for purchases over $15,000 per Chapter 135. Article II. Purchasing, Procurement, 
Transfers, and Sales. 

Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

Fiscal Impact: 
Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source:   
Budget Line Item/Title: 35-00-773114 Lift Station Improvements  

FY  19   Budgeted Amount: $ 150,000.00 
Expenditures to Date 05/31/19 : ($ 480.00 ) 
Available: $ 149,520.00 

Requested Amount: $ 169,551.14 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

Vendor Quotes 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

This is for the purchase of new pumps, panels, base elbows and other items for Tan-Tar-A 5 plex, 27-04 
(Harbor Heights) and 62-2 (Hawthorn) lift stations.  We asked Municipal Equipment to provide a cost for 2 
pumps, panel, base elbows, guide rail brackets, guide rail, floats and appurtenances. Municipal Equipment is 
the sole source provider for Sulzer/ABS Pumps for the City. The cost as submitted for these 3 pump stations is 
$169,551.14. 

 
Municipal Equipment has quoted an additional 5% discount if all three of these stations are ordered at the same 
time. Th cost for lift stations 27-04 and 62-2 are the same ($48,737.90) and are comparable to the cost of 
similar stations the City has done in the past. The cost for the Tan-Tar-A station is higher due to the fact that a 
phase converter is required as 3-phase power is unavailable at this location. The sewer department would like 
to utilize a variable frequency drive (VFD) to convert. It is a little more expensive than the Ronk static but it is 
easier to operate and doesn't have as many components. 

 
This request for $169,551.14 is more than budgeted; additional funds need - $20,031.14. A budget amendment 
will be coming in the future. I & I Improvements (35-00-773220) will be postponed in order to stay within 
budget. 

 
The Public Works Department will perform the work. We would like to proceed with authorization to purchase 
the equipment as the lead time is 8 to 10 weeks. 

 
 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

I concur with the department's recommendation. 
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QUOTATION 

 
 

 
TO:    Eric Hibdon        DATE: June 10, 2019 
    City of Osage Beach 
  
   
PROJECT: Osage Beach, MO 
  Tan Tar A Lift Station 
  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We are pleased to offer the following for your consideration: 
 
 
 Two (2) Sulzer model XFP101G CB1.3 PE200/4 submersible pumps with 27 horsepower,  
   1780 RPM, 230 volt, 3 phase motors and 49’ power/control cable    
 Two (2) Heavy Duty guide rail base assemblies with 4” outlet and stainless steel hardware 
 Two (2) 2” x 20’ stainless steel guide rail pipes 
 Two (2) Stainless steel upper guide rail brackets 
 Two (2) Stainless steel pump lifting chain assemblies 
 Two (2) Stainless steel cable holders 
 Four (4) Float switches with 40’ cable 
 One (1) ECC duplex control panel with Osage Beach standard items 
   
 VFD conversion to 3 phase – PRICE…..$74,932.65 
    Deduct 5% if purchased with 27-04 and 62-2 (discount does not apply to freight and start up) 
    ADJUSTED PRICE…..$72,075.34 
  
 RONK Static conversion to 3 phase – PRICE…..$66,473.90 
    Deduct 5% if purchased with 27-04 and 62-2 (discount does not apply to freight and start up) 
    ADJUSTED PRICE…..$63,954.94  
   

 
Should you have any questions or comments, please feel free to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Derrick Brandt 
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        Page 2  - Tan Tar A Lift Station  -  June 10, 2019 
 
 
 
General Notes and Comments: 
- The prices shown above include associated freight costs. 
- The prices are firm for 60 days from the date of the proposal 
- Payment terms for this order would be:       

- NET 30 Days 
- The prices shown above include two (2) days of start-up assistance. 
- The prices shown above do not include applicable taxes. 
- We will prepare seven (7) sets of submittal data for the equipment, and will not order, or release for 

production, any of the proposed equipment until the submittal data has been returned approved. 
- The delivery of the submittal data would be 2-3 weeks and the delivery of the equipment would be 8-10 

weeks after the receipt of the approved shop drawings. 
 
 
If you would like to place an order for this equipment, please sign below and return to our office. 

    
 

Accepted by 
 
 

 
Company 

 
 

 
Date 
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QUOTATION 

 
 

 
TO:    Eric Hibdon        DATE: June 10, 2019 
    City of Osage Beach 
  
   
PROJECT: Osage Beach, MO 
  27-04 Lift Station 
  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We are pleased to offer the following for your consideration: 
 
 
 Two (2) Sulzer model XFP100G CB1.5 PE210/4 submersible pumps with 28 horsepower,  
   1780 RPM, 460 volt, 3 phase motors and 49’ power/control cable    
 Two (2) Guide rail base assemblies with 4” outlet and stainless steel hardware 
 Two (2) 2” x 20’ stainless steel guide rail pipes 
 Two (2) Stainless steel upper guide rail brackets 
 Two (2) Stainless steel pump lifting chain assemblies 
 Two (2) Stainless steel cable holders 
 Four (4) Float switches with 40’ cable 
 One (1) ECC duplex control panel with Osage Beach standard items 
  
  
 PRICE …$50,597.42 
   
    Deduct 5% if purchased with Tan Tar A and 62-2 (discount does not apply to freight and start up) 
 
    ADJUSTED PRICE…..$48,737.90 
 
 
 

 
Should you have any questions or comments, please feel free to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Derrick Brandt 
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         Page 2  -  27-04 Lift Station  -  June 10, 2019 
 
 
 
General Notes and Comments: 
- The prices shown above include associated freight costs. 
- The prices are firm for 60 days from the date of the proposal 
- Payment terms for this order would be:       

- NET 30 Days 
- The prices shown above include one (1) day of start-up assistance. 
- The prices shown above do not include applicable taxes. 
- We will prepare seven (7) sets of submittal data for the equipment, and will not order, or release for 

production, any of the proposed equipment until the submittal data has been returned approved. 
- The delivery of the submittal data would be 2-3 weeks and the delivery of the equipment would be 8-10weeks 

after the receipt of the approved shop drawings. 
 
 
If you would like to place an order for this equipment, please sign below and return to our office. 

    
 

Accepted by 
 
 

 
Company 

 
 

 
Date 
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QUOTATION 

 
 

 
TO:    Eric Hibdon        DATE: June 10, 2019 
    City of Osage Beach 
  
   
PROJECT: Osage Beach, MO 
  62-2 Lift Station 
  
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We are pleased to offer the following for your consideration: 
 
 
 Two (2) Sulzer model XFP100G CB1.5 PE210/4 submersible pumps with 28 horsepower,  
   1780 RPM, 460 volt, 3 phase motors and 49’ power/control cable    
 Two (2) Guide rail base assemblies with 4” outlet and stainless steel hardware 
 Two (2) 2” x 20’ stainless steel guide rail pipes 
 Two (2) Stainless steel upper guide rail brackets 
 Two (2) Stainless steel pump lifting chain assemblies 
 Two (2) Stainless steel cable holders 
 Four (4) Float switches with 40’ cable 
 One (1) ECC duplex control panel with Osage Beach standard items 
  
  
 PRICE …$50,597.42 
   
    Deduct 5% if purchased with Tan Tar A and 62-2 (discount does not apply to freight and start up) 
 
    ADJUSTED PRICE…..$48,737.90 
 
 

 
Should you have any questions or comments, please feel free to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Derrick Brandt 
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        Page 2  -  27-04 Lift Station  -  June 10, 2019 
 
 
 
General Notes and Comments: 
- The prices shown above include associated freight costs. 
- The prices are firm for 60 days from the date of the proposal 
- Payment terms for this order would be:       

- NET 30 Days 
- The prices shown above include one (1) day of start-up assistance. 
- The prices shown above do not include applicable taxes. 
- We will prepare seven (7) sets of submittal data for the equipment, and will not order, or release for 

production, any of the proposed equipment until the submittal data has been returned approved. 
- The delivery of the submittal data would be 2-3 weeks and the delivery of the equipment would be 8-10weeks 

after the receipt of the approved shop drawings. 
 
 
If you would like to place an order for this equipment, please sign below and return to our office. 

    
 

Accepted by 
 
 

 
Company 

 
 

 
Date 
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City of Osage Beach 
Agenda Item Summary  
Date of Board of Aldermen Meeting:  06/20/19  
Originator: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director  
Date Submitted: 06/11/19  

Agenda Item Title: 

Discussion - Sidewalk Master Plan 

Presented by: (Name/Title) Nicholas Edelman, Public Works Director  

Requested Action: 
Motion to Approve 

First Reading of Bill #   

Second Reading of Bill # 

Resolution #   

Proclamation 

Public Hearing 

Other (Describe) 

Discussion 

Ordinance Reference for Action: (i.e. RSMo Section, Ordinance # & Title) 

N/A 

Deadline for Action: YES NO 

If yes, explain: 

Fiscal Impact: 
Not Applicable 

Budgeted Item: YES NO 

If no, provide funding source: 

Budget Line Item/Title:   
FY Budgeted Amount: $ 
Expenditures to Date : ($ ) 
Available: $ 0.00 

Requested Amount: $ 

Attachments: YES NO 

If yes, list attachments: 

✔ 

✔ 
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Department Comments and Recommendation: 

The Public Works Department has been looking into criteria to create a sidewalk master plan. We have come 
across some criteria that we would like to have a discussion about prior to proceeding with this work. 

 
New sidewalks and/or existing sidewalks. The issue with existing is that some of them do not meet ADA 
requirements and do we want to score them differently than new sidewalks. The criteria for new and existing 
would not be the same. 

 
Ideas for Criteria for new sidewalks 

 
1) Connectivity - High levels ranking projects on connectivity would have existing sidewalks in the area. Low 
ranking would be where there is limited or no sidewalks. Gaps to length of existing sidewalks would be 
measured. The shorter the gap compared to existing sidewalks the higher the score. Missing Curb Ramp 
Analysis would be used here also. Are all users able to use the sidewalks that are existing to complete the 
infrastructure. 

 
2) Terrain/Safety - High scores would be where there is a major grade change off the edge of the roadway or if 
there is obstructions along the side of the road. Low scores would be where there are shoulders or a relative flat 
grade off the roadway where you have a place to walk safely out of the road traffic. Widths of shoulders vs 
traffic volumes would be looked at here. 

 
3) Costs - High scores would be where the costs are low. This would be where construction is relatively easy 
and there is not a lot of driveways that have to be reconstructed. Low scores would be where a bridge or 
multiple driveway issues. 

 
4) Population Density - Factors that would be considered are residential and commercial/governmental 
functions. Projects that score high would have places for users to shop/go to work and larger numbers of 
people. Projects that score low are ones that are in larger lot single family subdivisions or undeveloped areas. 

 
Ideas for Criteria for existing sidewalks 

 
1) Pedestrian Counts 
2) Condition - are there obstructions -mailboxes, utility poles, etc. Is the width standard. 
3) ADA 

Transition plan and compliance 
4) Costs 

 
The above information would set the foundation for the sidewalk master plan. 
 
City Administrator Comments and Recommendation: 

N/A 
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	Minutes June 6, 2019
	Bills List
	Bill 19-37 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, amending sections 405.020, 405.130, 405.210,

405.240, and 405.640, of the Osage Beach Codes of Ordinances relating to the amendments and changes to the

zoning ordinance regarding Medical Marijuana.
	Bill 19-38 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to execute a renewal of

contract OB18-013 with Reinhold Electric, Inc. for traffic signal, street lighting, and ball field lighting

maintenance and repair services.
	Bill 19-39 - An Ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the sale of property to Schell &

Schell and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute two Quitclaim Deeds.
	Bill 19-40 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, vacating a portion of the Right of Way of

Valley View Drive.
	Presentation of the City's 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
	Bill 19-41 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the sale of property to Lazy L.

Properties and authorizing the Mayor to sign and execute a Quitclaim Deed as described in Section 2.
	Bill 19-42 An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, amending Ordinance No. 18.59 Adopting the

2019 Annual Budget, Transfer of Funds for Necessary Expenses.
	Bill 19-43 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract for

the fireworks show with Brilliant Skies Fireworks, to be held at the City Park during the National Night Out

event on Tuesday August 6, 2019.
	Bill 19-44 - An ordinance of the City of Osage Beach, Missouri, authorizing the Mayor to execute construction

contract OB18-016 with Stockman Construction for the Dude Ranch Road Sidewalk Improvements, Phase 4, in

an amount not to exceed $401,930.
	Motion to authorize the City Administrator to execute the "Request for Approval of Agreement to Transfer

Funds" to effectuate a transfer of non-primary entitlement funds alloted to the City in 2016.
	Motion to approve the purchase of parts and equipment for lift station improvements from Municipal

Equipment in the amount not to exceed $169,551.14.
	Discussion - Sidewalk Master Plan



